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Welcome to

C.P. Lotus Corporation is the retail flagship company of the Chaoren Pokphand
Group, Asia’s leading globally committed conglomerate, in China. Headquartered
in Shanghai, we are principally engaged in the operation of hypermarkets under
the “Lotus” banner spanning across the Northern, Eastern and Southern regions of
China. We also operate a nationwide network of dry and fresh distribution centres
in Shanghai, Guangzhou, Beijing and Xian.
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CP Lotus is committed to “Customer Centric”, focusing on service quality and
customer satisfaction. We endeavour to create a fresh and pleasurable shopping
experience to all families by providing a neat and comfortable environment, an
assortment of high-quality merchandise; and a warm and friendly service.
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We strive to become a part of our customers’ lives.
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Vision

Be the most preferred lifestyle retailer for products and services all families need,
want and dream of.

AR A R W B A E RSP N A iE A A A A R
Fie R8P B e Y

Mission

Helping people to live a better life. A better quality of living standard as well as
living the lifestyle they aspire to.
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Global markets are in a state of uncertainty and volatility.
China’s economic growth has inescapably been adversely
affected by slowing export demand but remain high by
international standards. According to National Bureau
of Statistics, China’s growth domestic product (“GDP")
registered a year-on-year growth of 9.2% reaching RMB47.2
trillion in 2011, down 1.1 percentage point from 2010.
Retail sales rose 17.1% to RMB18.1 trillion. We remain
confident in China’s long-term prospects.

Within this context, the performance of the Group was
satisfactory and at the same time, we recognise there is
still much to do. We achieved revenue growth of 6.9% to
RMB10,019.3 million and net profit was RMB23.8 million.

Our financial position improved significantly with the
successful completion of the open offer of convertible
preference shares and the refinancing exercise in December
last year. With the support from our shareholders, the
Company raised approximately RMB657.7 million, which has
been fully used to repay part of the existing loans thereby
enhancing the capital structure and reducing the finance cost
of the Group. The refinancing provides us with additional
working capital for store expansion and renovation. We will
continue our objective to reduce our overall debt levels.

From an operational perspective, we continued our
store expansion plan while we continually reviewed the
performance of the existing portfolio. We opened three new
stores in established markets of Guangzhou and Shanghai to
further deepen market penetrations. In addition, we acquired
four profitable stores from our controlling shareholders, the
Charoen Pokphand Group (the “CP Group”), in the Wuxi,
Xuzhou, Hefei and Changsha areas to expand our footprint
and we also disposed of one under-performing store. We
will continue to proactively explore new development
opportunities that fit with our strategy and requirements
and continue to improve and strengthen our overall
competitiveness to achieve sustainable growth and enhance
long term shareholders’ value.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement

W A E

The Company always believes in observing the highest
standards in corporate governance. In response to various
new rules, code provisions and recommended best practices
published by the Exchange in October 2011, we have
ensured all the new rules which became effective on 1
January 2012 have since been properly complied with
and we have already commenced the process of internal
review and consultation of the adoptions of the new code
provisions.

For the Group, the coming year is about building on the
momentum we have generated throughout the last 12
months. We will be working closely with the CP Group and
leading property developers such as the Greenland Group
in expanding our presence to prime and strategic locations.
CP Group is developing mix-used commercial property in
first and second tier cities and new township development
projects across and these initiatives will provide us with new
store location opportunities.

Recent events happening around the world economy
continue to be a concern but | am positive that the
investments we continue to make in our own business
combined with strong leadership and a committed
workforce, we are well positioned to capitalize on the
growth opportunities in China’s retail market.

I would like to take this opportunity, on behalf of the
Board, to extend our appreciation and gratitude to our
shareholders, banks and vendors for their continuing trust
and support, and to our management and staff for their
dedicated hard work and commitment throughout the past
year.

Dhanin Chearavanont
Chairman

27 March 2012
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

EEENWE DN

FINANCIAL REVIEW Yok 5 o]

With the support of our shareholders, the Company successfully AKATBHEBBBBRENIZFHET > R _F——
completed the open offer of convertible preference shares (“Series C 4+ . F 53l #o 5 5% 2 BH 5% 85 7] e % 158 2
CPS"”) and raised net proceeds of approximately RMB657.7 million in  ([CRP W HBELk]) » CESFHAAR
December 2011 (“Open Offer”). The full amount has been used to  #657,700,0007C ([ A BIEEE ) - AP EE >
repay part of the existing loans thereby enhancing the capital structure 7 £ 2k 86 5 21 C 2 30O A 65 2 51 BL A SR AT
and reducing the financing cost of the Group. The Series C CPS carry B3k » Wit 3% 7 A 4E [H 2 B A< %5 W S I A% L
no fixed dividend and can be converted to ordinary shares at HK$0.22 & k7 o CZ 51 ] e B 15 506 I3t b 0 % 35 43 4T »
per share with no expiry date subject to the compliance of the W HAEF A LW Z HMKA R FF R EE R
minimum public float requirement under the Listing Rules. In addition, — ZI&¥E T » B BT H: [ DL 45 0.2 29 76 36 42
with the support and confidence of our banking partners on the back %3 3@t o BLAb > 53] SR4T & 15 0K Bl i 3 5 K
of a stronger balance sheet and continued improved performance,  fE4F ~ 23 ] ¥ 2 £ 8 1f U0 o % S A i ok %
the Group refinanced its loan portfolio with lower overall finance cost — F » A4 [ D S5 B 465 2 B 75 2% i % B 20k 4
and additional working capital for store expansion and renovation. As £ FERbEF » B A A0 4 4 & 4 FE AR Al 00 e &%
a result of the increase in capital and reduction in debt, the interest i o FHRE & W R EHEH W » EAA LA
bearing debt to equity ratio improved from 1.41 times to 0.44 time. & L R B 1.41 1% B3 0% £0.4415 -

The Company made an announcement on 14 October 2011 in respect ARA® PR - F——44FE+H T MHZAHHE®E
of the proposed acquisition, from Whole Sino Limited (“Whole Sino”)  JiWhole Sino Limited ([Whole Sino ) Wi
of the entire issued share capital of Excel Worth Limited (“Excel — ZEME& - M ~ &M K& B Vb 484 U 5% K7 i
Worth") which operates four hypermarkets in Wuxi, Xuzhou, Hefei  ZExcel Worth Limited ([ Excel Worth]) Z
and Changsha (the “Acquisition”) for a consideration which would 2 #E B 47 A (TWHEFIE 1) » o8F DL 38 W)

be settled by the issuance of convertible preference shares (“Series D & JB 45 55 & (D2 5] 7 45 JBefk 58 I 1) 2 A5 Wie ik
CPS"). Whole Sino is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Charoen Pokphand X% - Whole Sino%Charoen Pokphand
Group Company Limited (“CPG"). As the major conditions precedent  Group Company Limited ([CPG]) Z —FK &
had been fulfilled, the Company and Whole Sino agreed completion &M E AT o it LB GACERIT » &K
to take place on 1 January 2012 and a total of 2,211,382,609 Series D A7 K& Whole Sino [ & B S 5 it — 8 — 24
CPS were issued. The Series D CPS carry no fixed dividend and can be  —H —H 525k » W& 3L ¥8472,211,382,609/%D
converted to ordinary shares at HK$0.23 per share at any time subject £ 5 W] 4 Jl 65 55 B o D & 21 7] 48 JBe 455 55 Mk S A%
to the compliance of the minimum public float requirement under the  W4» 4L > 3¢ 7ERF A b 1l B A 2 5 I 20 5 5 JB
Listing Rules. %E?; > B A R A DL 65 0. 233

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

fok B A N AR

For the Year Ended 31 December 2011
HMEZF—— A= —HILFEE

2011 2010 Change Change
e S o S 213 %) %)
RMB million RMB million RMB million
AR H &t AR e A RW w0 %
Turnover BEH 10,019.3 9,374.5 644.8 6.9
Gross profit EA 1,775.6 1,733.3 423 2.4
Other revenue and HoAb g5 K
other net income FoA e A A 394.8 374.1 20.7 5.5
Distribution and T T 2%
store operating costs B AR (1,657.2) (1,565.9) (91.3) 5.8
Administrative expenses s (328.8) (345.0) 16.2 (4.7)
Gain on redemption of JEE 1o 4 e £ O 22 ¥ A
convertible bonds - 408.5 (408.5) (100.0)
Finance costs Al AR
— Interest on convertible bonds — R E SR ZF B - (91.5) 91.5 (100.0)
- Other finance costs — LA B AR (149.7) (172.8) 23.1 (13.4)
Income tax P B (10.9) 8.7 (19.6) (225.3)
Profit for the Year AF e A 23.8 349.3 (325.5) (93.2)
EBITDA BBLYT# K B85 i 42 383.2 823.5 (440.3) (53.5)
EBITDA (exclude gain on BBLHT# B B 0 i 2
redemption of convertible bonds) (4l i 8l W] 40 % £ % 2 5 A1) 383.2 415.0 (31.8) (7.7)
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
EEEBAWR DN

Turnover

Group turnover was entirely generated from the sale of goods, less
returns, discounts and value added tax from our operations in China.
Total turnover increased 6.9% to RMB10,019.3 million and same store
sales growth was 5.2%. Turnover was RMB9,197.5 million (2010:
RMB8,832.4 million) excluding merchandise sold to C.P. Holding (BVI)
Investment Company Limited (“CPH") and its related entities.

Gross Profit

Gross profit margin is comprised of front margin and back margin.
Front margin is sales minus direct cost of sales; back margin represents
income from suppliers such as discounts and allowances. Front margin
dropped 0.6 percentage point to 9.5% in 2011 as a result of the
acceleration of inflation during 2011 and thus leading to higher cost of
sales. In addition, there were more price reduction promotions to boost
sales and reduce inventory level. Back margin also dropped slightly
from 8.4% in 2010 to 8.2% in 2011. Gross profit margin was 19.3%
(2010: 19.6%) excluding sales at wholesale price to CPH and its related
entities. We continued to work closely with our suppliers for a higher
rebate on sales volume by driving higher sales while lowering other
forms of rebates and allowances received from them.

GROSS PROFIT MARGIN

BHE
17.7% 18.5%

20%

0,

15% 8.2% 8.4%

10%

5%

0%
2011 2010

Other Revenue and Other Net Income

It comprised mainly of income received from leasing of store premises,
promotion and service income and other net income. The increase was
mainly attributable to the increase in income from leasing of store
premises of RMB44.3 million which resulted from the opening of the
new stores during 2011 and we were able to charge a higher rental
upon contract renewal.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Distribution and Store Operating Costs

Distribution and store operating costs for the year under review were
RMB1,657.2 million, approximately 16.5% of sales (2010: RMB1,565.9
million, or 16.7% of sales). It mainly comprised of personnel, rental
expenses, utilities and depreciation and amortization for a total of
RMB1,370.8 million, or over 80.0% of total distribution and store
operating costs. The controllable expenses, which are expenses
that can be impacted by the actions of the store managers such as
personnel, utilities and transportation expenses etc. amounted to
approximately RMB995.2 million, or 9.9% of sales as compared to
RMB907.7 million, or 9.7% of sales in 2010. Personnel expenses
increased by RMB85.5 million primarily as a result of government’s
policy to increase the minimum wage nationwide, the general rise
in salary and corresponding social welfare contributions in line with
China’s CPI growth and the opening of new stores in 2011. Surtax
also increased by RMB17.3 million due to the introduction of urban
maintenance and construction tax and education levy to foreign
invested enterprises in China at the end of 2010. Personnel expenses,
rental (including property rental and shuttle bus rental), and utilities
expenses included in distribution and store operating costs accounted
for approximately 5.3%, 4.8% and 1.8% of the Group’s total turnover
respectively.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses were RMB328.8 million, or 3.3% of
sales compared to RMB345.0 million, or 3.7% of sales in 2010.
Administrative expenses included personnel expenses of RMB221.9
million, rental of RMB17.5 million, professional fee of RMB15.5 million
and depreciation and amortization of RMB17.8 million. Despite the
opening of new stores, the general rise in salary and high inflation,
we managed to lower the administrative expenses by increasing staff
efficiency and productivity and introduction of more cost effective
measures.

Financial Expenses

Financial expense was RMB149.7 million, or 1.5% of sales, a decrease
of RMB23.1 million from 2010, excluding the interest charge on
convertible bonds in 2010. The significant reduction was due to the
repayment of bank loans and other loans during the year under review.
We will continue our objective to reduce our overall debt levels.

Net Profit

Net profit attributable to shareholders was RMB23.8 million compared
to a net profit of RMB32.3 million, excluding gain on redemption of
convertible bonds and associated interest expenses in 2010. Despite
our efforts in containing the rise in distribution and administrative
expenses, the net profit recorded was less than that of last year
because of the negative growth of the gross profit margin as explained
above.

EBITDA

EBITDA was down from RMB415.0 million, excluding gain on
redemption of convertible bonds to RMB383.2 million in 2011, or
approximately 3.8% of sales.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
EEEBAWR DN

Capital Expenditure

The Group incurred a capital expenditure of RMB209.0 million for the
year under review, mainly in respect of the opening of new stores and
store renovation. The Group financed its capital expenditure through
a combination of cash generated from its operating activities and
banking facilities.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
A 7 T 255K UL AR

As at 31 December 2011

¥ Bl 3

7 45 [8) 7 [] A 4E BT 9 s Ak 2 B AS B 3 2 N\ R
209,000,0007C > F 3 % A BH 7 BA 5087 05 &l &%
JE Gl BHRT o ASE [ A% 1 2 5 T SRAT VA B
AZBEESHAGRETHERM L -

e ey Syl

2011 2010
SR “E-RE
RMB million RMB million
ARWEEL ARWHEEL
Fixed assets W & B 1,691.3 1,690.2
Goodwill ik 2,719.8 2,719.8
Cash and cash equivalents BE&RBESH 242.4 288.4
Pledged bank deposits K AT A 3K 143.2 96.1
Inventories e 1,177.1 826.7
Trade and other receivables B L e A JE SR 580.3 692.2
Other assets Hopt % 355.1 336.5
Total Assets He 6,909.2 6,649.9
Bank and other loans ST R R At Bk 879.5 1,798.0
Trade payables and B A RO
other liabilities T H A £ 45 4,027.2 3,574.7
Total liabilities AR 4,906.7 5,372.7
Net Assets ¥ 2,002.5 1,277.2
Share capital i A 340.6 280.6
Reserves Tk i 1,660.0 994.6
Non-controlling interests F e IR hE 23 1.9 2.0
Total Equity i 2% A 2,002.5 1,277.2
Fixed Assets A %2 % i
The changes mainly represent total depreciation and amortization 3% %% B) 32 35 2 A 4R B > M 3715 e B & & 36 A
for the year of RMB188.0 million, the additions of fixed assets of [ #188,000,0007C » 3% &K H B 3 7 )i il i
RMB209.0 million primarily as a result of the opening of new stores ¥R & [ & & & A K #209,000,0007C 2 i &
and RMB11.8 million of fixed assets of Madang Lu store which was % 2 [f & & 2 A\ B % 11,800,000 % 45 I
transferred to asset held for sale, Madang Lu store was disposed of on E¥&E (BEHIEEOR £ _4F=H—HH
1 March 2012. ) o
Goodwill R
The amount represents the goodwill arising from the Company’s 3% kI8 32 B % A% 2 5 7 DUAE4R B ik s i B 5
acquisition of the 21 Lotus stores owned by Shanghai Lotus Supermarket — #JEEfCH WA RAH ([ LigHEL ) A=
Chain Store Co., Ltd. (“SLS") and additional interest in Qingdao Lotus 215 WEHEAE 5 & > DA K 3 +5 75 B 5 ) 3 46
Supermarket Chain Store Co., Ltd. and Shantou Lotus Supermarket &4 i A FR 2 5] & il B8 5 %) 38 16 8 88 i A7 PR
Chain Store Co., Ltd. in prior years. Impairment test on the goodwill 2] 2 HE2% T A £ 2 W 2 o 1 208 i = Il A2 301
value is carried out annually based on a number of market assumptions &t » % 545 AR 98 22 15 7 B 18 3% (5 B B K
including discount rates, forecast growth rates and expected changes to T8 il B4 & 3 J 71 452 B 18 B 4 B8 Rl AKX = ¥ 30 ok
direct prices and selling costs. As a result of sound store level operating  4#) #47 - IBFAEBEM)EM S EER > R &
performance, no additional impairment of goodwill was recorded for — ——4F 3l HE $5 75 357 W9 7 28 ki (i -

2011.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents amounted to RMB 242.4 million as of year
end (2010: RMB288.4 million).

Pledged Bank Deposits

The Group had pledged bank deposit of RMB143.2 million as at 31
December 2011 (2010: RMB96.1 million), an increase of RMB47.1
million. The increase was mainly due to the increase of the issuance
of bank accepted bills for payments to suppliers for stocking up in
preparing for the Chinese New Year.

Inventories

The Group’s inventories balance was RMB1,177.1 million as at 31
December 2011, an increase of RMB350.4 million with an average
inventory turnover days of 44 days (2010: 37 days). The increase in
inventory at the end of 2011 was a result of stocking up in preparation
for the Chinese New Year which fell on January of 2012.

Trade and Other Receivables

Trade and other receivables decreased by 16.2% to RMB580.3 million
(2010: RMB692.2 million). Included in the balance was RMB221.3
million (2010: RMB199.4 million) of trade receivables, other receivables
and deposits from suppliers and third parties, and apart from rental
deposits of RMB59.6 million, they are expected to be recovered within
one year and thus no provision was made. Also included in the balance
was RMB358.9 million (2010: RMB492.8 million) of receivables from
related companies, a reduction of RMB133.9 million.

Receivables from related companies were primarily merchandise
supplied by the Group’s PRC subsidiaries to CPH and its related entities
under various supply agreements. Discount and allowances received by
the Group from suppliers in respect of the merchandise sold to CPH
and its related entities is captured by the Group. We will continue to
work closely with Whole Sino to expedite collection.

Other Assets

Other assets of RMB355.1 million mainly comprised of intangible assets
of RMB201.1 million and deferred tax assets of RMB113.7 million.
Intangible assets relate to operating lease agreements acquired in
the acquisition of subsidiaries in 2008 and are amortised using the
straight-line method over the remaining lease terms which vary from
10 to 30 years.

BEEEFNWRE DN

BERBE%R

FERZB4E LB A% NR¥242,400,000
e (BB \ R #288,400,0005C)

TR Z R AT A7

AKEFPN - FT——HEF+_H=Z+— HZE?&
P8R A7 17 3k B N R ¥143,200,0000C (=%

FAE }\Eﬂ%‘%mo 0007G) » 34 m A R ¥
47,100,00070 o It 34 fin = B 2 J2 R T 4E T A
B > LB I 1h 4 v A 30 BE SR AT AR Sh T

?i“o
1

AEBMPR _F——F+_A=Z+—HZESH
Ak N R ¥1,177,100,0007C » 3 fm A\ R
350,400,0007C » ﬁ'ﬁﬂzﬁjﬁﬁﬁﬂfﬁ? H# % 44H

(ZB R 37H) « FHR T AR
é%WﬁEﬁ:£~‘$ H Z R JE A i A
2 B I i M Wk

R o WK E W A16.2%FE AR
#580,300,00000 (—F —F44F : A\RW¥
692,200,00070) Uk % #H B b £ 55 4 4 HE IR
KCVE ~ R Ok TE DA K B R T R SR =
Z ¥4 N R%221,300,0000C (R —F 4 :
A R 199,400,00000) » B Y M E#E& AR
#:59,600,0007C A » TH 1 Br A7 %5 48 S 3L b, jE
Wik 3 A% AT — 48 P9 kel & Bk R R R 4R
B o Db UCRE PR B3 R WA B A 2 k0
N R #358,900,0007C (=& — 24 : AR

492,800,0007%) » ¥4 A R#133,900,0007T -

A WA ) £ 3 ol R R A o TR B R R AR
45 [ > o [ B 4 B 1 CPH Be 0 AH B A 2 it e
b o A BRSBTS T CPH A LT B A TR
BEE RS Z P S B Ot AASE ] - 42 1H]
gﬁ%ﬁ?fﬁWhole Sino 2% 2 i B D) ok 1= AH BA 3k

30 ¥

Hofth % 7 & N R 355,100,000 > L 44
T & e N\ R 201,100,00070 M #8 %t Bl 18 &
2 N R #113,700,0007C » I & 7 T5 B A A8
TR )\ A I B o D IRE T AR 2 S R
Wk FRBSED ARG THEN (AP
10304 ) AT HESY -
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
EEEBAWR DN

Bank and Other Loans

As at 31 December 2011, the Group’s total loan balance was
RMB879.5 million, a reduction of RMB918.5 million. The repayment
was made utilizing the net proceeds of RMB657.7 million raised
from the Open Offer and the receipt of payment from other loan
receivables.

LOAN PORTFOLIO
kA&

As at 31 December 2011
WREZF——FfZH="1—H

BT B I Ak £

WoB——4E+H=1+—H  KEHZHY
R4 B N\ R H879,500,0007T ¢ I A R
918,500,0007C - 1 12 8 3k Z 2K JH E B 4 A B
TEE AR 2 K IH T\ R %657,700,0000C &
Wi 1] R At JE W B K o

Loans from Loans from
Bank loans  third parties related parties Total
=05 HB AL
AT Rk Z 8% Z &k Hm
RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million
ARWBHEL  ARWHEEE ARWHEEC  ARWAEL
Within one year —HH 75.0 55.1 62.0 192.1
Over one year — AR 687.4 - - 687.4
Total k| 762.4 55.1 62.0 879.5

RMB762.4 million were bank loans from a Thai syndicate led by The
Siam Commercial Bank Public Company Limited with a term of six and
seven years.

Trade Payables and Other Liabilities

The Group’s trade payables and other liabilities balance at 31
December 2011 was RMB4,027.2 million (2010: RMB3,574.7 million)
of which RMB3,677.0 million (2010: RMB3,436.9 million) was trade
and payables due to third parties while the remaining was payables to
related parties. The Group typically receives terms of up to 60 days for
payment to trade suppliers.

Reserves

The reserves balance was RMB1,660.0 million as at 31 December
2011 (2010: RMB994.6 million). The significant increase was mainly
due to issuance of Series C CPS under the Open Offer. A total of
3,673,765,764 Series C CPS were issued at a price of HK$0.22.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

During the year, the Group’s sources of funds were generated primarily
from operating activities and proceeds from Open Offer. The net cash
and cash equivalents decrease was mainly due to repayment of bank
and other loans. We expect we will continue to have sufficient cash to
meet our business needs.

14 C.P. Lotus Corporation « NEERERLT

A R #762,400,00075C % PAThe Siam Commercial
Bank Public Company Limited % & 2 7 I 41
RS AR R LR 2 SRAT B -

% M A sk O B I il £ 4%

AREFPR _F——FE T H=ZT—HZIBEE
A 3k JE B At £ 45 4 A\ R %54,027,200,0005T
(Z=F—F4 : ANR¥3,574,700,0005C) > H
AR #3,677,000,00070 (& —F4 : AR
3,436,900,0007T ) % FE A} 58 = J7 W 8 I B
SRIE o FLAR L FEAT R BN K IE o AEHE A
ﬁﬁgiﬁlﬁﬁﬁ s AN — A EE60H 2
N BN 7 o

ik

W_E——F+_H=+—B2ZHELHA
F %1,660,000,0007C (=& — &4 : ARW
994,600,0007%) © I BH 283 o 2 2 phy 7 2 BH 8%
BT BATCR S BB e B > DLo.22# ot A
3L 85473,673,765,764 CFH F wJ 4 J 45 56 ik ©
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

KEY LIQUIDITY INDICATORS

EEENWE DN

EEESRIEE
2011 2010
SR SRR
Cash and cash equivalent Bl BB 4%
(RMB million) (AR #o0) 242.4 288.4
Net cash outflow after effect of Bl AU v (R I A W T = o 4
foreign exchange rate (RMB million) 2B (NR¥HEET) (46.0) (27.5)
Current ratio (x) W R (fF) 0.54 0.51
Quick ratio (x) R 5 LR () 0.25 0.29
Foreign Currency Exposure Kb BE B, B
The directors consider that as the Group’s retail operations are all #ERBAREEH > FERELEHEHANPEH >
based in the PRC, the Group is not exposed to significant currency risk < £ @] 7 3 22 45 35 %0 4 15 22 A0 JE Jal e o
in its retail operations.
The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk from bank loans held by 7 £ |5 1 % = 4 B J B U8 1 25 o 3 s 2 )
certain PRC subsidiaries, which are denominated in US dollars ("USD").  PI2E5¢ ([ I8 ]) 58 2 RAT S o BN ER
In respect of the USD bank loans borrowed in Hong Kong, as HK$ is s> £ 08 &% » e E A8 »
pegged to USD, the Group does not expect any significant movements 42 & 3 A FE B FE o 2 B R 5 5 2 3k
in the USD/HK$ exchange rate; and in respect of the USD bank @} ; &% % By b B i} B A 7 B = 20 8847 &
loans borrowed by PRC subsidiaries, as RMB is expected to continue &k » py it A R W6 TR HA 7 oF 21 4 B FHE » AN4E H]
to appreciate in the coming years, the Group also does not expect  yj o F& Hi A ] S5 vt [ [t 55 2 &) 41 BEE Jal B =~ & T
any negative impact of foreign currency risk in the PRC subsidiaries. 5% o [ Iy » A 45 8] 3 A 22 HEAR fa] 4] FE % w45
Therefore, the Group has not undertaken any foreign currency hedging  #j -
activities.
Contingent Liabilities o8 a0
As at 31 December 2011, the Company had issued two guarantees to A= ——4E+_"H=+—H > KA T H T
an independent third party which expire in 2025 and two guarantees 45 = J5 % Hi Wi JE I it 2 — HAE BB 2 IE 1R 46
to a bank which expire in April 2012 and July 2012 respectively in  H jij—5 047 8 H Wi IE 4 B — & — —4E P H
respect of finance lease arrangements entered into by its subsidiaries.  Jg — & — —4g -k H B 2 JE4E > SLILHHE A A
The directors do not consider it probable that claims will be made T ;> EEHERHEAR - EBWAZLD, L
against the Company under any of the guarantees. The maximum (T {a] & {f 4% 5 GE i) AKX 2 6] B4 o A &) 7 3% H
liability of the Company at 31 December 2011 under the guarantees ZiEE TR - Z——4FE+ A=+ —HZEKX
issued was 100% of the future minimum lease payments under the BB AR CHEMER R £EED
tWﬁ> lease agreements entered into by the subsidiaries of RMB100.0  # £ % = 100% % A ¥ 100,000,0007C °
million.
Charge on Assets % ki
Subsequent to the release of share charge and equitable share pg#®w —Z——44F+"H -+ /\HE2EEEA
mortgages in favour of The Siam Commercial Bank Public Company  4:128,300,0003% 76 2 £¢2k » &L The Siam
Limited, Hong Kong Branch created to secure the Company’s term loan  Commercial Bank Public Company Limited
facility, for which the outstanding principal of USD128.3 million was ﬁ%ﬁ}ﬁ;&gﬁ%gﬁ%%&ﬁgiﬂﬁﬁ%;ﬂyﬁ}ﬁw%
fully repaid by the Company on 28 December 2011, a share charge  254isd » fE A I A A 7 E S SREE >
has been created by the Company in favour of Bangkok Bank Public & ——4 4+ = H+XH » KA A DB A ST
Company Limited, Hong Kong Branch (“BBL") on 16 December 2011 FHi# 447 ([BAMT ) A2RNEHE R E— B
whereby the Company has agreed to pledge all shares of its subsidiary, — i3 320 > % A< 2 ] ] 2% DL B A 546 5
Prime Global Retail Management & Advisory Limited to BBL. An  BIBRZ 458 % 3636 B A 7] =2 2030 0 4y 4%
equitable share mortgage has been created by the Company in favour 3B AMT - N -2 ——44F+ - H+~H
of BBL on 16 December 2011 whereby the Company has agreed to A/ 5] DLEE A SRAT /5 2 35 5 3% & — 45 B 45 B
pledge all shares of its subsidiaries, Chia Tai Trading (Beijing) Company 25303 » & o A& 2 7] 7] % DL I Kt 8 A 7] Chia
Limited, Chia Tai Trading (Qingdao) Company Limited, Chia Tai Trading  Tai Trading (Beijing) Company Limited -

(Xian) Company Limited, Chia Tai Trading (Zhengzhou) Company
Limited, Chia Tai Distribution Investment Company Limited, Yangtze
Supermarket Investment Co. Limited and Union Growth Investments
Limited (“Union Growth”) to BBL.

Chia Tai Trading (Qingdao) Company
Limited ~ Chia Tai Trading (Xian) Company
Limited ~ Chia Tai Trading (Zhengzhou)
Company Limited ~ Chia Tai Distribution
Investment Company Limited ~ Yangtze
Supermarket Investment Co. Limited
HUnion Growth Investments Limited
([Union Growth |) z 23 JB 4 45410 7 M 43 6t
AT e
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An equitable share mortgage has been created by Union Growth
in favour of BBL on 16 December 2011 whereby Union Growth
has agreed to pledge all shares of its subsidiary, Lotus-CPF (PRC)
Investment Company Limited (“Lotus-CPF”) and 10,821,033 shares of
Chia Tai-Lotus (Guangdong) Investment Co. Ltd. (“CT-Lotus”) to BBL.

An equitable share mortgage has been created by Lotus-CPF in favour
of BBL on 16 December 2011 whereby Lotus-CPF has agreed to pledge
97,389,312 shares of its subsidiary, CT-Lotus to BBL.

The abovementioned share charge and equitable share mortgages
in favour of BBL were created to secure the Company’s term loan
facility of USD28 million which will expire on 31 December 2018 with
instalment payments scheduled during its term.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Store Network

During the year under review, the Group opened two hypermarkets
in Guangzhou, one supermarket in Shanghai, which has been
subsequently disposed of on 1 March 2012 and two Lotus Life Stations
in Shanghai. Lotus Life Station is a new business format with a size
of approximately 350 to 700 sgm. Unlike a conventional convenience
store or supermarket, its trendy, chic and comfortable design creates a
fresh, energetic and friendly lifestyle which caters for the daily need of
the city people. The performance of this new business format has been
satisfactory.

With the completion of the Acquisition on 1 January 2012, the Group
now owns and operates 52 Lotus stores and two Lotus Life Stations
with total sales area of approximately 720,000 sqm.

Optimisation of Merchandise

We continued our efforts to broaden our merchandise assortment and
presentation in order to meet the changing demands of customers.
We reviewed our merchandise mix regularly by conducting line review
based on customer research and market trend to ensure below-par
performance products were removed and replaced by newer and more
in-demand products. We also recognised that there are differences in
tastes and preferences in different cities and in different regions and
our merchandise mix is often adjusted to cater for such differences.

The quality and safety of our products is of paramount importance
to Lotus as well as being essential for maintaining customer trust and
confidence. Given the frequent disclosure of tainted food incidents in
recent years, it is also our responsibility to give assurance to customers
about what they eat. We continue to review and strengthen our quality
control measures through supply chain and vendor development to
ensure product integrity. There are strict product safety processes
and regular management reports. In recognition of our commitment
to food safety, we were awarded the 2011 Award for Outstanding
Contribution in Food Safety & Public Health — Trust 100 organized by
the China Business Network and the Shanghai Media Group.

As competition continued to intensify, we had to ensure our product
prices remain competitive. We surveyed the prices of similar products
of our competitors nearby regularly and the findings form basis of the
price adjustment.

We continued to expand our direct sourcing bases to deliver more

sustainable, safe products and allow the farmers to retain more profit
while lowering the overall cost to our customers.
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R _F——%+"H+/H > Union Growth
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

We continued to work closely with our suppliers to improve customer
shopping experience through product innovation, co-brand marketing
activity and customer centricity. We successfully rolled out joint
business plan with 22 selected strategic partners to all our stores
and we will continue to expand this strategic partnership with more
suppliers and strengthen our relationship through resource sharing and
people collaboration. We also continued the development of our shop-
in-shop model to bring in well-known tenants such as Uniglo, Samsung
and Giordano to our sales area to further enhance our offerings.
Although this new model is only featured in two stores in Shanghai
currently, we have plans to develop this model to more stores in 2012.

Improvement of Operation Efficiency

During the year under review, we continued to upgrade and improve
our IT system to increase overall efficiency and reduce costs. We
upgraded the SAP system with enhanced functions and lower
maintenance cost. In response to the government’s requirement, we
enhanced our store and supply chain system which allows us to trace
and manage the supply chains of agricultural products, meat and liquor
at different stages.

Our inventory management team, operation team and the supply
chain team continued to work together to reduce the size of the
store backroom and thus lower the level of inventory carried by better
utilizing our distribution centre network. More deliveries are made
to ensure no out-of-stock. During the year under review, we have
completed the reduction of store backroom of two stores in Shanghai
and one store in Xian.

We understand standardization and simplification are keys to
improving efficiency. We continued to review and streamline our
organization structure in order to remove unnecessary or duplicative
processes and procedures. The Group is also committed to total
guality management (“TQM") to achieve operational excellence.
Currently 28 of our stores and our Shanghai fresh and dry distribution
centres are ISO9001 certified. We will continue to work on improving
and implementing our TQM principles and aim to achieve ISO9001
certificate for most of our stores by the end of 2012.

Continued Store Innovation

Responding to the emergence of a fast growing middle class
population and the quest for better shopping experience of our
customers, the Group continued to renovate and upgrade our stores
to lifestyle concept providing our customers with more varieties and
better quality products. The lease areas have also been upgraded to
bring in more well-known and branded tenants to enhance the one-
stop shopping experience. As of the date of this report, 41 of our 52
stores are lifestyle concept stores.

Optimisation of Supply Chain Management

We have one of the largest and most advanced distribution centre
network in China and we continued to develop and upgrade its
hardware and software to support our operation and expansion and
our customers are able to enjoy safe, and hygienic products with our
fresh distribution centre providing unbroken cold chain from vendors
to stores on a 24-7 basis. The Group plans to open a new 40,000 sgm
distribution centre in Shantou which is expected to be operational
in 2013 and will cover the stores in east Guangdong and Hunan
provinces.
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Social Responsibility

Observing the business mission — “For the Country, For the People
and For the Company”, the Group continued to be actively involved in
community, focusing on helping and developing people. Following the
severe flooding that devastated Thailand last year, with the generosity
of our staff, the Group donated over RMB1.1 million towards the
cause. We continued to make donation to Fudan University, Tsing Hua
University and Shanghai Jiao Tong University to sponsor their MBA
programs. Other social activities include giving out stationeries and
books to kids in the rural area and assisting the farmers in Shandong to
sell their cabbages in our stores.

People Development

As at 31 December 2011, the Group employed a total of approximately
15,800 employees of which 1,600 were head office staff and 14,200
were store employees.

Training and development is one of the Group’s strategic priorities
in attracting, developing and retaining a knowledgeable and skilled
workforce in. The Group launched its first action learning leadership
program, Leaders Developing Leaders Program (“LDL"), focusing on
improving and developing comprehensive leadership capability of
the middle level managers. The concept is to combine teaching in a
class and action learning of real projects, allowing the participants to
apply what has been learnt into practice. Total 37 middle managers
were selected and grouped into six cross-functional projects. These six
projects are real business projects aiming to help solve real life issues
or challenges, to improve efficiency or effectiveness, or create new
business opportunities with data analysis. There were three workshops
held and the final project review session is scheduled in April 2012.

In the business of budget process, we continued to reinforce the
performance processes with focus on developing the key performance
indicators (“KPI1”) for all functions. Each function has completed
putting together its own KPI in accordance with the Group’s business
strategy and objective.

LOOKING FORWARD

Uncertainties still linger in the world economy despite signs of
stabilization recently. We believe the outlook remains challenging
but the Group is confident in the long term prospects of the China’s
economy. Chinese government announced an economic growth
rate target of 7.5%, which, although a slight drop from 8% in the
previous years, is among the highest in the world’s major economies.
The government also signaled the cut in reliance of export and capital
spending in favour of consumption. China reported an inflation of
3.2% in February 2012, the slowest inflation in 20 months and easing
pressure on the cost of sales.

We will continue to expand our retail network, upgrade and renovate
existing store portfolios, improve merchandise mix and increase
productivity and efficiency to deliver a compelling in-store experience
that drives profitable growth in 2012. We will continue our strategy
to align talent, space, processes and technology to meet the changing
demand of our customers and deliver sustainable growth.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Company is committed to maintaining the highest standards of
corporate governance that properly protect and promote the interests
of all shareholders at all times. The Board believes that good corporate
governance practices are the cornerstones for a successful business,
not an exercise in compliance.

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

The Board regularly reviews the Group’s corporate governance
guidelines and practices. During the year, the Company has applied the
principles and complied with all the relevant code provisions prescribed
in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices as set out in Appendix
14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) except that the
Chairman did not attend the annual general meeting held on 15 June
2011 due to other important business engagement which deviated
from code provision E.1.2.

THE BOARD

The Board is accountable to the shareholders for the leadership and
control of the Company and is collectively responsible for promoting
the success of the Company and its businesses. The Board decides
on corporate strategies and supervises the financial performance,
management and organisation on behalf of the shareholders.

The Board delegates the authority and responsibility for implementing
day-to-day operations, business strategies and management of
the Group’s businesses to certain executive directors and senior
management and certain specific responsibilities to the Board
committees.

Board Composition

As at the date of this Report, the Board comprises of fifteen
members, twelve are executive directors (including a Chairman, an
Executive Chairman & Chief Executive Officer (“CEQ") and four Vice
Chairmen) and three are independent non-executive directors. Detailed
biographies of the directors can be found on pages 24 to 26 of this
annual report.

The title of Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont has been changed from Vice
Chairman to Executive Chairman with effect from 1 January 2012.
Messrs. Michael Ross and Yang Xiaoping have been re-designated as
Vice Chairmen respectively with effect from 1 January 2012.

Confirmation has been received from all independent non-executive
directors that they are independent as required by the Listing Rules.

Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer

Although Mr. Dhanin Chearavanont is the father of Mr. Soopakij
Chearavanont, the roles of Chairman and CEO of the Company are
clearly segregated with a view to maintain an effective segregation
of duties between management of the Board and day-to-day
management of the Group’s business.
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Mr. Dhanin Chearavanont is the Chairman of the Company. He is
responsible for overseeing the function of the Board and formulating
overall strategies and policies of the Company and providing leadership
to the Board so that the Board works efficiently and discharges its
responsibilities and that all key and appropriate issues are discussed by
the Board in a timely manner.

Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont is the CEO & Executive Chairman of the
Company and is responsible for managing the Group’s business and
operations.

Board and Committee Attendance

The Board held five regular meetings in 2011. Details of the attendance
of each individual director at Board meetings and committee meetings
during 2011 are set out below:

W REETIRAFTZ L - HAREEES
2 2y 8 Bt T A4 ) R SR e BLBOSR - 4R
A ROR M T AR B AT > BT
AT R A o I o O I B o

WENLBETIAAFAZERRPGTRIESER -
e BT A AR T 2 S e B

HEPARZRTZ MM R

ERGR F - ERT IO g o A
EHRR R - FANFERITRLATHY
TR

No. of meetings attended/held

L) Y 2in:f P {G|

Remuneration Audit
Directors Board Committee Committee
W W FMEHE BHER®
Executive Directors AT
Mr. Dhanin Chearavanont B RAe 2k 2/5 - -
Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont EIEPN e 5/5 171 -
Mr. Narong Chearavanont Heh A 3/5 - 1/2
Mr. Li Wen Hai 2l e 3/5 - -
Mr. Meth Jiaravanont A e ek 4/5 - -
Mr. Michael Ross BRIESA 4/5 - -
Mr. Yang Xiaoping BT 5k 0/5 - -
Mr. Umroong Sanphasitvong Umroong Sanphasitvongg4: 5/5 1/1 2/2
Mr. Robert Ping-Hsien Ho fi P& SE 2k 5/5 - -
Mr. Suphachai Chearavanont AR de A 2/5 - -
Mr. Piyawat Titasattavorakul Piyawat Titasattavorakulsa‘t 3/5 - 172
Mr. Shih Hong-Mo i e R 2/5 - -
Independent Non-Executive M JE#if7#5

Directors

Mr. Viroj Sangsnit Viroj SangsnitJa4: 4/5 1/1 2/2
Mr. Chokchai Kotikula Chokchai KotikulaZg: 3/5 171 12
Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo TRAR A S 2k 5/5 1/1 2/2
No. of meetings Bk EH 5 1 2

Mr. Dhanin Chearavanont is the father of Messrs. Soopakij
Chearavanont, Narong Chearavanont and Suphachai Chearavanont.
He is an uncle of Mr. Meth Jiaravanont. Mr. Dhanin Chearavanont is
the father-in-law of Mr. Michael Ross. Messrs. Soopakij Chearavanont,
Narong Chearavanont and Suphachai Chearavanont are brothers.
They are the cousins of Mr. Meth Jiaravanont. Mr. Michael Ross
is the brother-in-law of Messrs. Soopakij Chearavanont, Narong
Chearavanont and Suphachai Chearavanont and cousin-in-law of
Mr. Meth Jiaravanont. Save as disclosed above, there are no family
relationships among members of the Board.
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Securities Transactions by Officers

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing
Rules (the “Model Code”) as the code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by directors. Having made specific enquiry of all directors,
they confirmed that they have fully complied with the required
standards as set out in the Model Code. Officers/femployees deemed
to be in possession of unpublished price-sensitive or confidential
information in relation to the Company or its shares are required to
prohibit from dealing in securities of the Company in accordance with
written guidelines.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal

Appointment of new directors is a matter for consideration by
the Board. It reviews the profiles of the candidates and makes
recommendations on the appointment, re-election and retirement of
directors. During the year, there was no resignation and appointment
of directors.

The executive directors are not appointed for a specific term. The
independent non-executive directors are appointed for successive term
of one year each. All the directors are subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election by shareholders at general meeting of the Company, in
accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company.

Directors who are appointed by the Board must retire at the next
following general meeting/annual general meeting after their
appointments, but they are eligible for re-election at that general
meeting, and such election is separate from the normal retirement
of directors by rotation. According to the Articles of Association of
the Company, at least one-third of the directors who have served the
longest on the Board from last re-election are required to retire by
rotation at each annual general meeting. The retiring directors are
eligible for re-election at the same annual general meeting.

BOARD COMMITTEES

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee consists of three independent non-executive
directors of the Company, Messrs. Cheng Yuk Wo (Chairman), Viroj
Sangsnit and Chokchai Kotikula with the purpose of monitoring the
integrity of the Group’s financial statements and provides assurances
to the Board that these comply with accounting standards, stock
exchange and legal requirements in relation to financial reporting. The
Audit Committee met twice in 2011 to review work done by internal
and external auditors, oversees financial reporting system and internal
control procedures. The Committee receives updates from Internal
Audit and has dialogue with senior management on their control
responsibilities. Written terms of reference is posted on the Company’s
website.
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During the year under review, the remuneration paid/payable to the
Group’s external auditors, Messrs. KPMG is set out as follows:

WP AR R s AS SR B A HE A AN A
fill — 52 K5 €7 w1 P e A

Fee Paid/Payable
AP TiE -]
2011

S
(RMB'000)
(NR¥FIL)

A A B
Fo A e B

Audit Services
Other Services

3,550
729

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee consists of Messrs. Soopakij
Chearavanont (Chairman), Umroong Sanphasitvong and the three
independent non-executive directors, Messrs. Viroj Sangsnit, Chokchai
Kotikula and Cheng Yuk Wo. The main roles and responsibilities of the
Remuneration Committee are set out by the Board with clearly defined
written terms of reference is posted on the Company’s website. The
Remuneration Committee is responsible for the formulation of the
Group’s remuneration policies and for the approval of remuneration
packages for all directors except that its members do not participate
in the determination of their own remuneration. The Remuneration
Committee met once in 2011 to discharge its duties. Details of the
directors’ emoluments are set out in Note 7 to the financial statements.

INTERNAL CONTROL, RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board is responsible for managing business and operational risks
and maintaining a proper and effective system of internal control
to safeguard the shareholders’ investment and the Group’s assets
against unauthorised use or disposition. The Group has adopted
comprehensive procedures with duly assigned levels of authority in
areas of financial, operational controls, and risk management to ensure
that its assets and resources remain secure at all times.

The role of the Audit Committee is, through dialogue with
management, and the use of risk management and internal audit
functions to review the effectiveness of the internal control systems
and to report to the Board any significant risks and issues.

Risk Management is responsible for analysing possible risks that may
affect the Company’s business operations; find measures to eliminate,
prevent and control risk. The Company has invested in distribution
centre and information technology systems such as the store
management system and the distribution centre system. Information
technology has played a major role in assisting the Company to
achieve higher efficiency in data storage and analysis. Therefore, an
error or problem in the information technology systems will affect the
Company’s ability to manage store operation on a normal basis and
may negatively affect the Company’s operating performance.

22 C.P. Lotus Corporation « NEERERLT

HMZERE

FiZ B g mEE A4 () ~ Umroong
SanphasitvongEE R =MW LR HATHE H
Viroj Sangsnitf&4: ~ Chokchai KotikulassZ:
R AALR - HMEH o2 BERBRC
B e 27) SRS AR O ) A8 il 2 WM A I o % B
£ T A B T 0 T SR R ol B A
ZHMAE - B EBEAT2HEBEEHEAZ
Fi o HMEHFR AR REH®
VAJBAT FLUR I o 3 S5 300 TN 5 155 sl % S 25 ik o
k7 o

P~ A

B Vb 5

I O A B R B T R B > 3 AR
A 28 P9 0 B 2 B > DA i Je SR 2 B
ACHR B SRR AR AT WD SR o AR
PR A T RR Y o B BB~ T B R
e A L O ) T M B SRN o TEAR A S
HE R F IR ER B R -

W B G A 07808 B P 2 B > I A
B AT L B A B S v I TR AL KRG 5 DA A P T
S5 42 ) B2 2 BB L 1 o B AT R K
B B ] o

Je I A B AR £ A T T RS A A W SR B
I AR R B > P B~ FE B M R R B
M o A T CLBE R B P 0 BB R R
B> W0k A BLR A ML R O R AR o H AR
B S AN ] IE B 2 WO R AR A B ROR
ARRRH B o I > AR R A B ek ]
R R R A R R AR A B &
2 Rey > WA A ] 8 AR B R
W



Corporate Governance Report

The internal audit department is fully independent of business
operations. It has full and complete access to any of the Company’s
records, physical properties and personnel relevant to a review. The
authority of the department is defined by the Audit Committee and
reports administratively to the CEO and functionally to the Audit
Committee.

The objective of operation audit is to provide an independent and
objective evaluation of the quality and effectiveness of store operations
including internal controls established by the management. Each store
has to go through a monthly detailed inspection of key operating
activities such as cash movement, goods receiving, claims and
payments. Storewide physical counts are carried out at least once a
year. The operation audit department reports to the CFO.

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the preparation of
financial statements which give a true and fair view of the Group’s
state of affairs. Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDER
AND INVESTORS

Effective communication with shareholders and investors and the
provision of high standards of disclosure and financial transparency
have always been one of the Group’s priorities. A number of formal
communication channels are available to shareholders for the
performance of the Group including the annual and interim report and
the press release and announcements. Annual general meeting and
other general meetings provide a useful opportunity for the Board to
maintain a constructive dialogue with our shareholders.

The Group is committed to maintain continuing open dialogue with
institutional investors and analysts as a means of developing their
understanding of our strategy, operations, management and plans and
raising any issues they may have and provide the Group with valuable
feedbacks and insights.

The Company has its company website http://www.cplotuscorp.hk
which provides additional channel for shareholders and interested
parties to access the Group’s information.
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Biographical Details of Directors

EESEEFR

Mr. Dhanin Chearavanont, aged 72, has been appointed as
Executive Director and Chairman of the Company since 31 December
2009. He is also the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the
Charoen Pokphand Group. Mr. Dhanin Chearavanont has extensive
experience in establishing and operating businesses in Asia, Europe
and USA. He is an executive director and Chairman of C.P. Pokphand
Co. Ltd. (“CPP"), a company listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“SEHK"”). Mr. Dhanin Chearavanont
is also the Chairman of Charoen Pokphand Foods Public Company
Limited, True Corporation Public Company Limited (“TRUE”) and CP
ALL Public Company Limited (“CPALL"”) and an advisor to the board of
directors of Siam Makro Public Company Limited, which are companies
listed on The Stock Exchange of Thailand (“SET").

Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont, aged 48, has been an Executive
Director and Chairman of the Company since 2000. He was
re-designated as Chief Executive Officer & Executive Vice Chairman
of the Company with effect from 1 May 2008. His title of Executive
Vice Chairman was changed to Vice Chairman with effect from 1
September 2010. The title of Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont has been
changed from Vice Chairman to Executive Chairman with effect from 1
January 2012. He is also the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
of the Company. Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont obtained a Bachelor of
Science degree in the College of Business and Public Administration of
New York University, USA and has extensive multinational investment
and management experience in various industries. He is an executive
director and Vice Chairman of CPP, a company listed on the Main
Board of SEHK. Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont is also a director of TRUE
and CPALL, which are companies listed on SET. He is also the Chairman
of True Visions Public Company Limited.

Mr. Narong Chearavanont, aged 46, has been an Executive
Director of the Company since 2001. He was re-designated as Vice
Chairman of the Company in September 2006. He obtained a Bachelor
of Science degree in Business Administration from New York University,
USA, Certificate of Advance Management Program in Transforming
Proven Leaders into Global Executives from Harvard Business School,
Harvard University, USA and an Honorary Doctorate degree of Business
Administration from Ramkamhaeng University, Thailand. Mr. Narong
Chearavanont has extensive experience in the retail and trading
industries. He is a director of TRUE and CPALL, which are companies
listed on SET. Mr. Narong Chearavanont is also a director of True
Visions Cable Public Company Limited.

Mr. Michael Ross, aged 47, has been an Executive Director of the
Company since September 2006. He was re-designated as Executive
Vice Chairman of the Company with effect from 1 May 2008 and
ceased to hold such position with effect from 1 September 2010. Mr.
Ross has been re-designated as Vice Chairman of the Company with
effect from 1 January 2012. He obtained a Master degree in Science
from University of Salford, United Kingdom and a Bachelor degree in
Hospitality Management from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University,
Hong Kong. He has completed an Executive Program at the Kennedy
School of Government of Harvard University in USA in 2009. He has
extensive experience in retail business. Since joining Lotus Supercenter
in 1999, he had served in major key positions in Business Development,
Operations and Merchandising. During this period, Mr. Ross had also
served as Regional President in Southern Region & Eastern Region of
Lotus.
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Biographical Details of Directors

Mr. Yang Xiaoping, aged 48, has been an Executive Director of the
Company since April 2000. He was re-designated as Vice Chairman
of the Company with effect from 14 May 2007 and ceased to hold
such position with effect from 1 September 2010. Mr. Yang has been
re-designated as Vice Chairman of the Company with effect from 1
January 2012. He has more than 20 years’ of extensive experience
in the international trading and investment in the PRC and has good
contact with central, provincial and municipal governors.

Mr. Li Wen Hai, aged 54, has been an Executive Director of the
Company since September 2006. He was re-designated as Vice
Chairman of the Company with effect from 18 April 2008. Mr. Li
obtained a Master degree in Business Administration from Huazhong
Normal University, PRC and is a senior economist. He has extensive
experience in retail business.

Mr. Meth Jiaravanont, aged 53, has been an Executive Director
of the Company since 2005. He obtained a Bachelor of Arts degree
in Economics from Occidental College, California, USA and a Master
degree in Business Administration from New York University, USA. Mr.
Jiaravanont has extensive experience in investment, finance, banking
and strategic business development in Asia and USA. He is currently
a non-executive director of CPP, a company listed on the Main Board
of SEHK. He is currently also the Senior Executive Assistant to the
Chairman-Finance of Charoen Pokphand Group Company Limited and
a director of CPPC Public Company Limited.

Mr. Umroong Sanphasitvong, aged 59, has been an Executive
Director of the Company since 2005. He was appointed as a member
of the Remuneration Committee of the Company in December 2006.
He obtained a Bachelor and a Master degree in Accounting from
Thammasat University, Thailand and has extensive experience in
financial management. Mr. Sanphasitvong is currently a director of
TRUE, CPALL, which are companies listed on SET, and of CPPC Public
Company Limited. He is also the Deputy Group Chief Financial Officer
of Charoen Pokphand Group Company Limited.

Mr. Robert Ping-Hsien Ho, aged 63, has been an Executive
Director of the Company since 2000. He obtained a Bachelor of
Business Administration degree from College of Law, National
Taiwan University. Mr. Ho has more than 30 years’ of experience in
management and finance. He is currently an executive director of CPP,
a company listed on the Main Board of SEHK, and the Chief Financial
Officer, International of the Charoen Pokphand Group.

Mr. Suphachai Chearavanont, aged 45, has been an Executive
Director of the Company since 2000. He obtained a Bachelor of
Science degree in Business Administration from Boston University in
USA, majoring in Financial Management. Mr. Suphachai Chearavanont
has extensive experience in the telecommunication and broadcasting
industries. He is an executive director of CPP, a company listed on
the Main Board of SEHK and a director, President and Chief Executive
Officer of TRUE, which is a company listed on SET. Mr. Suphachai
Chearavanont is also a director and Chief Executive Officer of True
Visions Public Company Limited and True Move Company Limited.
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Mr. Piyawat Titasattavorakul, aged 58, has been appointed
as Executive Director of the Company since 1 September 2010.
He obtained a Bachelor Degree majoring in Marketing from
Ramkhamhaeng University, Thailand. He has extensive experience in
marketing and retail business. Mr. Titasattavorakul is the President of
CPALL, a company listed on SET.

Mr. Shih Hong-Mo, aged 58, has been appointed as Executive Director
of the Company since 1 September 2010. He graduated from National
Tsing Hua University, Taiwan. He has extensive experience in retail
business. Mr. Shih is currently the Chief Executive Officer of Shanghai
Kinghill Limited and Chia Tai Commercial Real Estate Management Co.,
Ltd. He is also the Vice Chairman of Lotus (China Area). He was a General
Manager of Taiwan Pacific Sogo Department Stores (North China Area).

Mr. Viroj Sangsnit, aged 76, has been an Independent Non-
Executive Director of the Company and a member of Audit Committee
of the Company since 1999. He is also a member of Remuneration
Committee of the Company. Mr. Sangsnit was the Deputy Minister of
Transport from 1991 to 1992 and the Deputy of Minister of Defense in
1996 in Thailand.

Mr. Chokchai Kotikula, aged 73, has been an Independent Non-
Executive Director of the Company and a member of Audit Committee
of the Company since 1999. He is also a member of Remuneration
Committee of the Company. Mr. Kotikula is the Chairman of the
Bangkok Law Office & Associates, Luang Thepnarin Law Office and
Thep Law Office and Advisor to Deputy Minister of Ministry of Interior
in Thailand.

Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo, aged 51, has been an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company and the Chairman of the Audit Committee
of the Company since 2004. He is also a member of the Remuneration
Committee of the Company. Mr. Cheng obtained a Master of Science
(Economics) degree, majoring in Accounting and Finance from London
School of Economics, England and a Bachelor of Arts (Honours) degree in
Accounting from University of Kent, England. He is a Fellow of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and a member of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Ontario, Canada. Mr. Cheng has over 20 years’
of expertise in accounting, finance and corporate advisory services.

Mr. Cheng is currently an executive director of 21 Holdings Limited.
He is currently also an independent non-executive director of CSI
Properties Limited, Chong Hing Bank Limited, HKC (Holdings) Limited,
Goldbond Group Holdings Limited, CPMC Holdings Limited, Imagi
International Holdings Limited and Top Spring International Holdings
Limited, the abovementioned companies are listed on the Main Board
of SEHK, and of South China Land Limited, which is listed on the GEM
Board of SEHK.

Mr. Dhanin Chearavanont is the father of Messrs. Soopakij
Chearavanont, Narong Chearavanont and Suphachai Chearavanont.
He is an uncle of Mr. Meth Jiaravanont and the father-in-law of Mr.
Michael Ross. Messrs. Soopakij Chearavanont, Narong Chearavanont
and Suphachai Chearavanont are brothers. They are the cousins
of Mr. Meth Jiaravanont. Mr. Michael Ross is the brother-in-law of
Messrs. Soopakij Chearavanont, Narong Chearavanont and Suphachai
Chearavanont and cousin-in-law of Mr. Meth Jiaravanont. Save as
disclosed above, there are no family relationships between any director
or senior management of the Company.

26

C.P. Lotus Corporation « NEERERLT

Piyawat Titasattavorakul’tZk > 585% > H
R -FEILAHHEAARAF ZHATE
H o H ¥ B Ramkhamhaeng UniversityZ
TR R B - AR TS EHRTE
EWZERBE - Titasattavorakuld 4 81 %
CPALL (—Z R AR AR 5 i Eili 2 A w]) Z 483 -

MR WA > 585% 0 H ZF FESLAHHE
ERARN T ZPATESR « PLRIET 7 8 B L
HERE o HEA T EH WS - ik
B B AR B R PR ) R TE K T 3 5 b
A RAF ZERATR 0% bk
6 (P B Z B R o 08 % 6 8P 5%
Yo & (P BALTT ) Z BALEE o

Viroj Sangsnit/tZ: » 765% » H —LILL4E
AR 2 AR 2 W) 2 IS IR AT o AR A ] 2B
WZ B R » DR R AR A R Z 2 B R
B o Sangsnit BER— L —E— UL ZEH
A 2% 1 L W 0 ) R B — LU AR AR AR
I [ 3 R o

Chokchai KotikulajtZ: - 735 - H—JLjujL
MR ARA R Z BT ERE KRR AT Z
FEHREEBGHE B RARARZHMEE G
B B - KotikulaaZk Bl ZsBangkok Law Office
& Associates ~ Luang Thepnarin Law Office
KThep Law Officez i & 7 [0 9 BU &S /I 38 =
Z R o

WHAEA - 5158 » A “BRWENERAKL
AZB IR EFRAAFZERETHGE
Ji§ o TP R A Wl Z 2 H B o MBS
T A 5 B i BOOK B 2K I B e B B2 (AL ) AH
(BBt kamh) KL ERHRBER R
BB A B o A5 T S A B TR 91 4 T L
il 207 B AR WS St i & Z B H > A 2
ERERWE B Gt AT ZTE - Wk
BEA AR R i R A SR R
B, o

WS BI A 21 A RA T Z ATE S - B
I A SR 2 AT RN W) > A BLERAT A PR A
Al AR () AR~ S5 Mk
AR T~ o e A R W~ RS
3 JBEA IR 2 ) e A 5 o It 5 T A B A W) 2 B8 o
FERfTE S (DL E NS 2 & B AR Bl
AT o BN A e E AT B ] (— SO
R RIZER BT Z AF) Z WL JEATES

A B B 5 A T S NS A~ R 8 e A S o
156t 2 B« T AR S A 2 A AR S A AR
NESE A 2 5 A o il NSk - i 8 i e Il
SRS TS L Z BAR > SE T R e
A o MRS AT NSk - e i e
B it 6547 56 A 2 B K T it v AR S A 2 BB o
B DA B9 8R 8 A > A W) 2 AT A o AR A
BN B RO 26 1 Jag B A%



The Directors present their annual report and the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2011.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Through its
subsidiaries, the Company is principally engaged in the operation of
large scale one-stop shopping centers, Lotus Supercenters located in
the northern, southern and eastern parts of China.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2011 are set
out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on page
40 of the financial statements.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend in respect
of the year (2010: Nil).

FIXED ASSETS

During the year, the Group spent approximately RMB209,000,000 on
additions of fixed assets mainly for opening of new stores and store
renovation.

Details of movements in the fixed assets during the year are set out in
note 12 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 28 to
the financial statements.

On 23 December 2011, 3,673,765,764 Series C convertible preference
shares were issued at a price of HK$0.22 per share under the open
offer, for a total gross proceeds of HK$808,228,468.08.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, distributions
shall be payable out of the profits of the Company. Accordingly,
the Company has distributable reserves of HK$1,032,956,000
(equivalent to RMB943,352,000) as at 31 December 2011 (2010:
HK$1,124,405,000 (equivalent to RMB1,019,161,000)).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s five largest customers
accounted for less than 30% of the Group's total turnover for the year.

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest
suppliers accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s total purchases
for the year.

Save for certain transactions disclosed in the section entitled
“Connected Transactions” and “Continuing Connected Transactions”
in this report, none of the Directors, their associates, or any
shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than
5% of the Company’s share capital) of the Company has any interest in
the Group’s five largest customers and suppliers.
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DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Dhanin Chearavanont
Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont
Mr. Narong Chearavanont
Mr. Michael Ross

Mr. Yang Xiaoping

Mr. Li Wen Hai

Mr. Meth Jiaravanont

Mr. Umroong Sanphasitvong
Mr. Robert Ping-Hsien Ho
Mr. Suphachai Chearavanont
Mr. Piyawat Titasattavorakul
Mr. Shih Hong-Mo

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Mr. Viroj Sangsnit
Mr. Chokchai Kotikula
Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo

In accordance with Article 116 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Messrs. Soopakij Chearavanont, Narong Chearavanont, Li
Wen Hai, Umroong Sanphasitvong and Cheng Yuk Wo, will retire by
rotation and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting (“AGM"). Details of the directors
proposed to be re-elected at the forthcoming AGM have been set out
in the relevant circular to be despatched to the shareholders of the
Company.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has
a service contract which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

The independent non-executive directors of the Company are
appointed for successive term of one year each and are subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at the AGM of the Company in
accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association.

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
(the "Listing Rules”) and considers all of the independent non-
executive directors are independent.

DIRECTORS" REMUNERATION

Details of directors’ remuneration are set out in note 7 to the financial
statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance, to which the Company, its holding
company or subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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COMPETING INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2011, the directors were not aware that any of
the directors has interest in any business which competes or is likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group
which falls to be disclosed under the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES OR DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2011, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any associated corporation
(within the meaning of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO"))
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) were as
follows:

(i) Director’s interests in shares of associated corporations
Name of
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Number of ordinary Approximate percentage

Name of Director associated corporation shares held of shareholding
R4 B BEBERY

HHAR UG % M 4 e % H Lif/ g
Mr. Dhanin Chearavanont Charoen Pokphand Group 228,277,810 12.96%
I R A Company Limited

Kinghill Limited 8,403,137 2.80%
Mr. Yang Xiaoping Kinghill Limited 142,857 0.05%
BTtk
Mr. Li Wen Hai Kinghill Limited 142,857 0.05%
&gy
Mr. Umroong Sanphasitvong Charoen Pokphand Foods Public 1,400,000 0.02%
Umroong Sanphasitvong /e 4 Company Limited

P £r A3 A AT (KR
Mr. Robert Ping-Hsien Ho Kinghill Limited 71,429 0.02%
-8 5t 2
Mr. Piyawat Titasattavorakul Charoen Pokphand Foods Public 700,000 0.01%
Piyawat Titasattavorakul &4 Company Limited

PR SER AT (KR
Mr. Shih Hong-Mo Kinghill Limited 100,000 0.05%
MR et

(i)  Directors’ interests in share options granted by the Company  (ii) 3 3¢ & A 2 vl 2 i BBl 4 2%

Pursuant to the share option scheme adopted by the Company
on 31 May 2002 (the “Scheme”), the Company had on 6 June
2002, 10 November 2003 and 24 May 2005 granted to certain
Directors of the Company the rights to subscribe for ordinary
shares in the capital of the Company at exercise prices of
HK$0.07, HK$0.19 and HK$0.11 per share respectively. Under
the terms of the Scheme, adjustments to the exercise price and
number of outstanding share options were made from the date
of completion of the open offer on 23 December 2011. The
details of the directors’ interests in share options are as follows:
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,

UNDERLYING SHARES OR DEBENTURES

(Continued)
(i)  Directors’ interests in share options granted by the Company  (ii)  #35 A A 2 6 2 i BB B 2% (&%)
(Continued)
Number of share options
Exercise
price/
adjusted Granted  Exercised  Cancelled Lapsed Asat31
exercise Asat 1 during during during during  December
Name of directors Date of grant Exercisable period price  January 2011 the year the year the year the year 201
i/ %4
L1 AN S W Iy BT KR 12
TER gnm fifmB Ttk —~f=H #ih itk it ] b3 2t
HKS
7
Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont 6 June 2002 6 June 2002 to 0.07/ 59,966,144 - - - - 61,080,066
5 June 2012 0.0687
EEIN FRE SRECENAAH
AIRE ERE-TERARN
10 November 2003 10 November 2003 to 0.19/ 59,966,144 - - - - 61,080,066
9 November 2013 0.1865
i < S BRI
PRt ESR-E-RAR
24 May 2005 24 May 2005 to 0.1/ 59,966,144 - - - - 61,080,066
23 May 2015 0.1080
CRRLE CEBRELACTNA
ERAZAME  BCF-AELACEEH
Mr. Narong Chearavanont 6 June 2002 6 June 2002 0.07 59,966,144 - - - - 61,080,066
t0 5 June 2012 0.0687
EE] ka “%%C ZRRZENMIAR
AR E-F-CEARLH
10 November 2003 10 November 2003 to 0.19 59,966,144 - - - - 61,080,066
9 November 2013 0.1865
o = CREZE-R
AR F2R-SFT-AR
24 May 2005 24 May 2005 to 0.1/ 59,966,144 - - - - 61,080,066
23 May 2015 0.1080
CEREE CERLELACTWNA
EAZHME FCE-LELACEER
Mr. Yang Xiaoping 6 June 2002 6 June 2002 to 0.07 59,966,144 - - - - 61,080,066
5 June 2012 0.0687
BMERA 332 ZERRTERAR
AIRE EE-TEAAER
10 November 2003 10 November 2003 to 0.19/ 59,966,144 - - - - 61,080,066
9 November 2013 0.1865
RRzE ZRREEF-AH
Tt ESR-ZET-AAR
24 May 2005 24 May 2005 to 0.1/ 59,966,144 - - - - 61,080,066
23 May 2015 0.1080
CERLE CRRRERAZLER
TAZHME  BCF-LELACLZH
Mr. Meth Jiaravanont 24 May 2005 24 May 2005 to 01/ 59,966,144 - - - - 61,080,066
23 May 2015 0.1080
WL CERRE CRRLELACAWA
EAZTEA  ESF-RERACHER
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES OR DEBENTURES
(Continued)

(i)

Directors’ interests in share options granted by the Company
(Continued)
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(i) PR AR 2 v 2 0 B B 4 (%)

Number of share options
Exercise
price/
adjusted Granted  Exercised  Cancelled Lapsed Asat31
exercise Asat1 during during during during  December
Name of directors Date of grant Exercisable period price  January 2011 the year the year the year the year 201
fileh/ gk

13 PR e S L] ERH RN ERRH +20

TER gnm frbEmm Ttk —=f=H #ih fifk it ] b3 2t
HK$
®
Mr. Umroong Sanphasitvong 6 June 2002 6 June 2002 to 0.07/ 59,966,144 - - - - 61,080,066
5 June 2012 0.0687
Umroong Sanphasitvong ik RRCE ZRRZERARR
AARH EZR-ZEARLR
10 November 2003 10 November 2003 to 0.19/ 59,966,144 - - - - 61,080,066
9 November 2013 0.1865

ZERCE “RREEL-REN
t=AtH ESF-ZET-AAR

24 May 2005 24 May 2005 to 0.1/ 59,966,144 - - - - 61,080,066

23 May 2015 0.1080
CRRLE CEBRELACTHA
TAZFNE FZF-RERAZEER

Mr. Robert Ping-Hsien Ho 6 June 2002 6 June 2002 to 0.07/ 59,966,144 - - - - 61,080,066
5 June 2012 0.0687
P gL FRE CEETEAAAN
AANH EZR-ZEARLA
10 November 2003 10 November 2003 to 0.19/ 59,966,144 - - - - 61,080,066
9 November 2013 0.1865

ZERCE s S AN
At ESF-ZET-AAR

24 May 2005 24 May 2005 to 0.1/ 59,966,144 - - - - 61,080,066

23 May 2015 0.1080
CRRLE CEBRELACTHA
TAZFNE F2F-RERAZEER

Mr. Suphachai Chearavanont 6 June 2002 6 June 2002 to 0.07/ 59,966,144 - - - - 61,080,066
5 June 2012 0.0687
[ EW L < ZRRCERARA
AANH F2R-TEARLH
10 November 2003 10 November 2003 to 0.19/ 59,966,144 - - - - 61,080,066
9 November 2013 0.1865

CERZE s S AN
T=RtH ESF-ZET-ARE

24 May 2005 24 May 2005 to 0.1/ 59,966,144 - - - - 61,080,066

23 May 2015 0.1080
CRRLE CEBRELACTHA
TAZFNE FZF-RELAZEER

Total: 44 : 1,139,356,736 - - - - 1,160,521,254

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2011, none of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company had any interest or
short positions in shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any associated corporation (within the meaning of the
SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

WDl B @b > R —F =t
H o> WEMEA A T 2 3 35 R i AT BN B A A
R ST RO s P R 8 S o ) 5 AR B
R SR AR ) 55 35 200 W SE 1 A AR A R B A 2 il
TE 5 sl AR 9 B v e JU R R 0 o A ) e T AR
P Z JBe Ay ~ A B Mty B A o i P B B M
WA -
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PERSONS WHO HAVE AN INTEREST OR SHORT
POSITIONS WHICH IS DISCLOSEABLE UNDER
THE SFO AND SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2011, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of SFO shows
that the following shareholders had notified the Company of the
relevant interests in the issued share capital of the Company:

et

WL 5 b L 2 T e B i
B IR 2 N b B BB

R —-—F+ZH=1—H > KAAAME
e 27 R A9 25 33640k T A7 L 2 BB A4 i P B
& > R BB SR O AR 2 R A B A S i A
L EEAT I A v B A 2 A B e 2

Approximate
Number of percentage of

Name of shareholders Notes shares held shareholding
B A4 B ik AR YH F B BB
"k
(Note 1)
(HfiE1)
C.P. Holding (BVI) Investment C.P. Holding (BVI) Investment
Company Limited (“CPH") Company Limited ([CPH) (2) 15,972,138,394 173.90%
Worth Access Trading Limited ~ Worth Access Trading Limited
("Worth Access”) (T'worth Access]) (2) 15,972,138,394 173.90%
CPG Overseas Company Limited CPG Overseas Company Limited
("CPG Overseas") (T'CPG Overseas]) (2) 15,972,138,394 173.90%
Charoen Pokphand Group Charoen Pokphand Group
Company Limited (“CPG") Company Limited ([CPG]) (2) & (3) 18,183,521,003 197.98%
Whole Sino Limited Whole Sino Limited
("Whole Sino") (Twhole Sino ) A3) 2,211,382,609 24.08%
Bangkok Bank Public BARGHEEMT (RARTD
Company Limited,
Hong Kong Branch (“BBL") (4) 15,972,138,394 173.90%
Krung Thai Bank Public Krung Thai Bank Public
Company Limited (“KTB") Company Limited ([KTB)) (4) 15,972,138,394 173.90%
The Siam Commercial Bank The Siam Commercial Bank
Public Company Limited, Public Company Limited
Hong Kong Branch (“SCB") 417 (TSCBY) (4) 15,972,138,394 173.90%
Thanachart Bank Public Thanachart Bank Public
Company Limited (“TBL") Company Limited ([ TBL]J) (4) 15,972,138,394 173.90%
Notes: P &E: -

(M

The percentages shown are based on the total number of ordinary
shares in issue as at 31 December 2011.

HAWAE R -+ ZA=ZTHZE
BAT IR B BT -

(2) Worth Access had declared an interest in the same 15,972,138,394  (2) Worth Access/A i B B B CPH= % W i [l
shares in which CPH had declared an interest by virtue of Worth Access’ B CPHE A i 215,972,138,394J8 J1t 4
shareholding in CPH whilst CPG Overseas also declared an interest in BEZS o W] > CPG Overseasdh A i A
such number of shares by virtue of its shareholding in Worth Access. Worth Access= JEHET R EEBER 48 A >
CPG had declared an interest in the same 15,972,138,394 shares by U RERS o CPGAMIT Kl 8 CPG Overseas
virtue of its shareholding in CPG Overseas. T8 WE T ) IR BE A 3% 15,972,138,394)8 S 4 B

2% o

(3) CPG had declared an interest in the same 2,211,382,609 shares  (3) CPGAMi A B Whole Sino= Ji Al i [ k5 B
in which Whole Sino had declared an interest by virtue of CPG's HWhole SinoC. AMfi=22,211,382,609/5 ik
shareholding in Whole Sino. Py RERS o

(4) BBL, KTB, SCB and TBL (the “Banks”) had declared an interest in the  (4) FICPHEL & A 4847 ~ KTB ~ SCB&TBL ([ &

same 15,972,138,394 shares in which CPH had declared an interest as
CPH had entered into an agreement with the Banks under section 317
of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified of any

AT ) BT o8 Wk MR R R 5317
B> BERAT A i BELCPHIR BE SR A 2
15,972,138,394)8% JB 4 i % -

KDL b #RE 5h > AAFR R ——F+H

other interests or short positions in the issued share capital of the — = --— | i fE 538 S0 5 B 3L 2 8847 I A v 2 AT
Company as at 31 December 2011. i At B 25 5K A o
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DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE 13.18 OF
LISTING RULES

On 28 December 2009, the Company entered into an agreement
(the “Old Facility Agreement”) with a bank in Thailand pursuant to
the terms and subject to the conditions of which, the Company was
granted a term loan facility of US$145 million which will expire on 31
December 2015. The term loan was repaid on 28 December 2011.

Pursuant to the Old Facility Agreement, it would be an event of
default thereunder if the Company fails to ensure that its controlling
shareholder, the Chearavanont Family (being any one or more of Mr.
Jaran Chiaravanont, Mr. Montri Jiaravanont, Mr. Sumet Jiaravanon and
Mr. Dhanin Chearavanont (or any company or companies controlled by
one or more of them) collectively) at all times maintain their aggregate
shareholding (direct or indirect) in the Company of more than 50%.

On 29 November 2011, the Company entered into an agreement (the
“New Facility Agreement”) with a group of banks in Thailand pursuant
to the terms and subject to the conditions of which, the Company was
granted a term loan facility of US$28 million, the principal outstanding
amount of which is required to be repaid by 12 installments
commencing in June 2013 up to and until December 2018.

Pursuant to the New Facility Agreement, it would be an event of default
thereunder if the controlling shareholder of the Company, CPH fails to
legally and beneficially own (directly or indirectly) at least 51 percent of
the total issued and paid up ordinary shares in the Company. (As at the
date of this report, CPH is interested in approximately 75% of the total
ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each in the capital of the Company in issue.)

The occurrence of the aforesaid event of default would render all
outstanding liabilities of the Company under the Old Facility Agreement
and the New Facility Agreement to become immediately due and payable.

DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE 13.51B(1)
OF LISTING RULES

Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont was a Vice Chairman of the Company. His
title of Vice Chairman has been changed to Executive Chairman with
effect from 1 January 2012.

Messrs. Michael Ross and Yang Xiaoping have been re-designated as
Vice Chairmen of the Company with effect from 1 January 2012.

Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of Top Spring International Holdings Limited on 30 November
2010, which was listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on
23 March 2011.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Connected transaction involving the Disposal

On 2 September 2011, the Company entered into the Disposal
Agreement with Whole Sino for the disposal of Madang Lu Store Business
by Shanghai Lotus Supermarket Chain Store Co., Ltd. (“SLS") to Beijing
C.P. Lotus Supermarket Chain Store Co., Ltd. (AbJE DAL L GH 8
HMRAF]), an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of Whole Sino (the
“Disposal”). The total consideration for the Disposal was calculated as the
sum of the book value of the fixed assets, the costs of inventories and
other assets, less liabilities (if any), owned or held by SLS in relation to the
Madang Lu Store Business, and not in any event to exceed RMB22 million.
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MR Eli BLAN 55131888 A T B
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Connected transaction involving the Disposal (Continued)

The abovementioned transaction was completed on 1 March 2012.
Details of the transaction are set out in the announcement dated
2 September 2011.

Connected transaction involving the Acquisition

On 14 October 2011, the Company entered into the Acquisition
Agreement with Whole Sino for the entire issued share capital of Excel
Worth Limited (“Excel Worth”) and all outstanding shareholder’s loan
due from Excel Worth to Whole Sino and issue of 2,211,382,609 Series
D convertible preference shares as consideration.

The abovementioned transaction was completed on 1 January 2012.
Details of the transaction are set out in the announcement dated 14
October 2011 and the circular dated 1 November 2011.

CPG is, through wholly-owned subsidiaries, interested in approximately
75% in aggregate of the ordinary shares of the Company in issue, and
is therefore a controlling shareholder of the Company. Since Whole
Sino is a wholly-owned subsidiary of CPG, Whole Sino is a connected
person of the Company within the meaning of the Listing Rules. The
Acquisition constituted a connected transaction of the Company and it
was approved by the independent shareholders of the Company at the
extraordinary general meeting on 23 November 2011.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Purchase and Supply Agreements

On 19 October 2010, the Company entered into the OSIL-CCT
Purchase Agreement with Orient Success International Limited (“OSIL")
to purchase certain merchandise from OSIL and OSIL Related Entities
for the term from 1 January 2011 to 31 December 2013.

On 19 October 2010, the Company entered into the 2010 CPH Supply
Agreement with CPH under which any subsidiaries of the Company
would supply certain merchandise to CPH and certain CPH Related
Entities for the term from 1 January 2011 to 31 December 2013.

Leases and Sub-leases

On 19 October 2010, SLS and Shanghai Kinghill Ltd. (LifFw#r74t ke
HMATF) (“Shanghai Kinghill”) entered into the 2010 Super Brand
Mall Lease in relation to a portion of the Super Brand Mall situated
at No. 168 Lujiazui Xi Road, Pudong New District, Shanghai, the PRC,
with a total floor area of approximately 13,500 square meters for the
monthly rental of RMB1,500,000, equivalent to an annual rental of
RMB18,000,000 for the term from 1 January 2011 to 31 December
2013.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Leases and Sub-leases (Continued)

On 19 October 2010, SLS and Chia Tai Commercial Real Estate
Management Co., Ltd. (IEKFZ#FHEFHAMRAR) ("CTCREM")
(on behalf of itself and its wholly-owned subsidiary, I # IF K2k 35 5 £
A BRAHEl(“Shanghai ZDSH")) entered into the SLS Sub-Lease, for the
term from 1 January 2011 to 31 December 2011, for a monthly rental
of RMB1,363,500, equivalent to an annual rental of RMB16,362,000,
plus (i) a commission of 5% on the excess of subletting rental
income received by CTCREM and/or Shanghai ZDSH over the rental
receivable by SLS under the SLS Sub-Lease; (ii) a commission of 15%
on the advertising and promotion income received by Shanghai ZDSH
derived from the property located at Level 1, No. 541 Tian Shan Xi
Lu, Chang Ning District, Shanghai, the PRC, with a total floor area
of approximately 8,600 square meters; and (iii) a commission of
15% on the advertising and promotion income received by CTCREM
derived from the property located at No. 2128 Yang Gao Zhong Lu,
Pudong New District, Shanghai, the PRC, with a total floor area of
approximately 6,447 square meters and an office area of 80 square
meters.

Services Agreements

On 25 March 2010, the Company renewed the Procurement
Services Agreement with CPH. Pursuant to the Procurement Services
Agreement, the Company can by itself or procure other member(s) of
the CP Lotus Group to perform certain purchasing functions for the
CPH Group in relation to products sold by the CPH Non-performing
Stores for a term commencing from 1 January 2010 to 31 December
2012.

On 19 October 2010, the Company entered into the CP Lotus
Consulting Agreement with CTCREM in relation to the provision of
consultancy services by CTCREM to SLS, Beijing Lotus Supermarket
Chain Store Co., Ltd. (“Beijing Lotus”), Guangzhou Lotus Supermarket
Chain Store Co., Ltd. (“Guangzhou Lotus”) and Xian Lotus
Supermarket Chain Store Co., Ltd. (“Xian Lotus”) for certain stores
operated by each of them in Eastern China, Northern China, Southern
China and Xian, respectively from 1 January 2011 to 31 December
2011, with a monthly service fee of no more than RMB597,000.

Details of the abovementioned continuing connected transactions
are set out in the announcements dated 25 March 2010, 19 October
2010 and 14 October 2011 and circulars dated 4 November 2010 and
1 November 2011.

The Chearavanont Shareholders, through CPG, a company in which
they have a combined 51.31% shareholding interest, are interested
in approximately 75% in aggregate of the ordinary shares of the
Company in issue, and are therefore collectively the controlling
shareholders of the Company. As the Chearavanont Shareholders
and their associates, on an aggregate basis, are collectively also the
controlling shareholders of Shanghai Kinghill, CTCREM and OSIL,
Shanghai Kinghill, CTCREM and OSIL are associates of and connected
persons of the Company for the purposes of the Listing Rules. Since
CPH is a wholly-owned subsidiary of CPG, CPH is a connected person
of the Company within the meaning of the Listing Rules.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

The transactions contemplated under each of the renewed
Procurement Services Agreement, the 2010 Super Brand Mall
Lease, the SLS Sub-Lease and the CP Lotus Consulting Agreement
constituted continuing connected transactions exempt from
independent shareholders’ approval but were subject to reporting and
announcement requirements under the Listing Rules.

The transactions contemplated under the OSIL-CCT Purchase
Agreement and the 2010 CPH Supply Agreement constituted non-
exempt continuing connected transactions for the Company within
the meaning of the Listing Rules and they were approved by the
independent shareholders of the Company on 29 November 2010 and
23 November 2011.

The actual transactions and approved annual caps for the
abovementioned continuing connected transaction agreements during
the year from 1 January 2011 to 31 December 2011 are as follows:

5 45 B 2k 22 5 (40)

BB Z PR Tk ~ R R IE K G
B ot ~ g AR 40 AL e B I~ WA SEE A R A T
R 2 22 Gt b i L ) R R G S B R
B E 2 1 A8 2 32 5y I SR i LR
AT R A 2 BURE

OSILFG 4 B 4 &2 5 R M W ik X — T —F 4 CPH
BE 17 i TH T 2 A2 5 M b T AL R R AR A W R
MR EREL Y > YER B —-FF+—
AZt+hHR=F——HF+—HZ+=HEAR
O ) 22 8 S B R e o

S A R 22 S Wk —F 4 —H —H
BEOR-EFTHE A HZE B 5
AR FE R EFRINE

Actual Approved
Transactions  Annual Caps
ML
HEER S i BR
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR T AR 78
Non-exempt continuing connected #1145 F # 35 5 b ik -
transaction agreements:
OSIL-CCT Purchase Agreement OSIL¥ 4 BR 4 A2 5 3% i 175 ok 160,327 273,000
2010 CPH Supply Agreement TR RECPHBL M 17 821,781 850,000
Exempt continuing connected JE B 75 40 B P 5 1 i -
transaction agreements:
2010 Super Brand Mall Lease ZER-REEREGHE T # 18,000 18,000
SLS Sub-Lease kg AE 2 A o vk 17,710 18,200
Procurement Services Agreement PR R 5 ot - 4,687
CP Lotus Consulting Agreement I e 5 A R Y B ek 5,664 7,164

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group's
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements (HKSAE) 3000 “Assurance
Engagements other than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 ”"Auditor’s
letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditors have issued their unqualified
letter containing their findings and conclusions in respect of the
above continuing connected transactions disclosed by the Group
in accordance with Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the
auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock
Exchange.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have
reviewed the continuing connected transactions and confirmed that
the transactions were entered into:

(a) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Company;

(b) on normal commercial terms no less favourable to the Company
than terms available to or from independent third parties; and

(c) in accordance with the relevant agreement governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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ARRANGEMENT TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the sub-section headed “Directors’ interests
in share options granted by the Company” under section headed
“Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in
Shares, Underlying Shares or Debentures” above, at no time during the
year was the Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries,
a party to any arrangement to enable the directors of the Company to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures
of, the Company or any other body corporate.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association or laws of the Cayman lIslands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

The Company has complied with all code provisions set out in the
Code on Corporate Governance Practices contained in Appendix 14
of the Listing Rules during the year except that the Chairman did not
attend the annual general meeting held on 15 June 2011 due to other
important business engagement which deviated from code provision
E.1.2.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises the three independent non-executive
directors of the Company. The Audit Committee has reviewed with
management the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group and discussed internal control and financial reporting matters,
including the review of the financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2011.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors of the Company as at the date
of this report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public float
under the Listing Rules.

AUDITORS

Messrs. KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of Messrs. KPMG
as auditors of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.
On behalf of the Board

Soopakij Chearavanont
Director

Hong Kong, 27 March 2012
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BYXBEHES

Independent auditor’s report to the

shareholders of C.P. Lotus Corporation
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of C.P. Lotus
Corporation (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (together “the
Group”) set out on pages 40 to 112, which comprise the consolidated
and company statements of financial position as at 31 December
2011, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash
flow statement for the year then ended and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Auditor’s responsibility (Continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as
at 31 December 2011 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building

10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

27 March 2012
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

REZTHEHBARRE

For the year ended 31 December 2011 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

BE-Z-——S+-A=1+-HLEFE(UARBTREMN

2011 2010
R4 R R
Note RMB’000 RMB' 000
i ARWT K A R0
Turnover BEW 2 10,019,305 9,374,500
Cost of sales 5 8 Bl A 17 (8,243,734) (7,641,160)
Gross profit EAH 1,775,571 1,733,340
Other revenue oAb i 25 3 377,557 334,677
Other net income oAb e A B 3 17,162 39,417
Distribution and store operating costs T i i 2% I /8 1R AR (1,657,151) (1,565,941)
Administrative expenses TR EN (328,766) (345,006)
Profit from operations BERA 184,373 196,487
Gain on redemption of convertible bonds ][] T 3 f £ 5 2 i ) 4 - 408,487
Finance costs Al A 5(a)
- Interest on convertible bonds — ] B 2R 2 AR - (91,459)
- Other finance costs — F A il B Rl AR (149,687) (172,859)
(149,687) (264,318)
Profit before taxation % B2 i 3 A 5 34,686 340,656
Income tax Fi 3 B 6 (10,926) 8,666
Profit for the year AF B % A 23,760 349,322
Other comprehensive income A1 B i 2 B
for the year (after tax and (B B K o 43 T80 B 4% )
reclassification adjustments)
Exchange differences on translation Besrch 2 N RICAE ([HE )
of financial statements of entities VLA ) B 75 0 2 T B 72
outside the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC") 37,062 43,519
Cash flow hedge: Bl Hop
- Effective portion of changes in fair value — — /A 7 i % 8 2 A 3 3,391 (6,734)
- Reclassified to profit or loss —HAHPIER 5(a) 3,343 -
43,796 36,785
Total comprehensive income AR JBE 2 1 BN B8 8
for the year 67,556 386,107
Profit for the year attributable to: UF A AN 4 e A
Equity shareholders of the Company A8 ] R 23,813 349,322
Non-controlling interests I e I HE 25 (53) -
23,760 349,322
Total comprehensive income for the LR A A AR 2w A
year attributable to:
Equity shareholders of the Company AR\ ) JE 67,609 386,107
Non-controlling interests Ik e It 25 (53) =
67,556 386,107
Earnings per share i It ik A 1
Basic (RMB cents) LY NONLF 0.16 2.68
Diluted (RMB cent) i (ANRW ) 0.15 0.20

The notes on pages 45 to 112 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e 8RR | R

At 31 December 2011 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)
R-Z——F+-A=+-H(UARBTHEN)

31 December 31 December
2011 2010
o F . o 0
+ZH=+—-H | +ZA=+—H
Note RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
W &k ARHET ARKET T
Non-current assets I it ) ¥
Fixed assets [6] € B 2 . 12
- Property, plant and equipment R/ EMN VT 1,530,810 1,523,361
- Interests in leasehold land held for -BEMEZAR L0
own use under operating leases EESD 160,533 166,827
1,691,343 1,690,188
Intangible assets & B 13 201,082 211,795
Goodwill [k 14 2,719,785 2,719,785
Prepaid lease payments for premises BANHERMEL 16 6,000 8,089
Other long-term prepayments LA B 8 7,342 5,549
Deferred tax assets B AL L IF 27(b) 113,717 106,596
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 4,739,269 | 4,742,002
Current assets VL) ¥
Prepaid lease payments for premises BNMENEE 16 11,145 4,584
Inventories Y 17 1,177,056 826,699
Trade and other receivables B T A W 18 580,257 692,159
Pledged bank deposits C AR AT K 19 143,179 96,061
Cash and cash equivalents B4 RBEEH 20 242,380 288,422
) i 2,154,017 1,907,925
Assets classified as held for sale SR B E 21 15,927 =
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 2,169,944 | 1,907,925
Current liabilities LUEER
Trade and other payables B R LA B A 3RO 2 3,775,680 3,317,498
Bank loans BAT R 23 74,953 145,693
Other loans JAB SR 24 117,093 242,287
Obligations under finance leases Al 5 7 B A 25 6,052 5,150
Current taxation K B 27(a) 18,899 16,705
Provisions s 26 267 551
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 3,992,944 | 3,727,884
Net current liabilites weages (1,823,000 (1,819,959)
Total assets less current liabilities B¥EwEHANK 2,916,269 | 2,922,043
Non-current liabilities iR 3 £ 45
Bank loans AT EK 23 687,441 1,410,024
Obligations under finance leases il LB AT 25 187,107 193,159
Deferred tax liabilities 5 AL A6 IR £ 15 27(b) 39,236 41,662
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 913,784 | 1,644,845
NET ASSETS 7V B 2,002,485 1,277,198
CAPITAL AND RESERVES B K it
Share capital N 28(a) 340,614 280,585
Reserves it 1,659,924 994,613
Total equity attributable to equity 7% % v IRt ORC M A B 2%
shareholders of the Company 2,000,538 1,275,198
Non-controlling interests Fe¥e e b 2% 1,947 2,000
TOTAL EQUITY R 25 3% 2,002,485 1,277,198

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on

27 March 2012.

Soopakij Chearavanont
A

The notes on pages 45 to 112 form part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Financial Position

B 5 R TR 3R

At 31 December 2011 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

RZFE-——F+ZA=+t—R (UAR¥TAREMN

31 December

31 December

2011 2010
e SR ZE-FE
+=ZH=+—H | +ZA=Z+—H
Note RMB' 000 RMB'000
i 5 ARWET NG B T
Non-current assets FE 5 ¥
Property, plant and equipment EN & 12 306 732
Interests in subsidiaries et e 2 ] 1 25 15 3,001,735 3,042,652
Other long-term prepayments FoAt = 9 A 2 T 3,286 5,549
3,005,327 3,048,933
Current assets WE R
Trade and other receivables B 3 % S At JE Wk JE 18 16,365 79,565
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBEEH 20 17,159 72,224
33,524 151,789
Current liabilities 5 £ 1
Trade and other payables B T A e A k0 22 388,318 247,410
Bank loans AT R 23 - 86,622
Other loans Hofl £ 3% 24 17,008 93,672
405,326 427,704
Net current liabilities 5 Y £1 0 15 2 (371,802) (275,915)
Total assets less current liabilities BO% 7 WO ) A A 2,633,525 2,773,018
Non-current liabilities Fe i 5 £ 4%
Bank loans AT R 23 177,057 808,476
177,057 808,476
NET ASSETS A 2,456,468 1,964,542
CAPITAL AND RESERVES R B ik i
Share capital &N 28(a) 340,614 280,585
Reserves s 29(a) 2,115,854 1,683,957
TOTAL EQUITY BE 2 2,456,468 1,964,542

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on

27 March 2012.

Soopakij Chearavanont

The notes on pages 45 to 112 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
MEERBBHHE

For the year ended 31 December 2011 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)
BE-Z——F+-A=1+-—HLFEUUARBTHEN)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

AR ARKER
Retained
Share Re- Convertible earnings/ Non-
Share Share  Revaluation option  organisation Exchange Hedging bonds (Accumulated controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve loss) Total interests Total
LET S it
/3 Rt TR MRS LET L Hi bt el (RHER) BN FRRER i

(note28)  (note29(c)  (note29(c)  (mote29(c)  (note29(c)  (note29(c))  (note29(c) (note 29(c))

(Hits)  (Kao) (W90 (F&90)  (ME90)  (BRse)  (Ke2s@) (W9l

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB' 000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB' 000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARMTE  ARETFZ  AREER  ARETE ARETRE  ARETFX O ARETR  ARMTR O ARETX  ARMTFR AREFX  ARETR

At 1 January 2010 R-Z-FE-]-1 212,590 1,321,876 (9,166) 53,841 113573 152,992 = 264,539 (1,975,384) 134,861 = 134,861

Profit for the year R - - - - - - - - 319322 319322 - 349322

Other comprehensive 2Tl A
income - - - - - 43519 (6,734) - - 36,785 - 36,785

Total comprehensive 2 HHALH
income for the year - - - - - 43519 (6,734) - 34932 386,107 - 386,107

Capital contribution R R R

from non-controlling

interests - - - - - - - - - - 2,000 2,000
Issue of Series B BIBZITHR
convertible BRRDER

preference sharesto ~ WHK (%
redeem convertible  (H#£28(a))

bonds (note 28(a)) 67,995 686,235 - - - - - (264,539) 264,539 754,230 - 754,230
Transfers (note 20()) & (#29(c)) - (1,266,681) - - (113573) - - - 1,380,254 = - -
67,995 (580,446) - - (113,573) - - (264,539) 1,644,793 754,230 2,000 756,230
At31 December 2010 R=F-%k
+ZA=+-H 280,585 741,430 (9,166) 53,841 - 196,511 (6,734) - 18,731 1,275,198 2,000 1217198
At 1 January 2011 REF——F—-R—H 280,585 741,430 (9,166) 53,841 - 196,511 (6,734) - 18,731 1,275,198 2,000 1,217,198
Profit for the year HERERA - - - - - - - - 8813 8813 (53) 23760
Other comprehensive 2T lA
income - - - - - 37,002 6,734 - - 43,79 - 43,79
Total comprehensive  FERTMALH
income for the year - - - - - 37,002 6,734 - 33813 67,609 (53) 67,556
Issue of Series C BHCRITHR
convertible PR (k28 (2)
preference shares
(note 28(a)) 60,029 597,702 - - - - - - - 657,731 - 657,731
At 31 December 2011 RZZF——#
+ZAZ+-H 340,614 1,339,132 (9,166) 53,841 - 233573 - - 42,544 2,000,538 1,941 2,002,485

The notes on pages 45 to 112 form part of these financial statements. 48545 1125 2 Mt 51 75 2% B % 42 4 = 3 4% o
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

GREBREREBEERR

For the year ended 31 December 2011 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

BE-Z-——S+-A=1+-HLEFE(UARBTREMN

2011 2010
o SR 3 R FRE
Note RMB’' 000 RMB’000
et ARET L AR¥ET T
Operating activities B
Profit before taxation BB G 452 1 34,686 340,656
Adjustments for: DL
Finance costs Bl LA 5(a) 149,687 264,318
Interest income LB BA 3 (5,686) (7,462)
Gain on redemption of convertible bonds S I 6 i 7 2 36 4 = (408,487)
Loss on disposal of fixed assets 8 [ 72 ¥ 7 2 s 4 3 4,223 6,921
Depreciation of property, W3k B B2
plant and equipment ik 5(c) 181,753 200,842
Impairment loss on property, ERY )& Pa
plant and equipment VoA R 4 12(a) - 663
Amortisation of land lease premium A R B 5(c) 6,294 7,017
Amortisation of intangible assets JETE B 7 2 4 4 5(c) 10,713 10,710
Foreign exchange gain A B B8 35 A (23,830) (14,252)
Operating profit before changes BEESEHWZ B ERA
in working capital 357,840 400,926
(Increase)/Decrease in prepaid lease HAEME R M)/
payments for premises WA (4,472) 8,556
Increase in inventories HEHMm (352,605) (86,425)
Increase in bank deposits pledged for inventory ~ Bk FHELEREERZ
purchases and guarantees to landlords PR Z SRAT A7 kB (47,118) (20,048)
Decrease in trade and other receivables Y T L fth R WA KO R A 110,053 78,254
Increase in trade and other payables B T A A kIR 455,019 255,319
Cash generated from operations BHEEZI S 518,717 636,582
PRC tax paid B A B B IE (18,279) (13,130)
Net cash generated from BHEHELZBETH
operating activities 500,438 623,452
Investing activities BeH W
Payment for purchases of fixed assets Ji B A K (208,962) (135,356)
Payment of consideration for acquisition 1 B A 2 ) 2 AR A Ak
of subsidiaries - (53,227)
Interest received S B 5,686 7,462
Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets B i B Z K 0H 3,680 6,628
Net cash used in investing activities BHEEBMHZIETH (199,596) (174,493)
Financing activities Y- €3
Proceeds from bank loans AT AR 191,057 1,888,816
Repayment of bank loans SRAT Bk Z B K (925,970) (1,943,374)
Proceeds from other loans o Bk Z KA 465,000 661,588
Repayment of other loans HhERz iz (587,713) (1,169,224)
Deposits pledged for bank loans TG T SRAT Bk 2 Ak - 274,724
Capital element of finance leases paid LA EERE 2 RS H (5,150) (4,302)
Interest element of finance leases paid ST R AL B 2 ) B (19,359) (19,816)
Interest on bank loans AT EHRZ A B (86,474) (91,073)
Loan arrangement and guarantee fees paid SRR B R A R (24,569) (29,700)
Coupon interest on convertible bonds W] B 5 % 2 S R B - (8,775)
Interest on other loans/consideration payable ot Bk HEAHRAE 2 A1) B (11,397) (32,270)
Net proceeds from issue of convertible BT E LR
preference shares I 28(a) 657,731 =
Capital contribution from non-controlling interests JE i #E 25 T & - 2,000
Net cash used in financing activities LR 2 B A (346,844) (471,406)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents BE&RIESHWATH (46,002) (22,447)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes A e W o 5 2 o (40) (4,991)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R—=H—HZBLRILEESH 288,422 315,860
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December R+ A=+ —HZBERBE%H 20 242,380 288,422

The notes on pages 45 to 112 form part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt % W& MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2011 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-Z——F+ZA=1+—HLFE (BRIEHBIHI UAR¥ETHEN)

1 Significant accounting policies

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs") and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“the Listing Rules”). A
summary of the significant accounting policies adopted
by the Group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
which are first effective or available for early adoption
for the current accounting period of the Group and the
Company. Note 1(e) provides information on any changes
in accounting policies resulting from initial application of
these developments to the extent that they are relevant
to the Group for the current and prior accounting periods
reflected in these financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements comprise the
Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the
“Group”).

As the Group’'s hypermarket stores are all located in
the PRC and most of the Group’s transactions are
conducted and denominated in Renminbi (“RMB"), which
is the functional currency of the Company’s operating
subsidiaries, the financial statements are presented in
RMB, rounded to the nearest thousand, unless otherwise
stated. The functional currency of the Company is Hong
Kong Dollars (“HK$").

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had net current
liabilities of approximately RMB1,823 million. For the year
ended 31 December 2011, the Group generated profit
from operations of approximately RMB184 million (2010:
RMB196 million) and net cash from operating activities of
approximately RMB500 million (2010: RMB623 million).
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

BE-Z-—S+-A=1+-HLEFE(BRSEHABI UARBTHEMN)

1

46

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(b)

(c)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(Continued)

On 23 December 2011, 3,673,765,764 Series C
convertible preference shares were issued at a price
of HK$0.22 per share by way of open offer of two
convertible preference shares for every five ordinary
shares held (“Open Offer”) to qualifying shareholders.
Net proceeds from the Open Offer, after offsetting
issuance costs, amounted to approximately HK$805
million (equivalent to RMB658 million), which were fully
used to repay outstanding bank loans of the Company.
In addition, for the purposes of refinancing existing
debt obligations of the Group and financing store
expansion, on 29 November 2011 and 16 December
2011 the Company and its subsidiary, Shanghai Lotus
Supermarket Chain Store Co., Ltd. (i 5 ) {C 8 58 44
M BRZAF) (“SLS”) entered into new facility agreements
with a group of banks whereby the Company and SLS
were granted term loan facilities (“New Loan Facilities"”)
totalling USD200 million (equivalent to RMB1,261
million). The New Loan Facilities will expire on 31
December 2018 with instalment repayments scheduled
during their term. As at 31 December 2011, the
Company has drawn down USD28 million (equivalent to
RMB177 million) from the New Loan Facilities.

In view of the above, the Directors consider that the
Group will have sufficient financial resources for its
working capital and capital expenditure requirements
and that it will be able to meet its financial obligations
as and when they fall due. Accordingly, the consolidated
financial statements have been prepared on a going
concern basis.

Basis of measurement

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except
that financial guarantees issued and derivative financial
instruments are stated at their fair value as explained in
the accounting policies set out in note 1(w)(i) and note
1(h) respectively.

Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale are
stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell (see note 1(aa)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-Z——F+ZA=1+—HLFE (BRIEHBIHI UAR¥ETHEN)

1 Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(d)

(e)

Use of estimation and judgement

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application
of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making the judgements about carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty
are discussed in note 38.

Change in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued a number of amendments to
HKFRSs and one new Interpretation that are first effective
for the current accounting period of the Group and the
Company. Of these, the following developments are
relevant to the Group's financial statements.

° HK(IFRIC) 19, Extinguishing financial liabilities with
equity instruments

° HKAS 24 (revised 2009), Related party disclosures

o Improvements to HKFRSs (2010)

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period (see note 40).

HK(IFRIC) 19 has not yet had a material impact on the
Group's financial statements as these changes will first
be effective as and when the Group enters a relevant
transaction (for example, a debt for equity swap).
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Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(e)

(f)

Change in accounting policies (Continued)

HKAS 24 (revised 2009) revises the definition of a
related party. As a result, the Group has re-assessed the
identification of related parties and concluded that the
revised definition does not have any material impact on
the Group's related party disclosures in the current and
previous period.

Improvements to HKFRSs (2010) introduce a number of
amendments to the disclosure requirements in HKFRS 7,
Financial instruments: Disclosures. These amendments
do not have any material impact on the classification,
recognition and measurements of the amounts
recognised in the financial statements in the current and
previous periods.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control
exists when the Group has the power to govern the
financial and operating policies of an entity so as to
obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing control,
potential voting rights that presently are exercisable are
taken into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances and transactions and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised
gains but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.
For each business combination, the Group can elect
to measure any non-controlling interests either at fair
value or at their proportionate share of the subsidiary’s
net identifiable assets. Non-controlling interests are
presented in the consolidated statement of financial
position within equity, separately from equity attributable
to the equity shareholders of the Company. Non-
controlling interests in the results of the Group are
presented on the face of the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income as an allocation of the total
profit or loss and the total comprehensive income for the
year between non-controlling interests and the equity
shareholders of the Company.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-Z——F+ZA=1+—HLFE (BRIEHBIHI UAR¥ETHEN)

1 Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(f)

(9)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made to
the amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests
within consolidated equity to reflect the change in
relative interests, but no adjustments are made to
goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is recognised
at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair
value on initial recognition of a financial asset or,
when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or jointly controlled entity.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses (see note 1(m)), unless the investment
is classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal
group that is classified as held for sale) (see note 1(aa)).

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries
represents the excess of the fair value of the
consideration transferred over the net fair value of the
acquiree’s identifiable assets and liabilities measured as
at the acquisition date.

Any excess of the net fair value of the acquiree’s
identifiable assets and liabilities over the fair value of the
consideration transferred is recognised immediately in
profit or loss as a gain on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination is
allocated to each cash-generating unit or groups of cash-
generating units, that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination and is tested annually for
impairment (see note 1(m)).

On disposal of a cash-generating unit during the
year, any attributable amount of purchased goodwill
is included in the calculation of the profit or loss on
disposal.

1 EHEEEHBOR (8)

(f)

(9)

W D 2 i) e e % DB e 4 (%)

AR [ 7% Y e 2 ) 2 A A )
WA BB IR e M > 1
MR A2 B BINR - AR A 6 B AR IH
o 8 4 e B e e PR e i 2
> DL WA S 25 2 S ) >
7 o 2 A A T R AR AR

A B T 5K 25 O A ) = 42
RIS > 35 B A I B Jig 2 W) 2 2
RAE S B MR o o O A e A
A 5 25 T R R o AE Ok 2% 48 il e
H P 0 B8 A B Wi Y 4y W] 2
i > A AR > IHEAE
1R 25 0 e e P < L O AR
Fon e fe - g Can il ) 7250 46 i
Y NG R - i P d <
IhF A A o

WA AT Z BRI EERN > 7R
— W 4 W) 2 B B R AT
WAEE RS R (R HEE1(m)) > 1
FRBES B A EE (5T
AnEAEfrHEZ BEHS) (A
Ff5E1(aa)) BRAb -

LKy

W O 24 3 e 7
BAREIZ 24 A0 > MRl 7
T FI 2 T R AR
2 AT -

WO Ty 2 T PR e LR 2
O AR RN I A A 2 A
FOAE > A% B IR 2 4R 25 A e R A
BT W B = i A o

T B o A 0 9 2 st A s 4R
BIIR o LW A DR A 2 v & 4y
[MESE S g A o R DAL= ¥ i
Bl& @A AL > TR GO #
2% > A AE 4 A2 PR B AL (R R
#E1(m)) ©

AR 2 B4 R BT > B

i 2 T W o B A A )
0 B R AR o

ANNUAL REPORT 20114& 49



Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt % W& M

For the year ended 31 December 2011 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

BE-Z-—S+-A=1+-HLEFE(BRSEHABI UARBTHEMN)

1

50

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(h)

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at
fair value. At the end of each reporting period the fair
value is remeasured. The gain or loss on remeasurement
to fair value is recognised immediately in profit or loss,
except where the derivatives qualify for cash flow hedge
accounting, in which case recognition of any resultant
gain or loss depends on the nature of the item being
hedged (see note 1(i)).

Cash flow hedges

Where a derivative financial instrument is designated as
a hedge of the variability in cash flows of a recognised
asset or liability or a highly probable forecast transaction
or the foreign currency risk of a committed future
transaction, the effective portion of any gains or losses
on remeasurement of the derivative financial instrument
to fair value is recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated separately in equity in the hedging
reserve. The ineffective portion of any gain or loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

If a hedge of a forecast transaction subsequently results
in the recognition of a non-financial asset or non-
financial liability, the associated gain or loss is reclassified
from equity to be included in the initial cost or other
carrying amount of the non-financial asset or liability.

If a hedge of a forecast transaction subsequently results
in the recognition of a financial asset or a financial
liability, the associated gain or loss is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss in the same period or periods
during which the asset acquired or liability assumed
affects profit or loss (such as when interest income or
expense is recognised).

For cash flow hedges, other than those covered by the
preceding two policy statements, the associated gain
or loss is reclassified from equity to profit or loss in the
same period or periods during which the hedged forecast
transaction affects profit or loss.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated
or exercised, or the entity revokes designation of the
hedge relationship but the hedged forecast transaction is
still expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss at that
point remains in equity until the transaction occurs and it
is recognised in accordance with the above policy. If the
hedged transaction is no longer expected to take place,
the cumulative unrealised gain or loss is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss immediately.
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BE-Z——F+ZA=1+—HLFE (BRIEHBIHI UAR¥ETHEN)

1 Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

()

Property, plant and equipment

The following items of property, plant and equipment
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (see note 1(m)):

- buildings held for own use which are situated
on leasehold land, where the fair value of the
building could be measured separately from the
fair value of the leasehold land at the inception of
the lease (see note 1(1)); and

- other items of plant and equipment.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of
an item of property, plant and equipment are determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item and are recognised in
profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight line method over
their estimated useful lives as follows:

- Buildings situated on leasehold land are
depreciated over the shorter of the unexpired
term of the lease and their estimated useful lives,
being no more than 30 years after the date of
completion.

- Leasehold improvements Over the remaining

term of the lease

- Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3 -5 years

- Motor vehicles 3 — 6 years
Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of the item is
allocated on a reasonable basis between the parts and
each part is depreciated separately. Both the useful life
of an asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed
annually.

The fair value of property, plant and equipment
recognised as a result of a business combination is
based on market value. The market value of property
is the estimated amount for which a property could be
exchanged on the date of valuation between a willing
buyer and a willing seller in an arm’s length transaction
after proper marketing wherein the parties had each
acted knowledgeably, prudently and without compulsion.
The market value of items of leasehold improvements,
furniture, fixtures and equipment, and motor vehicles is
based on the quoted market price for similar items.
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Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

()

(k)

U]

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Stores under fit out represent the cost of leasehold
improvements and other fit out costs incurred to
date. Stores under fit out are transferred to leasehold
improvements and the relevant other asset categories
when the stores are substantially ready for their intended
use. No depreciation is provided in respect of stores
under fit out.

Intangible assets (other than goodwiill)

Intangible assets represent the favourable aspect of
operating leases relative to market terms acquired in
business combinations, where the acquiree is the lessee.
These intangible assets are recognised and measured at
fair value upon acquisition. The fair value is determined
based on a comparison of the market and contractual
rental rates at the date of acquisition.

Intangible assets associated with favourable aspects of
operating leases acquired in a business combination are
stated in the statement of financial position at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses (see
note 1(m)). Amortisation is charged to profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the remaining lease term.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to use
a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of time
in return for a payment or a series of payments. Such
a determination is made based on an evaluation of
the substance of the arrangement and is regardless of
whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases
which transfer to the Group substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership are classified as
being held under finance leases. Leases which do
not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the Group are classified as
operating leases.
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1 Significant accounting policies

(Continued)
(1 Leased assets (Continued)
(if) Assets acquired under finance leases

(iii)

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under
finance leases, the amounts representing the
fair value of the leased asset, or, if lower, the
present value of the minimum lease payments, of
such assets are included in property, plant and
equipment and the corresponding liabilities, net of
finance charges, are recorded as obligations under
finance leases. Depreciation is provided at rates
which write off the cost or valuation of the assets
over the term of the relevant lease or, where it
is likely the Group will obtain ownership of the
asset, the life of the asset, as set out in note 1(j).
Impairment losses are accounted for in accordance
with the accounting policy as set out in note 1(m).
Finance charges implicit in the lease payments are
charged to profit or loss over the period of the
leases so as to produce an approximately constant
periodic rate of charge on the remaining balance
of the obligations for each accounting period.
Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in
the accounting period in which they are incurred.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases
are charged to profit or loss in equal instalments
over the accounting periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the leased asset. Lease incentives
received are recognised in profit or loss as an
integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit
or loss in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an
operating lease is amortised on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease term.

(m) Impairment of assets

(i)

Impairment of receivables

Current and non-current receivables that are
stated at cost or amortised cost are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period to determine
whether there is objective evidence of impairment.
Objective evidence of impairment includes
observable data that comes to the attention of the
Group about one or more of the following loss
events:
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1

Significant accounting policies

(Continued)

54

(m)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Impairment of receivables (Continued)

significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

a breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
repayments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; and

- significant changes in the market,
economic or legal environment that have
an adverse effect on the debtor.

If any such evidence exists, the impairment
loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate
(i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition of the assets), where the effect of
discounting is material.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be linked objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss.
A reversal of an impairment loss shall not result in
the asset’s carrying amount exceeding that which
would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications that the following assets may
be impaired or, except in the case of goodwill, an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased:

- property, plant and equipment;

- interests in leasehold land held for own use
under operating leases;

- intangible assets;

- prepaid lease payments for premises;

- investments in subsidiaries; and

= goodwill.

C.P. Lotus Corporation « NEERERLT

1

Ak BoR (4)

(m)

¢ WA (4

(i)

(ii)

JEH 3k T 2 i 1 ()

- EBAZERME
V] 4 5

- ERAHWMARE
A7 Bl HE I8 I B B A
SR

= & % N 7T RE A € %
P B 47 il B
AL &

- W RS
bR
BB NE A
ﬁEO

PURERENY S § 4tk
AL s 4R DL 2 M T
el vt RARBL 4 ifi < BE
ZERGR o HINBZ Y
B > Mt RAKBE &R
ZBEUEREER L
B B S A5 B G5 (BP st
BRI 4 B 2 0 4 A 2R
) o

n—JE AR IR AR LR 2
WA > i kA % 8
S {1 s AR R AR R A 2
B B > I 1 ]
AR A 1 o PR TR Z
T 485 S B ¥ /28 - e i
38 A LA A IR T
o A o kA A T M
REZ W -

H At 7 3 2 il {0

A AR [ 7 A R 00 R
Ba Py R R A 2R 2 AR B AR
U > VAHERE DLF B2 A
H B R 5 (HfE 7 R B
Ab) > R DL R Z
i 48 O A P A7 A2 BT i
e

— W WE Kk

- BEMEZHMH LM
THE R s

- R E

- FMWEMEE

— PWBAFRZIE ;s &

R



Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt % W& MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2011 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-Z——F+ZA=1+—HLFE (BRIEHBIHI UAR¥ETHEN)

1 Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(m) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of other assets (Continued)

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. In addition, for
goodwill, the recoverable amount is estimated
annually whether or not there is any indication of
impairment.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is
the greater of its fair value less costs to
sell and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset.
Where an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent of those from
other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets
that generates cash inflows independently
(i.e. a cash-generating unit).

- Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit
or loss if the carrying amount of an asset,
or the cash-generating unit to which it
belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in respect of
cash-generating units are allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the cash-generating unit (or
group of units) and then, to reduce the
carrying amount of the other assets in the
unit (or group of units) on a pro rata basis,
except that the carrying value of an asset
will not be reduced below its individual fair
value less costs to sell, or value in use, if
determinable.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

BE-Z-—S+-A=1+-HLEFE(BRSEHABI UARBTHEMN)

1 Significant accounting policies
(Continued)
(m) Impairment of assets (Continued)
(if) Impairment of other assets (Continued)
- Reversals of impairment losses
In respect of assets other than goodwill,
an impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount.
An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is
not reversed.
A reversal of an impairment loss is limited
to the asset’s carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years.
Reversals of impairment losses are credited
to profit or loss in the year in which the
reversals are recognised.
(iif) Interim financial reporting and impairment
Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required to
prepare an interim financial report in compliance
with HKAS 34, Interim financial reporting, in
respect of the first six months of the financial
year. At the end of the interim period, the Group
applies the same impairment testing, recognition,
and reversal criteria as it would at the end of the
financial year (see notes 1(m)(i) and 1(m)(ii)).
Impairment losses recognised in an interim period
in respect of goodwill are not reversed in a
subsequent period. This is the case even if no loss,
or a smaller loss, would have been recognised
had the impairment been assessed only at the end
of the financial year to which the interim period
relates.
(n) Inventories
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.
For inventories delivered to the Group’s distribution
centres, cost is calculated using the weighted average
cost formula and comprises all costs of purchase, costs
of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. For
inventories located in the Group’s hypermarket stores,
cost is determined by the retail method and is computed
by reference to the retail selling price of goods less the
average gross profit margins.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt % W& MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2011 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-Z——F+ZA=1+—HLFE (BRIEHBIHI UAR¥ETHEN)

1 Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(n)

(o)

(p)

(a)

Inventories (Continued)

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and
all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in
the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount
of any reversal of any write-down of inventories, arising
from an increase in net realisable value, is recognised as
a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an
expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised
at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less allowance for
impairment of doubtful debts (see note 1(m)), except
where the receivables are interest-free loans made to
related parties without any fixed repayment terms or
the effect of discounting would be immaterial. In such
cases, the receivables are stated at cost less allowance for
impairment of doubtful debts.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at
fair value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are
stated at amortised cost with any difference between
the amount initially recognised and redemption value
being recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings, together with any interest and fees payable,
using the effective interest method.

Convertible bonds that contain an equity
component

Convertible bonds that can be converted to equity share
capital at the option of the holder, where the number of
shares that would be issued on conversion and the value
of the consideration that would be received at that time
do not vary, are accounted for as compound financial
instruments which contain both a liability component and
an equity component.
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58

Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(a)

(r)

(s)

(t)

Convertible bonds that contain an equity
component (Continued)

On initial recognition the liability component of the
convertible bonds is measured as the present value of
the future interest and principal payments, discounted
at the market rate of interest applicable at the time of
initial recognition to similar liabilities that do not have
a conversion option. Any excess of the fair value of the
compound financial instrument as a whole over the
amount initially recognised as the liability component
is recognised as the equity component. Transaction
costs that relate to the issue of a compound financial
instrument are allocated to the liability and equity
components in proportion to the allocation of the
compound financial instrument as a whole.

The liability component is subsequently carried at
amortised cost. The interest expense recognised in profit
or loss on the liability component is calculated using
the effective interest method. The equity component is
recognised in the convertible bond reserve until either
the bonds are converted or redeemed.

If the bonds are converted, the convertible bond reserve,
together with the carrying amount of the liability
component at the time of conversion, is transferred to
share capital and share premium as consideration for the
shares issued. If the bonds are redeemed, the convertible
bond reserve is released directly to retained profits/
accumulated losses.

Preference share capital

Preference share capital is classified as equity if it is
non-redeemable, or redeemable only at the Company’s
option, and any dividends are discretionary. Dividends
on preference share capital classified as equity are
recognised as distributions within equity.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities measured
in accordance with note 1(w)(i), trade and other payables
are subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, having been within three months of maturity
at acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management are also included as a component of cash
and cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated
cash flow statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt % W& MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2011 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-Z——F+ZA=1+—HLFE (BRIEHBIHI UAR¥ETHEN)

1 Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(u) Employee benefits

(i)

(i)

Short term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits
are accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are stated at
their present values.

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee cost with
a corresponding increase in share option reserve
within equity. The fair value is measured at grant
date using the binomial lattice model, taking into
account the terms and conditions upon which
the options were granted. Where the employees
have to meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the options, the total
estimated fair value of the options is spread
over the vesting period, taking into account the
probability that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any
resulting adjustment to the cumulative fair value
recognised in prior years is charged/credited to the
profit or loss for the year of the review, unless the
original employee expenses qualify for recognition
as an asset, with a corresponding adjustment to
the share option reserve. On vesting date, the
amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to
reflect the actual number of options that vest
(with a corresponding adjustment to the share
option reserve) except where forfeiture is only due
to not achieving vesting conditions that relate to
the market price of the Company’s shares. The
equity amount is recognised in the share option
reserve until either the option is exercised (when
it is transferred to the share premium account) or
the option expires (when it is released directly to
retained profits/accumulated losses).
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Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(u)

(v)

Employee benefits (Continued)
(iii) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when, and
only when, the Group demonstrably commits itself
to terminate employment or to provide benefits
as a result of voluntary redundancy by having a
detailed formal plan which is without realistic
possibility of withdrawal.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their
tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-Z——F+ZA=1+—HLFE (BRIEHBIHI UAR¥ETHEN)

1 Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(v)

Income tax (Continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and
the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse
either in the same period as the expected reversal of
the deductible temporary difference or in periods into
which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can
be carried back or forward. The same criteria are adopted
when determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those
differences are taken into account if they relate to the
same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and
are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which
the tax loss or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes,
the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided they
are not part of a business combination), and temporary
differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the
extent that, in the case of taxable differences, the Group
controls the timing of the reversal and it is probable
that the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future, or in the case of deductible differences, unless it
is probable that they will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not discounted.
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1 Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(v)

62

Income tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at each reporting date and is reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow the related tax benefit to be
utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that
it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution
of dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the
related dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities if the Company or the
Group has the legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each
future period in which significant amounts
of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered, intend
to realise the current tax assets and settle
the current tax liabilities on a net basis or
realise and settle simultaneously.
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1 Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(w) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
contingent liabilities

(i)

(ii)

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require
the issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified
payments to reimburse the beneficiary of the
guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the holder
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payment when due in accordance with the terms
of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the
fair value of the guarantee (being the transaction
price, unless the fair value can otherwise be
reliably estimated) is initially recognised as
deferred income within trade and other payables.
Where consideration is received or receivable for
the issuance of the guarantee, the consideration
is recognised in accordance with the Group’s
policies applicable to that category of asset.
Where no such consideration is received or
receivable, an immediate expense is recognised in
profit or loss on initial recognition of any deferred
income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised
as deferred income is amortised in profit or loss
over the term of the guarantee as income from
financial guarantees issued. In addition, provisions
are recognised in accordance with note T(w)(ii) if
and when (i) it becomes probable that the holder
of the guarantee will call upon the Group under
the guarantee, and (ii) the amount of that claim
on the Group is expected to exceed the amount
currently carried in trade and other payables in
respect of that guarantee, i.e. the amount initially
recognised, less accumulated amortisation.

Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group
or the Company has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated at
the present value of the expenditure expected to
settle the obligation.
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Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(w)

(x)

Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
contingent liabilities (Continued)

(ii)

Other provisions and contingent liabilities
(Continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events, are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Provided it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be
measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or loss
as follows:

(i)

(i)

Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when the significant risks
and rewards of ownership have been transferred
to the customers. Revenue excludes value added
tax or other sales taxes and is after deduction of
any trade discounts.

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases
is recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments
over the periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative
of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the
use of the leased asset. Lease incentives granted
are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part
of the aggregate net lease payments receivable.
Contingent rentals are recognised as income in
the accounting period in which they are earned.
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1 Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(x)

(y)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
(iii) Promotion and service income/fees

Promotion and service income/fees not related to
the purchase of goods are recognised when the
services are rendered.

(iv) Dividends

Dividend income from unlisted investments is
recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive
payment is established.

(v) Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using
the effective interest method.

(vi) Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the
statement of financial position initially when
there is reasonable assurance that they will be
received and that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them. Grants that
compensate the Group for expenses incurred
are recognised as revenue in profit or loss on a
systematic basis in the same periods in which the
expenses are incurred. Grants that compensate
the Group for the cost of an asset are deducted
from the carrying amount of the asset and
consequently are effectively recognised in profit
or loss over the useful life of the asset by way of
reduced depreciation expense.

Translation of foreign currency

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting
period. Except as noted below, exchange gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair
value are translated using the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the dates the fair value was determined.
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Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(y)

(2)

(aa)

Translation of foreign currency (Continued)

The results of entities outside the PRC are translated
into Renminbi yuan (“RMB”) at the exchange rates
approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
dates of the transactions. The assets and liabilities of
entities outside the PRC are translated into RMB at the
closing foreign exchange rates at the end of reporting
period. The resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the exchange reserve.

Exchange differences arising from monetary items that
in substance form part of the net investment in foreign
operations are recognised in other comprehensive income
in the consolidated financial statements.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences relating to that
foreign operation is reclassified from equity to profit or
loss when the profit or loss on disposal is recognised.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset, which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready
for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the
cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost
of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for
the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being
incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare
the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases
when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
interrupted or complete.

Non-current assets held for sale

A non-current asset (or disposal group) is classified as
held for sale if it is highly probable that its carrying
amount will be recovered through a sale transaction
rather than through continuing use and the asset
(or disposal group) is available for sale in its present
condition. A disposal group is a group of assets to be
disposed of together as a group in a single transaction,
and liabilities directly associated with those assets that
will be transferred in the transaction.
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1 Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(aa)

(ab)

Non-current assets held for sale (Continued)

Immediately before classification as held for sale, the
measurement of the non-current assets (and all individual
assets and liabilities in a disposal group) is brought up-
to-date in accordance with the accounting policies before
the classification. Then, on initial classification as held for
sale and until disposal, the non-current assets (except for
certain assets as explained below), or disposal groups, are
recognised at the lower of their carrying amount and fair
value less costs to sell. The principal exceptions to this
measurement policy so far as the financial statements of
the Group and the Company are concerned are deferred
tax assets, assets arising from employee benefits and
financial assets (other than investments in subsidiaries).
These assets, even if held for sale, would continue to
be measured in accordance with the policies set out
elsewhere in note 1.

Impairment losses on initial classification as held for sale,
and on subsequent remeasurement while held for sale,
are recognised in profit or loss. As long as a non-current
asset is classified as held for sale, or is included in a
disposal group that is classified as held for sale, the non-
current asset is not depreciated or amortised.

Related parties

(a) A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is @ member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s
parent.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).
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Significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(ab)

(ac)

Related parties (Continued)

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Group or an entity related to the
Group.

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are
those family members who may be expected to
influence, or be influenced by, that person in their
dealings with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to
the Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various operations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and are
similar in respect of the nature of products and services,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and
the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may be
aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.
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Turnover and segment information

The principal activity of the Group is the operation of
hypermarket stores in the PRC. Turnover represents the net
amounts received and receivable for goods sold by the Group
to external customers, less returns, discounts and value added
taxes.

The Group’s customer base is diversified and there is no
customer with whom transactions have exceeded 10% of the
Group’s revenue.

All revenue from external customers are generated in the PRC
and all significant operating assets of the Group are located
in the PRC. Accordingly, the Group has a single operating and
reportable segment — operation of hypermarket stores in the
PRC.

Other revenue and other net income

e D Tig g

ACHR B 2 J BTG B AL R
i o WU A G ] 1i) S R R B
sl WECHDL e B W 2 R R IR B ST R
WA B -

ARG 2 %D HRAL > SR A Z
B2 Sy A A B T W 25 A 10 % o

P A Ah AR % 2 Wi 20 S o B R A AR
M P A OB A AR Y o A
A4 A — 1 S B i 3 — TR
I A8 KA i

0 i Ve 2az Be 3L il e A ¥

Consolidated
A
2011 2010
R R R
RMB’' 000 RMB’ 000
ARWT L YNVLi & o
Other revenue JU A e 2
Leasing of store premises I AL 285,712 241,412
Other promotion and service income 3t % & JIi % e A 70,572 68,441
Interest income A8 A 5,686 7,462
Government grants (note (i) BT A8 B (B 58 (6)) 15,587 5,758
Procurement service fee TR R % 2 - 1,761
IT service fee income & ARk B R s 2 R A - 9,843
377,557 334,677
Other net income il e A 35 78
Net foreign exchange gain [ 56, i A1) 35 46 20,407 11,223
Net income from store lease HUTH T bR B 2 WA A (B G))
cancellations (note (ii)) 978 35,115
Net loss on disposal of fixed assets i [ & & &= 2 & 8 35 % (4,223) (6,921)
17,162 39,417
Notes: B} 5t
(i) Government grants represent subsidies received from local (i) BTl Bl A Hb 7 BUR 4 Bk 2 FHEl o
authorities.
(i) During 2010, the Group successfully appealed a court verdict (i) M- FEN > REEBEBOE—XK

previously issued which required the Group to pay compensation
to the landlord for cancelling a store lease. RMB33 million
previously paid as compensation was refunded to the Group as a
result.

i R 5 A 2B 1R 5 R S A WA 2
Bk > REMEE ELRFAE - B> 7
B B 32 A A R % 33,000,00070 2 35 1

CBmE AL -
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70

Gain on redemption of convertible 4 5 bl oa] 4R R AR % 2 i A
bonds
On 30 June 2010, the Company purchased and cancelled all B2 —FENH=Z1+TH » KA H
outstanding convertible bonds in issue with the consideration MEEFSHIACBITZRENT
satisfied by the issuance to the bondholders, entities related to B EE AR MEEREFEAE N (K
the Company’s ultimate holding company, of 3,897,110,334 o] B R A Rl Z A B A 3E) B AT
Series B convertible preference shares. As at 30 June 2010, 3,897,110,334%B % %) ] ¢ ik 18 56 %
the carrying value of the outstanding convertible bonds was EBRE R_F—-FHEANA=ZT
RMB1,427,256,000, including liability component and equity H > A& A ] e B8 25 R w2 AR
component of RMB1,162,717,000 and RMB264,539,000, #1,427,256,0007C > &l & £ &
respectively. The difference of RMB408,487,000 between the ARG T O Tk RE 25 AR RS My 2 N R K
fair value of the Series B convertible preference shares issued of 1,162,717,0007C &% A\ K:#264,539,000
RMB754,230,000 and the liability component of the redeemed JC o BB ITBERI M M R Z A R
outstanding convertible bonds was recognised as gain on i N\ B #754,230,0000 5 fiff [7] = & &
redemption of convertible bonds. A e A 25 2 SR AL 2 B A
A R 408,487,0005C > Wiz T #E 58 %4 1
[0 W e B 5 55 2w A o
Profit before taxation 5 BRBiw A
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging: I 58 Ty ¥ F1) B 50 S A% E A
Consolidated
gt
2011 2010
& R R
RMB’' 000 RMB’ 000
ARWT L A R0
(a) Finance costs: (a) MhEEA
Interest on borrowings wholly IR N BB RZ BHRA B -
repayable within five years:
- Bank loans — SRAT K 86,397 91,073
- Other loans — oAt £ 11,397 31,485
Interest on bank loan T AR A R 2 SRAT SRR B
repayable after five years 77 -
Finance charges on MEMEEEZME S
obligations under finance (BiF5E25)
leases (note 25) 19,359 19,816
Interest on convertible A e e 4 2 2 A B (B (E))
bonds (note (i)) - 91,459
Interest on deferred AR HIE JRE AT AR A Z F) B
consideration payable - 785
Total interest expense on RN AT AEIEZ
financial liabilities b £ A Z AR S
not at fair value through
profit or loss 117,230 234,618
Interest-rate swaps: R R 5 -
cash flow hedges, Bl & »
reclassified from equity I |
(note (ii)) (B REGii)) 3,343 -
Loan arrangement and B Z PR R
guarantee fees 29,114 29,700
149,687 264,318
C.P. Lotus Corporation « NEERERLT
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BE-Z——F+ZA=1+—HLFE (BRIEHBIHI UAR¥ETHEN)

Profit before taxation (Continued)

Notes:

(i)

(i)

Interest on convertible bonds for the year ended 31 December
2010 consists of RMB6,589,000 representing coupon interest at
1% per annum on the principal amount of the convertible bonds
and RMB84,870,000 representing additional interest expense
arising from the remeasurement of the liability component of
the convertible bonds upon their issuance using the effective
interest rate method.

At 31 December 2010, the Group and the Company had entered
into interest rate swaps with a notional contract amount of
USD135 million (equivalent to RMB895 million), which were
designated as cash flow hedges of the interest rate risk inherent
in the Company’s variable rate term bank loans. Such bank
loans were fully repaid on 28 December 2011. As a result, the
cumulative unrealised losses on the interest rate swaps were
reclassified from equity to profit or loss on that date.

5

I BE il ¥ A (%)

Fif Rk -
@i

(ii)

BE_F-FET_H=1T—HI
AR B 2 AT e R AR R A B A R
BEHEAREFHFEI1%Z EmAM B A
R ¥ 6,589,000 K& %% 17 IRf DA B B: Al
2R3 T T A AT e Rt A A6 AL
T A Z BAMR B S N R
84,870,0007C °

BKE_Z—-FHE+_H=+—H:"
KREEMEARAFAEELZEE R
135,000,0003% 6 (#H 2 it A R ¥
895,000,00070) Z Fl R ¥ 2 5 &
[l » %A [ Ok % AR 2 6] 7 B F1 3R
Z 58 SR AT B KM A A 2 A 3 B
ZB G E D o FITERKORF
——fE+ZH A+ )\H BRER - H
> BEHR BB 2 A R 4w A2 5 0 1R
EAE H RS A B E 2 o

Consolidated
A
2011 2010
R4 R -FG
RMB’' 000 RMB'000
ARW¥T L AN R¥To0
(b) Staff costs: (b) & B piA :
Salaries, wages and other A LE KHAEF
benefits 665,091 583,739
Contributions to defined FE R AL OR IR F #) Z Btk
contribution retirement plans 57,478 44,225
722,569 627,964
(c) Other items: () HAhIHH :
Depreciation of property, W WE R
plant and equipment 181,753 200,842
Amortisation 8
- land lease premium — 1 M A B 5 0E 6,294 7,017
—intangible assets — G E 10,713 10,710
Auditors’ remuneration- A% BB T 4 — 2 S IR %
audit service 3,550 3,500
Operating lease charges BEMERN
- property rentals — WM 411,943 383,929
Donations il 1,427 4,518
Cost of inventories (note 17) BB BA (FE17) 8,243,734 7,641,160
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-Z——F+-A=1+—HLFE (BRBEHBI UAR¥ETHEN)

6

72

Income tax in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income

6 MBS EmMBAREZ
Pt 13 Bi

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of (a) REHEHBARKZBE :
comprehensive income represents:
2011 2010
TR AR "R R
RMB’' 000 RMB’000
ARWT X A R¥F L
Current tax - PRC WP IB Be o — b 1
Provision for the year 4R BE 1A 20,473 17,617
Deferred tax HE % BL ¥
Origination and reversal of JEE A % I 90 IR 2 A (B 527 (b))
temporary differences
(note 27(b)) (9,547) (26,283)
Taxation expense/(credit) IE (Al HEHn) # 10,926 (8,666)

Income tax is calculated at the rates prevailing in the
relevant jurisdictions.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made
as the Company and its subsidiaries did not generate any
assessable profits in Hong Kong during the year.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman
Islands and the British Virgin Islands, the Group is not
subject to any income tax in the Cayman Islands and the
British Virgin Islands.

Pursuant to the Corporate Income Tax Law (“CIT law")
of the PRC which took effect on 1 January 2008,
subsidiaries of the Group established in the PRC are
subject to PRC income tax at 25% (2010: 25%) on their
assessable profits as determined in accordance with the
CIT law.

Further, under the CIT law, 10% withholding
tax is levied on the foreign investor in respect of
dividend distributions arising from a foreign invested
enterprise’s profit earned after 1 January 2008. As at
31 December 2011, the PRC subsidiaries of the Group
had accumulated losses and therefore no deferred tax
liabilities were recognised in this regard.

C.P. Lotus Corporation « NEERERLT

P B o 2 B
it 5

HA AR 2w B $L B g 2 B BEA T
A A AT ) OB i A o WO
A AR B R B A U A A B A 4R
ﬁ o

48 B 2 T 5 I A T T
Z P T AL A G T RS B
T I T % i A T A I AT
i i 43

WER —BFNE—H—HAERK
Z P AR (T2
ik ) > AHE [ R v ) e or = B
JB O ] 2 M SR s R Bl 2R e A 2
PR BEE B25% (R — 4R
25%) ©

AN > RSB T - Wi
AP BN AP R BRI
ZRFI)N\E—H— H 1%
Z Y A 3 IR BB S 10 %
ZHEMBL e RF——HE+H
Z+—H > AL Z A HE A
g B iEE > Fib > MY
I 90 T B T AL o



Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt % W& MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2011 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-Z——F+ZA=1+—HLFE (BRIEHBIHI UAR¥ETHEN)

Income tax in the consolidated 6
statement of comprehensive income
(Continued)

Reconciliation between tax expense and

4

ﬁ&gﬁ%ﬁlﬁﬂﬁi’%iﬂf

o

(b) L % i B €7 5 i R 45 3 ] B R

accounting profit at applicable tax rates: WS B R F
2011 2010
R4 R
RMB’' 000 RMB’000
ARW¥T X AN R¥To0
Profit before taxation o3 ot i ¥z Al 34,686 340,656
Notional tax on profit P25 % 3t 53 2 6k Bt Bl i A1)
before taxation, B BIE (ZF—F4
calculated at 25% 25%) (Fff5E)
(2010: 25%) (note) 8,672 85,164
Tax effect of non-deductible 7T 31 B B 37 > BE 5 5 2%
expenses 27,075 43,419
Tax effect of non-taxable I BB e A 2 B 2
income - (560)
Tax effect of non-taxable e SR B Do e 0 IR A 2 vk A
gain on redemption ZHBH R E
of convertible bonds - (102,122)
Tax effect of tax losses AR R s 1B =2 L R
not recognised 21,822 48,135
Tax effect of prior year's o P A 4 AR A R B s 1
unrecognised tax Z B
losses utilised (46,491) (69,004)
Tax effect of temporary TR R T IR 25 R 2 B
differences not recognised (152) (13,698)
Actual tax expense/(credit) EWEBLIE (AT A 10,926 (8,666)
Note: The PRC Corporate Income Tax rate of 25% (2010: i T == A N S T o s Sl T
25%) is used as the operations of the Group are B> MPA25% (T —F4E
substantially based in the PRC. 25%) Z W A 3 TR BB R
HER
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
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Directors’ remuneration 7 EHHE
Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 of the MBEEA TP B161ENBEZEF
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows: 4T :
For the year ended 31 December 2011: RE 22—+ _H=1+—HL
AR -
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefit Share-
Directors' and benefits Discretionary scheme based
fees in kind bonus contributions Subtotal payment Total
L EAR T YR %
wERE  REANE  REEE O BKAH it RN A
RMB' 000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB' 000
ARWFE  ARBFL  ARMTFE  ARBTX  ARMTE  ARBEX  ARWTX
Executive directors ks
Mr. Dhanin Chearavanont EL 3 - - - - - - -
Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont % A%k - 4,124 - 10 4,134 - 4,134
Mr. Narong Chearavanont LT s - 4,288 - - 4,288 - 4.288
Mr. Li Wen Hai i fi - 2,715 - - 2,715 - 2,715
Mr. Meth Jiaravanont Wk - 775 - - 775 - 775
Mr. Michael Ross B4 - 4,201 - - 4,201 - 4,201
Mr. Yang Xiaoping B - 2,305 - 10 2315 - 2315
Mr. Umroong Sanphasitvong  Umroong SanphasitvongZt 4 - - - - - - -
Mr. Robert Ping-Hsien Ho ¥R - - - - - - -
Mr. Suphachai Chearavanont 8- fek - - - - - - -
Mr. Piyawat Titasattavorakul ~ Piyawat Titasattavorakulfi4: - - - - - - -
Mr. Shih Hong-Mo w54 - - - - - - -
Independent non-executive B i E%
directors
Mr. Viroj Sangsnit Viroj SangsnitjG 199 - - - 199 - 199
Mr. Chokchai Kotikula Chokchai Kotikula%t 4 199 - - - 199 - 199
Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo BEnes 199 - - - 199 - 199
Total W 597 18,408 - 2 19,025 - 19,025
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Bt % W& MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2011 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-Z——F+ZA=1+—HLFE (BRIEHBIHI UAR¥ETHEN)

Directors’ remuneration (Continued) 7 EHRME (A
For the year ended 31 December 2010: BE_F2—-FET+_H=+—H 1
R
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefit Share-
Directors'  and benefits  Discretionary scheme based
fees in kind bonus  contributions Subtotal payment Total
Fid R L
EEES O FEANE  RERL BKGHE It 13 40) ik
RMB'000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB'000
ARBFE  AREFE  ARWFE  AREFL AREFE AREFX AREFE
Executive directors Ay
Mr. Dhanin Chearavanont BRI - - - - - - -
Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont EELN % - 4,079 - 10 4,089 - 4,089
Mr. Narong Chearavanont EETyiLs - 3,760 - - 3,760 - 3,760
Mr. Li Wen Hai Bk - 2,403 - - 2,403 - 2,403
Mr. Meth Jiaravanont Wk - 815 - - 815 - 815
Mr. Michael Ross BRIERE - 3,003 - - 3,003 - 3,003
Mr. Yang Xiaoping BNFEE - 2,139 - 10 2,149 - 2,149
Mr. Umroong Sanphasitvong Umroong Sanphasitvong i 4 - - - - - - -
Mr. Robert Ping-Hsien Ho ¥ R%EE - - - - - - -
Mr. Suphachai Chearavanont 56 - - - - - - -
Mr. Piyawat Titasattavorakul Piyawat Titasattavorakul%t 4 - - - - - - -
Mr. Shih Hong-Mo WER G - - - - - - -
Mr. Tse Ping Ak - - - - - - -
Mr. Zheng Mengyin BEokk - 1,202 - - 1,202 - 1,202
Mr. Nopadol Chiaravanont EEIN L3 - - - - - - -
Mr. Chatchaval Jiaravanon AR - - - - - - -
Mr. Kachorn Chiaravanont EES S - - - - - - -
Independent non-executive By E#H{ES
directors
Mr. Viroj Sangsnit Viroj Sangsnitf 4 209 - - - 209 - 209
Mr. Chokchai Kotikula Chokchai Kotikula%t 4 209 - - - 209 - 209
Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo BhEREE 209 - - - 209 - 209
Total fd 627 17,401 - 20 18,048 - 18,048
Note: Messrs. Piyawat Titasattavorakul and Shih Hong-Mo were Fit %k : Piyawat Titasattavorakulss 4 & jii

appointed as executive directors of the Company on
1 September 2010. Messrs. Tse Ping, Zheng Mengyin, Nopadol
Chiaravanont, Chatchaval Jiaravanon and Kachorn Chiaravanont
resigned as executive directors of the Company on 1 September

2010.

During the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010, there
were no amounts paid or payable by the Group to the directors
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office. In addition, no director waived
any emoluments for the years ended 31 December 2011 and

2010.
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1

76

Individuals with highest emoluments

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, five (2010:
five) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed in note 7.

Profit attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company

The consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders of
the Company includes a loss of RMB75,809,000 (2010: profit

of RMB424,322,000) which has been dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company (note 29(a)).

Dividends

No dividend was paid or proposed during the years ended 31
December 2011 and 2010, nor has any dividend been proposed
since the reporting date.

Earnings per share

(a) Basic

The calculation of the basic earnings per share is based
on the following data:

10

11

Jec G % I O

A T J5 5 7 T O L o o i (2R
RAE  TAL) B R E S LS TR K
RE7 8%

AR 2w Jbe 3R A A

A 2 ] B TRREAN 4 A e A 3 N RO
75,809,000c 2 G IH (T —F4E : A
[R#424,322,0005C 2 % H)) » W EFA
AT Z B AN (B E29(a)) ©

JBe

BRE-Z——FR_B—2F+J]
S H R A - B
VRSB S B R O
o B

5 B 6 A
(a) H&A&
B L3 AR A 3% T B E R R

2011 2010
e S d R R
RMB’' 000 RMB' 000
ARWs T8 NG T
Profit for the year attributable 2 /A ] fi 3 BEAh 2 48 J 35 A1
to equity shareholders
of the Company 23,813 349,322
The weighted average number of shares is calculated TnRESE 3 B Ay 8 H DL R 5 & Rk s
based on the following data: (=N
2011 2010
TR TR R
Number of ordinary shares CBHAT 295 48 I e
in issue 9,184,414,410 9,184,414,410
Number of Series A convertible — TE47 Z AR 51 Al # Jit 15 56 Jik Jit
preference shares in issue 1,518,807,075 1,518,807,075
Effect of Series B convertible RER—FENH =1+ HBITBERS
preference shares issued T 4 5 B 2 5
on 30 June 2010 3,897,110,334 1,948,555,167
Effect of Series C convertible W _Z——4%+_H_+=H
preference shares issued BEATCR B T 40 Bt 45 e
on 23 December 2011 (note) Z B (M) 545,078,075 403,792,239
Total ek 15,145,409,894 | 13,055,568,891
As set out in note 28(a), the holders of the convertible *EﬁW%ZS(a) > ] 1 B 1 G Bt ¢
preference shares are entitled to receive the same EPNGE L3 & PN ¢iid

dividends as the holders of ordinary shares.

C.P. Lotus Corporation « NEERERLT
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11 Earnings per share (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Basic (Continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt % W& MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2011 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-Z——F+ZA=1+—HLFE (BRIEHBIHI UAR¥ETHEN)

(a)
Note: As the Series C Convertible preference shares were
issued at a discount on the Company's share prices,
the number of shares in issue for 2010 has been
retrospectively adjusted for the bonus element included
in the Open Offer.
(b)

Diluted

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share is based

on the following data:

11 B (8)

FeA (B0)

FFRE : HRY CZR B W 40 B SR S I DA BT
AN F BT
FOBATZ B A BB
T 417 22 22 AL A 36 40y © A7 28 9

P -
B

B 4 ¥ R R B R R

2011 2010
SR "R R
RMB’' 000 RMB’000
ARW T8 ANRHEF 70
Profit for the year attributable 2 /A ] fi 3 EAh 2 48 J 15 A1
to equity shareholders
of the Company 23,813 349,322
Interest on convertible bonds T S AE 2 2 BB (B sES(a))
(note 5(a)) - 91,459
Gain on redemption of VI T 98 PR A 5 2 i R (P RE4)
convertible bonds (note 4) - (408,487)
Profit for the year attributable 7/ &l Bt REAL 2 42 B
to equity shareholders i ) ()
of the Company (diluted) 23,813 32,294

The weighted average number of shares (diluted) is

T3 By e H (H ) LT 51

calculated based on the following data: Rl EE A
2011 2010
SRR R R
Weighted average number BET A=+ —HILEEZ R
of shares for the year Jie 4 ¥ H
ended 31 December 15,145,409,894 | 13,055,568,891
Effect of convertible bonds B S 2 - | 1,948,555,167
Effect of share options Jie JBE = 5 2 1,009,597,522 985,699,697
Weighted average number BETHA=Z+—HIEEEZ
of shares (diluted) TR T2 e S H ()
for the year ended
31 December 16,155,007,416 | 15,989,823,755
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-Z——F+-A=1+—HLFE (BRBEHBI UAR¥ETHEN)

12 Fixed assets 12 W% AE
(@)  The Group (a) AHM
Interests in
leasehold
Furniture, land held for
fixtures Stores own use under
Leasehold and Motor under operating
Buildings improvements  equipment vehicles fit out Sub-total leases Total
filf R BEREZAN
[ 54 ik Rt ol RBhZEM it LHAEER H
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARMFE  ARWFE  ARWFxR ARWTE ARWTx  ARETx O ARETXE  ARMTX

Cost: A
At 1 January 2010 RZZ-FE—H—H 236,167 1,343,997 486,569 32,444 12,443 2,111,620 195,769 2,307,389
Exchange adjustments [ Ja % - (5) (108) (189) - (302) - (302)
Additions wE - 1,543 10,378 2,027 110,135 130,083 5273 135,356
Transfer i - 47,401 40,419 124 (87,944) - - -
Disposals it (1,686) (4,277) (57,072) (3,554) (3,769) (70,358) - (70,358)
At31December 2010  REZ-BEFZA=Z+—H 234,481 1,394,659 480,186 30,852 30,865 2,171,043 201,042 2,372,085
At 1 January 2011 REB——H—H—H 234,481 1,394,659 480,186 30,852 30,865 2,171,043 201,042 2,372,085
Exchange adjustments B Ji.a % - (@ (133) (240) - (377) = (3717)
Additions HE - 14,807 20,118 804 173,233 208,962 - 208,962
Transfer L7 - 119,481 40,968 1,255 (161,704) - - -
Transfer to assets held B R & E (Hik21)

for sale (note 21) - (7,055) (4,953) - (483) (12,491) - (12,491)
Disposals ik (141) (3,303) (69,849) (4,638) - (77,931) - (77,931)
At 31 December 2011 RZB-—H+ZH=4—H 234,340 1,518,585 466,337 28,033 4,91 2,289,206 201,042 2,490,248
Accumulated Rl 4i kA -

depreciation and

impairment

losses:
At 1 January 2010 REZ—FE~f—H 43,946 218,734 218,880 18,081 3,622 503,263 27,198 530,461
Exchange adjustments [ i = (5) (107) (165) = (277) = )
Charge for theyear AR 11,953 116,158 67,657 5,074 = 200,842 7017 207,859
Impairment loss WHER - - - - 663 663 - 663
Written back on disposal it 2 [1 # (1,276) (2,630) (49,606) (3,230) (67) (56,809) = (56,809)
At 31 December 2010 REB-2E+ZH=1—H 54,623 332,257 236,824 19,760 4218 647,682 34,215 681,897
At 1 January 2011 REZ——E—~f—H 54,623 332,257 236,824 19,760 4218 647,682 34,215 681,897
Exchange adjustments [ i % - @) (131) (215) - (350) - (350)
Charge for the year A W 11,406 115,195 52,344 2,808 - 181,753 6,294 188,047
Transfer to assets held ~ ## 2 HEKE (Hit21)

for sale (note 21) - (370) (291) - - (661) - (661)
Written back on disposal {2 i (1) (2,166) (63,552) (4,269) = (70,028) - (70,028)
At 31 December 2011 REZF-—E+ZH=F—H 65,988 444912 225,194 18,084 4218 758,39 40,509 798,905
Net hook value: Y ¢
At 31 December 2011 REB——HFZA=+—H 168,352 1,073,673 241,143 9,949 37,693 1,530,810 160,533 1,691,343
At31December 2010 RE-F-FEFZA=F—H 179,858 1,062,402 243,362 11,092 26,647 1,523,361 166,827 1,690,188
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-Z——F+ZA=1+—HLFE (BRIEHBIHI UAR¥ETHEN)

12 Fixed assets (Continued) 12 W% A (4)
(b) The Company (b) AAHE
Furniture,
fixtures
Leasehold and Motor

improvements  equipment vehicles Total
i~ R E

%L B ik i g k]

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB'’ 000 RMB'’ 000
AR ARBTE  ARWTE  ARWTX

Cost: %

At 1 January 2010 R-R—RF—~H—H 152 3,214 5,268 8,634
Exchange adjustments HE 5t i 2 (5) (108) (189) (302)
Additions HE - 21 542 563
Disposals ik - (31) = 31
At 31 December 2010 REF-FET-AZF—H 4. 30% 2021 8,804
At 1 January 2011 R_FB——H—H—H 147 3,096 5,621 8,864
Exchange adjustments JE B i 2% (4) (133) (240) (377)
Additions wE - 33 - 33
Disposals i (143) (702) (1,291) (2,136)
At 31 December 2011 ] R-F——#f-A=Zt—H - 2,294 400 6,384
Accumulated depreciation: Rl ##% :

At 1 January 2010 R_F—-FE—~H—H 152 3,181 4,599 7,932
Exchange adjustments HE b i 2 (5) (107) (165) (277)
Charge for the year AR JE R - 21 487 508
Written back on disposal 8 2 Ja] 43 = 31) = 31)
At 31 December 2010 ) REF-FFT-A=T—H w4 3004 4921 8,132
At 1 January 2011 R_F——4F—H—H 147 3,064 4,921 8,132
Exchange adjustments E 5, 8 ¢ () (131) (216) (351)
Charge for the year A JE Y R - 23 410 433
Written back on disposal A 2 o] 43 (143) (702) (1,291) (2,136)
At31December 2011 e S pUE; = e N S 225 384 6,078
Net book value: R i £ ¢

At 31 December 2011 R_F-—F+H=+—H - 40 266 306
At 31 December 2010 R-Z—FF+_A=1—H - 32 700 732
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
ZE-—FF+ZA=T-HLEFE (BRSBEHBPIN UAR¥ETHAEN)

S

13

12 Fixed assets (Continued) 12 W% A (4)
(c) The analysis of net book value of properties is as (c) PEZIEHRMAESHMT :
follows:
The Group
A
2011 2010
R4 ZE RS
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARW¥T L ANR¥T 0
In the PRC Y
— medium-term leases — I E 328,885 346,685
Representing: N
Buildings S 168,352 179,858
Interests in leasehold land SEMEZ A SRR
held for own use
under operating leases 160,533 166,827
328,885 346,685
(d)  Fixed assets held under finance leases (d) BEAMEFSEZEEEE
At 31 December 2011, the net book value of buildings held W _FT——E T _H=1—H>
under finance leases of the Group was RMB145,639,000 ﬁ%%ﬁﬂﬁ#ﬁ%ﬁ?%ﬁﬁ%@%
(2010: RMB156,537,000). The leases do not include 23 AE’?"“} 32 gg%oof.;) o
contingent rentals. The buildings are situated in the PRC ;ﬁgﬁxgﬁﬁgjﬁﬁﬁ o 2L
and held under medium term land use rights. %‘EP@ > SF DL Hp B A i RE 5
Intangible assets 13 B HEAE
The Group
A
2011 2010
R4 ZE RS
RMB’' 000 RMB’ 000
ARW¥T L AN R¥T 0
Cost: WA
At 1 January and 31 December B—HA—HE+ZA=+—H 232,000 232,000
Accumulated amortisation: Bl Bg -
At 1 January w—H—H 20,205 9,495
Charge for the year AR BE N TR 10,713 10,710
At 31 December HT+_HA=+—H 30,918 20,205
Net book value: Y i L 201,082 211,795

80

Intangible assets relate to operating lease agreements
acquired in the acquisition of subsidiaries in 2008. The fair
value on acquisition was determined based on a valuation
report prepared by an independent third party valuer and a
comparison of the market rental rates at the date of acquisition
and the estimated present value of payments due under the
lease contracts entered into by the acquired subsidiaries. The
intangible assets are amortised using the straight-line method
over the remaining lease terms which vary from 10 to 30 years.

The amortisation charge for the year is included in “Distribution

and store operating costs” in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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BE-Z——F+ZA=1+—HLFE (BRIEHBIHI UAR¥ETHEN)

Goodwiill 14 B2
The Group
A4 M
2011 2010
SR | DE R
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
AR¥T X ANR¥T T
Cost: JEA :
At 1 January and 31 December H—H—HBE+ZH=+—H 2,770,789 2,770,789
Accumulated impairment Bk WA 11 -
losses:
At 1 January and 31 December H—HA—HET+TZHA=1+—H (51,004) (51,004)
Carrying amount: IR i L
At 31 December HT_H=+—H 2,719,785 2,719,785

Impairment tests for cash-generating units containing
goodwill

As at 31 December 2011 and 2010, the carrying amount of
goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units
(“CGUs") as follows:

4 W B 2 B4 A A VLA R B0t
RE-F—-—HR-F—-FH+2A
=+ H o B R W A LR AR
BT 2 B e A F AL ([ B4 A B
frl) :

2011 2010
R AR TR

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

ARWT L A R¥F I8

East China Region 3 3 b [ 2,680,871 2,680,871
South China Region b [ 35,516 35,516
North China Region 3 | [ 3,398 3,398
2,719,785 2,719,785

The recoverable amount of the respective CGU/group of
CGUs is determined based on value in use calculations. These
calculations use cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a one-year period,
which are extrapolated up to the following 10 years and
perpetual life by using estimated growth rates of 3% to 6% per
annum (2010: 3% to 6% per annum). The key assumptions for
the value in use calculations are those relating to the discount
rate, forecast growth rates, and the expected changes to selling
prices and direct costs. The discount rate of 11% (2010: 11%)
reflects the current market assessment of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the CGUs. The growth rates are
based on industry growth forecasts. Changes in selling prices
and direct costs are based on past practices and expectations of
future changes in the market.
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Interests in subsidiaries 15 WBA 6 R
The Company
AR 2 )
2011 2010
o SRR
RMB’' 000 RMB’'000
ARW¥T L AR ¥ To0
Unlisted shares/capital e BBy BN E A Z AR
contributions, at cost 1,733,304 1,819,445
Add: Amounts due from o= R Wi B R A D ek
subsidiaries 1,497,697 1,477,431
Less: Impairment losses s U s (229,266) (254,224)
3,001,735 3,042,652
Amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, non-interest JRE WA B JBES 2 ] ik JEL 35 SRE HRH - R BB K
bearing and have no fixed terms of repayment. I [ 2 S 5k o
The following list contains only the particulars of the Group's DTFF RO A R BARGEEELS &
subsidiaries which principally affected the results, assets or R B Z M A TR o AR [E R DL
liabilities of the Group. The Group's effective interest in the A ) Z A ROME % A A W) Z R
entities below are all held by subsidiaries of the Company. The AFEFEH o WTFARBHRFPEBELZ
entities below are all companies established in the PRC with AMREEAF -
limited liability.
Group's
Name of companies Paid up capital effective interest
A4 AR KB AR
2011 2010 2011 2010
oy S e S 243 oy S 5 i S 203
% %
R 5 0 1 A A USD25,000,000% 7 USD25,000,0005 G 100 100
Beijing Lotus Supermarket Chain Store Co., Ltd. (note 1) (k1)
V%2 5 41 7 L A A+ RMBA R:%2,000,000% RMBA 2,000,000 100 100
Xian Lotus Supermarket Chain Store Co., Ltd. (note 2) (Wik2)
80 520 3 1 A R RMBA }¢#2,000,000C RMBA R 2,000,000 100 100
Zhengzhou Lotus Supermarket Chain Store Co., Ltd. (note 2) (Hit2)
5B S i TR A USD6,500,000% i USD6,500,0003 7t 100 100
Qingdao Lotus Supermarket Chain Store Co., Ltd. (note 1) (Wk1)
R 2203 1 A A USD48,000,0003: ¢ USD43,720,0005 7 100 100
Guangzhou Lotus Supermarket Chain Store Co., Ltd. (note 1) (k1)
55 5 7 5 R USD12,000,000% it USD12,000,0005 ¢ 100 100
Shantou Lotus Supermarket Chain Store Co., Ltd. (note 3) (Hfik3)
A L 3B A TR RMBA }¢#3,000,000C  RMBA R 3,000,0007 100 100
Foshan Nanhai Hua Nan Tong Trading (note 2) (Hf3k2)
Development Co., Ltd.
BARER AR R REARAR RMBA 29,500,000 RMBA ¥ 29,500,00070 100 100
Guangdong Hua Nan Tong Trading (note 2) (H3k2)

Development Co., Ltd.

C.P. Lotus Corporation « NEERERLT
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Interests in subsidiaries (Continued)

15 K& 2 ) Hi 4 (41)

Group's
Name of companies Paid up capital effective interest
VRS AR A ARG A A
2011 2010 2011 2010
S SEERE SRk SRRk
% %
3 5 A A A USD132,200,000%t  USD117,200,0003% 7t 100 100
Shanghai Lotus Supermarket Chain Store Co., Ltd. (note 1) (HFik1)
EEREBTOHRAR RMBA & #5,000,000%  RMBA 5,000,0007 100 100
Shanghai Changfa Shopping Centre Co., Ltd. (note 2) (k2)
it T R RMBA K #500,0000C  RMBA R¥#500,0007 100 100
Shanghai Yilian Supermarket Co., Ltd. (note 2) (H¥ik2)
RREETARAR RMBA K#500,0002  RMBA R #500,0007C 100 100
Shanghai Cailian Supermarket Co., Ltd. (note 2) (Hit2)
LR A RAR RMBA [$#500,0000C  RMBA R #500,0007C 100 100
Shanghai Xinlian Supermarket Co., Ltd. (note 2) (ii2)
o T T R RMBA K #500,0000:  RMBA R#500,0007 100 100
Nantong Tonglian Supermarket Co., Ltd. (note 2) (Hik2)
B 1Ly 7 B A PR A ] RMBA 4 #500,0000  RMBA K#500,0007¢ 100 100
Kunshan Tailian Supermarket Co., Ltd. (note 2) (Hi2)
LR A RA R RMBA }4#500,0000C  RMBA R#500,0007C 100 100
Shanghai Yalian Supermarket Co., Ltd. (note 2) (Wik2)
bR A RA RMBA }4#500,0000%C  RMBA 500,007 100 100
Shanghai Jialian Supermarket Co., Ltd. (note 2) (H¥3ik2)
il A T A A RMBA ¥:8,949,0000:  RMBA R #8,949,0007 100 100
Foshan C.P. Lotus Management Consulting Co., Ltd. (note 4, 5) (Hfik4 » 5)
MEETE (1) BaA R A USD16,800,000% 7 USD16,800,0003% 7% 100 100
C.P. Lotus (Shanghai) Management Co., Ltd. (note 1, 5) (Kik1+5)
LEEE A RA RMBA [4#1,000,000C  RMBA }4#1,000,0007C 100 100
Shanghai Lianyuan Logistics Co., Ltd. (note 2, 5) (W2 5)
b NEESRARERA RMBA K:#10,000,000%: RMBA ¥ 10,000,0007 80 80

Shanghai CP Xi Duo Wu Foods Co., Ltd.

(note 3, 5) (K3 5)
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Interests in subsidiaries (Continued)

Notes:

(1
2)

All are wholly-foreign-owned enterprises.

The equity interest is held by individual nominees on behalf
of the Company. These companies are domestic enterprises in
the PRC legally owned by PRC nationals. Due to the various
agreements in place, the Directors of the Company, after taking
legal advice, consider that the Company has effective control
over the operational and financial policies of these enterprises
and therefore the financial results and positions of these
enterprises have been consolidated into the Group since their
respective dates of establishment.

These are sino-foreign joint ventures established in the PRC.
This is a domestic enterprise in the PRC.

C.P. Lotus (Shanghai) Management Co., Ltd., is engaged in the
provision of management services to subsidiaries within the
Group. Shanghai Lianyuan Logistics Co., Ltd., Foshan C.P. Lotus
Management Consulting Co., Ltd. and Shanghai CP Xi Duo Wu
Foods Co., Ltd. are engaged in the provision of logistic services
and sourcing products, respectively. All other companies listed
above are involved in the operation of hypermarket stores in the
PRC.

Prepaid lease payments for premises

Q)]
(2)

3)
(4)
(5)

15  BH)& 2 v B 4 (81)

Fif Rk -

Fiv 34 % A1 T A o

Fh1 2 o AR B A AR A 4 W 5 A M A
1 o BLAEAF P A ANG LR
HZHPEAMAT o B O AT
B AAWEEREBERER
% > A A o> T A A R R o
SGATFZRE R M BBOR - FI > Bt
GEAFZHBREBMRUALFAZ
BROL A AR B R AR A o

BEA— B 2 M B AR 3
U A — G H B 2 A A 3

DAL (L) FHARAF > &
A 45 [ E R 2 B 2 v 4 3t A B
o EWHIEMHA RA TR ~ Bhilim
D WA A B 3 A R A B & B b
W ¥ % B A i A RO B 43 B e A i
J s B BR i v i o BT DA B A A Y
Z 4 w3 v A R i S o

16 AW EMER

The Group
A4
2011 2010
R4 R
RMB’' 000 RMB’ 000
AR¥T 0 A R0
At 1 January B—H—H 12,673 21,229
Additions B m 11,274 -
Charged to profit or loss RN X R
for the year (6,802) (8,556)
At 31 December R+_H=+—H 17,145 12,673
Represented by: 43 Ky
Non-current portion I BPHA R A 6,000 8,089
Current portion B3 5 45y 11,145 4,584
17,145 12,673

These amounts represent prepaid rentals for hypermarket stores
operated by the Group.

C.P. Lotus Corporation « NEERERLT
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Inventories

All inventories as at 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2010
are finished goods merchandise. The analysis of the amount of

Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt % W& MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2011 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

inventories recognised as an expense is as follows:

17

i

FAERZF——4H+ZA=+—HEZ
FFET_A=ZT-HZIEEH AR

BE-Z-—S+-A=1+-HLEFE(BRSEHABI UARBTHEMN)

iV il o TR R 3 M 2 A B OB

mE:
The Group
A4

2011 2010
SR ——4E R -FG
RMB’' 000 RMB'000
ARW¥T X A R¥T o0
Carrying amount of inventories sold 4 77 £ 2 [IE T {4 8,227,799 7,623,571
Write-down of inventories T E&2Z AE 15,935 17,589
8,243,734 7,641,160

Trade and other receivables

18 B I B U fib M ok

The Group The Company
A 4 18 Y, /|
2011 2010 2011 2010
TR | ZER-RE | DR | ZERE
RMB' 000 RMB'000 RMB’ 000 RMB’000
ARW¥TE | ARWTxX | ARBTL | ARWTX
Trade receivables, other B 00 R O T ~ L A R W
receivables and deposits kAT 4 221,331 199,385 3,160 2,956
Amounts due from related JRE Wi A B £ 3 K 0]
companies (note 36(b)) (Fi5E36(b)) 358,926 492,774 7,492 7,861
Amounts due from JRE WiC Y D 2 ]k JE
subsidiaries - - 5,713 68,748
580,257 692,159 16,365 79,565

All of the trade and other receivables apart from rental deposits
of the Group amounting to RMB59,648,000 (31 December
2010: RMB41,993,000) are expected to be recovered within one

year.

Included in the Group’s trade and other receivables are trade
debtors (net of allowance for bad and doubtful debts) with the

B %4 A\ R %59,648,0000C (—
ZF—FE+T_HA=+—H: AR¥
41,993,0007C) Ab » Ff F A 45 [ 2 % 4
T At O WS sk TR S — 4 g i [l o

AR [ 7 7 e B A B AR T A £
JE ORI (0 BRI R Z #8405) > R

following ageing analysis as of the end of the reporting period: R Z BB
The Group
A4 M

2011 2010
e A= i
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
AR¥T X ANR¥T T
Current 211 24,235 20,243
1 to 30 days overdue mY—=2=+H 2,031 2,702
31 to 60 days overdue P =+—H=ANTH 1,261 849
61 to 90 days overdue PN +—HZ=ILTH 101 48
Over 90 days I+ H 643 994
28,271 24,836

The Group’s credit policy is set out in note 31(a).
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20

21
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Pledged bank deposits 19 T AT A
At 31 December 2011, RMB124,801,000 (2010: RMB96,061,000) Mo ——4F+H=1+—H s RX&£H
of the Group’s bank deposits were pledged to banks as Z AT N RiH5124,801,00000 (=&
guarantees for the issuance of bank accepted bills for payments —Z4E : AR¥#96,061,00070) CLHLIH T
to suppliers. SRAT AR 2 1 A5 R W A K 5 Hh SR AT AR SR
PSR Z 45 O o
In addition, at 31 December 2011, RMB18,378,000 (2010: WA s R R——FE+HA=+—H >
nil) of the Group’s bank deposits were pledged to banks for AR %18,378,00000 (=8 —F4 : fif)
the issuance of letters of guarantee to landlords of certain Z A [ SR AT K AR TR AT DA
subsidiaries. T B 2 W) 2 5 A 9 AR R o
Cash and cash equivalents 20 B4 RB4LEEHR
The Group The Company
AL AR
2011 2010 2011 2010
DR AE | DRRE | DR | DR R
RMB’'000 RMB' 000 RMB’' 000 RMB' 000
ARW¥TL | ARWTZ | ARWTL | ARWTT
Cash at bank and in hand RITHH B & 242,380 288,422 17,159 72,224
Cash and cash equivalents of the Group and of the Company AR [ Je AN ] 2 B4 T B A SR A3 Tl
amounting to RMB19,920,000 (2010: RMB18,310,000) and Z5 N B H19,920,00070 (=& —F 4 ¢
RMB4,000 (2010: RMB19,000) respectively are non-interest A R18,310,0000C) & A\ R 4,0005C
bearing. (244 : ARW¥19,0000T) >
m‘l%‘ ©
Assets classified as held for sale 21 R ASBBEE®E
2011
SRR
RMB’' 000
ARWTH
Property, plant and equipment (note 12) W~ W Bt (fE12) 11,830
Inventories 1] 2,248
Trade and other receivables 8 4 % At JE WOk TH 1,849
15,927

On 2 September 2011, the Company entered into an
agreement with Whole Sino Limited (“Whole Sino”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Group’s ultimate holding company,
to dispose of SLS's supermarket business at the Madang Lu
Store (“Madang Lu Store Business”) at a consideration to be
calculated as the sum of the book value of the fixed assets,
the costs of inventories and other assets, less liabilities (if
any), owned or held by SLS in relation to the Madang Lu
Store Business, and not in any event to exceed RMB22 million.
Accordingly, the assets to be disposed to Whole Sino have been
accounted for in accordance with note 1(aa) and separately
classified in the consolidated statement of financial position.
The disposal was completed on 1 March 2012.

C.P. Lotus Corporation « NEERERLT
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Trade and other payables 22 B K M fib KE 4 K

The Group The Company
A% LY |
2011 2010 2011 2010
SR | DR R | DR | DR
RMB’' 000 RMB' 000 RMB’' 000 RMB' 000
ARW¥TE | ARWTZ | ARWTX | ARWTC
Notes payable JEA) S 48 205,909 81,850 - =
Creditors and accrued charges A 35K T A %2 T 3,216,285 | 3,091,134 3,468 44,647
Amounts due to related JRE A5 A B i 3k T
companies (note 36(b)) (Ft5E36(b)) 350,211 137,780 12,515 9,646
Derivative cash flow hedging AT SR TR
instruments 3,275 6,734 3,275 6,734
Amounts due to subsidiaries JRE A Ff B 2 ] K E - = 369,060 186,383
3,775,680 3,317,498 388,318 247,410

All of the trade and other payables apart from amounts due to
subsidiaries are expected to be settled within one year.

The above balances with related parties are unsecured, non-
interest bearing and repayable on demand.

Included in the Group’s trade and other payables are trade
creditors and notes payable of RMB2,597,204,000 (2010:
RMB2,375,738,000) with the following ageing analysis as of the

reporting date:

Wk JEASF S G 2 W) sk SELAT > P A % ST
A, B ASF sk S BT — 4 O A0 -

DA B R A S BN A B < O
AT~ AR P R R AR o

A4 2 8 E T K M R A Kk E S
wE A K H KM R ANRK
2,597,204,0007C (& —F4 : AR¥
2,375,738,00000) » ¥4 H Z MR Bt 4>

HranTF :
The Group The Company
A% A2 i
2011 2010 2011 2010
SR | DR | DR | DR
RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB’ 000 RMB’000
ARWTE | ARWTX | ARBTE | AR¥T
Uninvoiced purchases R HBEZ TR 1,009,128 886,294 = =
Within 30 days of invoice date BEHZ=1THRH 1,537,426 1,460,805 - -
31 to 60 days after invoice date EHBE=T—2ATH 32,784 23,964 - -
61 to 90 days after invoice date EHBEAT—FNLTH 762 821 = =
More than 90 days after BEOZE®RLTH

invoice date 17,104 3,854 - -
2,597,204 2,375,738 - -
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23 Bank loans 23 HATEX
The Group The Company
AL K4y )

2011 2010 2011 2010

R | DR RE | DR ZF 4

RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB’ 000 RMB’000

ARWTE | AR¥WFx | ARWTE | AR¥TX
Long-term bank loans due R—ENEHZ RY

within 1 year AT R 74,953 145,693 - 86,622
Long-term bank loans due R AR Z R

over 1 year 47 B 687,441 1,410,024 177,057 808,476

762,394 1,555,717 177,057 895,098

At 31 December 2011, the Group's bank loans are secured/

guaranteed as follows:

BoF—-—ET A= —H o AEH
Z AT ROR O HERIE ¢

88

The Group The Company
A% A4 i
2011 2010 2011 2010
R | DR RE | DR 224
RMB’' 000 RMB’000 RMB’ 000 RMB’000
ARWTE | AR¥Fx | ARWTE | AR¥TX
Secured bank loans TR SR AT B 5k
- Secured by assets held — ARG F A
by the Group 762,394 1,555,717 177,057 895,098

At 31 December 2011, the Company has drawn down floating
rate bank loans under the New Loan Facilities of USD28,000,000
(equivalent to RMB177,057,000), bearing interest at three-
month London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) plus 3.25%
per annum, which are secured by the share capital of certain of
its subsidiaries.

At 31 December 2011, the Group has drawn down floating
rate bank loans of RMB268,140,000 (2010: RMB302,475,000)
and USD50,340,000 (equivalent to RMB317,197,000) (2010:
UsD188,925,000 (equivalent to RMB1,253,242,000)), totalling
RMB585,337,000 (2010: RMB1,555,717,000), bearing interest
at over five years’ People’s Bank of China lending rate (“PBOC
rate”) multiplied by 1.275 per annum and three-month LIBOR
plus 4% per annum respectively, which are secured by the
share capital of certain of its subsidiaries. In addition, CPG,
the Group’s ultimate holding company has issued a letter of
undertaking for these loans to the respective lending banks.

C.P. Lotus Corporation « NEERERLT

W4+ H=1—H » AAH
O PR IR 8 307l 5 Bk T Z iR B A 4R
17 £ 7% 28,000,000 7T (FH 28 A R
177,057,00070) » 345 F) R =11 H M &
SRAT R AR B ([ ZRAT M 247 8. 1)
EF)R3.25% 5B > DL T H B E A =
Z B A AR LA o

W_Z——HFE+_HA=+—H » K%
B PR B B R RBAT R AR
268,140,00000 (= F — T4 : ARW
302,475,00075C) %50,340,0003% 5t (H
20 N R ¥317,197,00008) (& —
R4E 1 188,925,000F ¢ (FHEZE R AR
#1,253,242,00000)) > & N R ¥
585,337,000 (=& —F 4 : AR
1,555,717,0007C) > 43 B 44 4 Fl] 3R o 4E
DL b N RERAT Bk B R e Ph1.275
K =8 A i 2R AT AR B 4 A R
4%5H 8. > DL T 3B A B 2 A A
HEAH o BEAh » A A W 2 B R P B A
CPG T % Db 45 65 5k 35 ) AR 5% o 1 77 4 A
B ERAT o
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Other loans 24 Hfb £
The Group The Company
A% A8 ]
2011 2010 2011 2010
TR | TR RE | R4 | 22 FE
RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’000
ARETE | ARWTx | ARBTL | AR%TL
Loans from third parties (note (i)) = Z & & (M) 55,093 57,185 = =
Loans from related B A 3 2 B
companies (note (ii)) (B3 Gii)) 62,000 185,102 = =
Amounts due to a subsidiary JE S — 5% WY g /2 W]
(note (iii)) Z kI8 (FF k(i) ) - - 17,008 93,672
117,093 242,287 17,008 93,672
Notes: ff 5% -
(i) The loans from third parties are unsecured and bear interest (i) Tfa) 08 57 38 = 2 SRR AR > 3RAR

ranging from 2.08% to 5.31% per annum (2010: 1.876% to
5.31% per annum).

(ii) The loans from entities related to the Group's ultimate holding
company are unsecured and bear fixed interest at 6.931% per
annum (2010: 5.982% to 6.25% per annum).

(iii) RMB 14,544,000 (2010: RMB35,180,000) of the amounts due to
a subsidiary bear interest at one-year LIBOR plus 2% per annum.
The remaining amounts are non-interest bearing. The amounts
due to a subsidiary have no fixed terms of repayment.

FH2.08%FE5.31% (= F— 4 :
) HR1.876%E5.31%) 7l & »

(ii) Tia) A 45 [ d5 4% 48 e 2 ] 22 At AH B
1o = O I v s
FH6.931% (B —F4E : £ R
5.982%%6.25%) 7t B °

(i) WA —FKWEAAZKEANRE
14,544,00076 (ZF —F4 : A\R¥
35,180,0007C ) #% — 4F-ff B SR 47 7] 3
Pr B IAER R2%5H B - 8 T =2 3K E
KM B o FE A — K MHE A 7] Z 3K IH
908 [ S SR AR o

Obligations under finance leases 25 MEMEEIE

At 31 December 2011, the Group had obligations under finance )}‘/;\:g?*?—ép—[—i)zjgﬁ—— H o> ARGM

leases repayable as follows: ZHEAS AL B AR T -

The Group
A4
2011 2010
-4 R FE
Present Present

value of the Total value of the Total
minimum  minimum minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments
BRACALLE  EMAE  REES  REEE
AR BUH fHakMm fERBUE A aRAEE
RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB’ 000 RMB' 000
AR¥TIE ARWTE ARWTIE ARWTT
Within tyear TR S
After 1 year but within 2 years — AR WA N 6,677 24,858 6,052 24,858
After 2 years but within 5 years AR 1% 1H FL4F Y 26,645 76,500 23,428 75,738
After 5 years TR 153,785 229,050 163,679 254,670
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 187,107 330408 =~ 193,159 355,266
193,159 355,266 198,309 379,775
Less: Total future interest expenses & : KA F| B B % 440 (162,107) (181,466)
Present value of lease obligations MEREZ B 193,159 198,309
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26 Provisions

27

90

Provisions have been made for the Directors’ best estimate
of the expected costs associated with the cancellation by the
Group of certain new store projects and claims from suppliers.
Provisions are summarised as follows:

26

13 fli

$88 8 75 3 0 AT B A 4R [ IO T
w3 2 P B AR % 3t M i < 990 A 4R
Bl Z AP Al o BABERS T ¢

The Group
A

2011 2010
SR AE | SRR
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
AR¥T L AN R¥Foe
At 1 January wm—H—H 551 44,324
Provisions utilised o 2 54 (284) (43,773)
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H 267 551

Income tax in the statement of financial

27 BN DR N Z P 1 Bt

position

(a) Current taxation in the statement of financial

position represents:

(a) WERBLBERAZWBIBETS

The Group The Company
AL H AR
2011 2010 2011 2010
R | DR -RE | DR 2R
RMB' 000 RMB’000 RMB’ 000 RMB’000
ARBTL | AR¥Fx | ARWTE | AR¥TX
Balance at the beginning 4 & ] % 45 %
of the year 16,705 12,218 - -
Provision for PRC income  4£ Ji 4 H* [ i £5 Bt
tax for the year A 20,473 17,617 - =
PRC income tax paid O 4 I A8 A (18,279) (13,130) - -
Income tax payables at R 440 P 4 2 A S
the end of the year PR 18,899 16,705 - -
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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27 %{g;ﬂt%%i’émzmﬁﬁ

Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised - (b) UL 2 0B 2t B8 0 i K AL —
the Group A H
The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) TA A 9 O G725k U0
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial RZBERIEE R, (AE) 2H
position and the movements during the year are as B A B JLME AR R -
follows:
Interests in
leasehold
land held
for own
Property, use under
plant and operating Intangible
Tax losses equipment leases assets Others Total
W BEMNKZ
KGR ANLR
BB Rithio MR WBuE ) ik

RMB'000  RMB'000
ARHFE  ARMT

RMB'000  RMB'000

RMB’000  RMB'000

ARETE ARBTT ARWTE ARWTR

Deferred tax arising from: EEBH LR :

At 1 January 2010 RZZ—-FE—A—H 91,016 8156  (15017)  (55,626) 10,122 38,651
Credited/(charged) to profit AN/ (BI%) EBE

or loss (note 6(a)) (W zke(a)) 21,827 (671) 944 2,677 1,506 26,283
At 31 December 2010 REZ-FEFZH=+—H 112,843 7485 (14073)  (52,949) 11,628 64,934

Credited/(charged) to profit A/ (B%) 2B
(

or loss (note 6(a)) Hr3k6(a)) 6,030 (172) 944 2,678 67 9,547
At 31 December 2011 RZF——F+ZH=Z4—H 118,873 7313 (13,129)  (50,271) 11,695 74,481
An analysis of the net deferred tax asset and liability is IEAERLIE K E M AT EZ
set out as follows: B/(1

2011 2010

R4 R

RMB’' 000 RMB’ 000

ARW¥TIL A R¥To0

Net deferred tax assets 7% 4B i JH 7 A 113,717 106,596
Net deferred tax liabilities 7% %iE 6 JE A AR R (39,236) (41,662)
74,481 64,934
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27 Income tax in the statement of financial
position (Continued)

27 %g%#ﬂt%ﬁi’éﬂqzmﬁﬁ

92

() Deferred tax assets not recognised — the Group (c) RERBZIEHEBIEE E—ANEM

2011 2010

S| CE R

RMB’' 000 RMB'000

ARWT X A R¥EF L

Tax losses i I Jies 11 961,653 1,344,267
Deductible temporary TG 2 B 2 A

differences 111,890 114,641

1,073,543 1,458,908

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect FEEHEZ BT IEE EE

(d)

of the above items as it is not probable that future
taxable profits against which the above items can be
utilised will be available in the relevant tax jurisdictions
and entities.

Excluding the tax losses of the Company which do not
expire, the tax losses can be carried forward up to five
years from the year in which the loss originated, and will
expire in the following years:

H AR - B KT RS
IR L 5 ) 2 MR T i S T P 41
B bt YE AR 20 E R B i ] o

B A A W) 2 B JE s 4R A 28
A > 8 T M 4L T A 4 A A
Bz R TAENBER > 37 T 51
G ER

2011 2010
e S R -F

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

ARW¥T L N & T

2011 R4 - 354,629
2012 TR TR 397,016 401,844
2013 —g—E 171,157 230,876
2014 Ry 108,042 133,790
2015 R —HA 169,987 192,538
2016 RN 87,287 =
933,489 1,313,677

Deferred tax assets not recognised — the Company

At 31 December 2011, the Company has not recognised
deferred tax assets in respect of accumulative tax losses
of RMB28,164,000 (2010: RMB30,590,000) as it is not
probable that future taxable profits against which the
losses can be utilised will be available. The tax losses do
not expire under current tax legislation.
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(d)

RERBZIBEBREE A —ARAF
W ——4E+-_H=1+—H>
AT AR WE R 2 B R E i 1R
A 28,164,000 (=& — &
4+ \ R #30,590,0000T) = H
B 28 AE B IE & A > A K AT BB
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(a)
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28 JRA
Authorised and issued share capital Vi B AT AR
31 December 2011 31 December 2010
I W % | “F-REFZAZAH
No. of No. of
shares shares
Jid s id
("000) HK$' 000 ("000) HK$'0()£)
T T#x T T
Authorised: iy
Ordinary shares at par R H0.020 T 2 B M
value of HK$0.02 each 34,000,000 680,000 34,000,000 680,000
Series A convertible B R 0.0 6 2
preference shares at par AZ IS S
value of HK$0.02 each 2,000,000 40,000 2,000,000 40,000
Series B convertible BRT150.028 62
preference shares at par B JI ] 4 B It
value of HK$0.02 each 4,000,000 80,000 4,000,000 80,000
Series C convertible R 0.02% 62
preference shares at par CRAT R BB
value of HK$0.02 each 4,500,000 90,000 - -
Series D convertible T 0.020 1 2
preference shares at par DEVIEIE Y/ E St
value of HK$0.02 each 2,500,000 50,000 - -
2010
It S ey 2
No. of No. of
shares shares
J& % id s
("000) RMB’ 000 ("000) RMB'OOQ
T ARWF L T ARHT T
Issued and fully paid: CHAT RS :
Ordinary shares TR
At 1 January and R=A—Hk
Cotbeember PIRZEOR | anmaene vesss| oo e
Convertible preference EEY T
shares
At 1 January P—=H—H 5,415,917 94,720 1,518,807 26,725
Issue during the year LAk 3,673,766 60,029 3,897,110 67,995
_ M3TDecember  RYZASTOR | 9089683 154749 | SABST 94,720
Total at 31 December REZAZt—H2Z A% 18,274,097 340,614 14,600,331 280,585

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled
to one vote per share at general meetings of the
Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to

the Company'’s residual assets.

W B A N A RO IR YR
JBe 8 Z REF B R AR v W] B AR o
AR o A R
B T R A A A

ffzo
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28 Share capital (Continued)

94

(a)

Authorised and issued share capital (Continued)

At 31 December 2011, the total convertible preference
shares in issue include 1,518,807,075 Series A
convertible preference shares, 3,897,110,334 Series B
convertible preference shares and 3,673,765,764 Series
C convertible preference shares, respectively.

All the convertible preference shares are non-voting
shares. The holders of these shares are entitled to receive
the same dividends as the holders of ordinary shares.
In addition, the holders of these shares have the right
to convert any preference share into the Company’s
ordinary shares at any time at the conversion price at
the rate of 1 to 1 each subject to the minimum public
float requirement as set out under the Listing Rules being
maintained. Adjustments to the conversion price are only
made upon dilutive and other events which are related to
the Company issuing new shares or convertible debts.

By resolutions passed at the extraordinary
general meeting held on 23 November 2011, the
Company’s authorised share capital was increased
to HK$940,000,000 by creation of an additional
4,500,000,000 new Series C convertible preference
shares of HK$0.02 each and 2,500,000,000 new Series
D convertible preference shares of HK$0.02 each
respectively.

On 23 December 2011, 3,673,765,764 Series C
convertible preference shares of par value of HK$0.02
each were issued at a price of HK$0.22 per share
(equivalent to RMBO0.18 per share) to the existing
qualifying shareholders under the Open Offer.
Net proceeds from the shares issued amounted to
HK$805,056,000 (equivalent to RMB657,731,000) (after
offsetting issuance costs of RMB2,592,000) out of which
HK$73,475,000 (equivalent to RMB60,029,000) and
HK$731,581,000 (equivalent to RMB597,702,000) were
recorded in share capital and share premium respectively.

As set out in note 4, on 30 June 2010, 3,897,110,334
Series B convertible preference shares of par value of
HK$0.02 each were issued to redeem all the outstanding
convertible bonds. The fair value of the Series B
convertible preference shares on the issuance date was
determined at HK$0.22185 per share (equivalent to
RMBO0.1935 per share). Accordingly, HK$77,942,000
(equivalent to RMB67,995,000) and HK$786,632,000
(equivalent to RMB686,235,000) were credited to share
capital and share premium, respectively.

C.P. Lotus Corporation « NEERERLT

28 JBeAS (%)
(a) R EUOFHATBA (B
W_F——HE+_H=+—H>
AN Z OB AT T e B 4 e B
48 % 4 7 8 4%1,518,807,075
B AR B A% BB S B -

3,897,110,334/% B & 51| 7] #6 B 15
S 1%3,673,765,764 % CZ 5 7]
e B S It o

JIn A VT 45 B 8 S BB T A A 4
HEZ ey o DEAE By Z 550 N2
A S 38 e A N DO [ Je S
ZHER o BLA > IR Z R AT
N AL ZEAT AT AT 1 [ DA 6 49 £ DA
B3R Ll R AT ] 8 S I Ay
A T3 B2 HEA o AR AT
T B A R B A S A M B
BUAE o S AH 2 i 8 SRS i o
L I At SRLA 7 5] 5547 507 JB o T 45t
AR FIH -

E+—H_+=
k@t%ﬂzﬁ%%
%4,500,000,000
24%752%?0% 5] 7] e
J%2,500,000,000 /% %
o oz%mz%}fo% 5] ] e i 155
Sl s RAF Z P BACH =
940,000,000% ¢ ©

%—~$+ H=+=H:>
T %5 173,673,765,764)K
150.029 76 2 CZ 41| 7 4%
Hﬁ%ﬁﬂﬁ%&%?iﬁﬂ%&z

=
-
%

~FFEa

SIS FEHF
SN
=
4B
i
&

%

ZIU\%’H%‘z 592,0007C 1&) >

73,475,000% G (M & it N R ¥
60,029,0005¢) %731,581,000
won (FH 457 A\ R¥597,702,000
JG) 3 Sl Et A B A B B ¥k (B o

MBEH 4 E P _F—F
ENHAH=1TH » KAF BT
3,897,110,334/% 4F % i {60.02
WG Z B F1 AT e Bk 1 s B DA g
o] i A R A A =2 AT B 5 - B
EVIIE: 34 -5 /N =N 3
47 H B B0.22185% 58 (FH&E7
A B N R #0.193570) ° # 1t >
77,942,000% o (R 2t N R ¥
67,995,00070) 5%786,632,000
Wor (FHZ5 % N\ R#686,235,000
g) B4 Bl 5T A B AS B Bty vk
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Share capital (Continued) 28 JBEAK (4)
(b) Terms and numbers of unexpired and unexercised (b) AR B AR S B R AT 1 ik B b
share options at reporting date Z Ak B Yt
Details of the unexpired and unexercised share options T st HOR B ) B R AT A B
at the reporting date are set out in note 30(a) to the REZ FE1E > SR A 7 i 5 B 5k
financial statements. 30(a) °
Reserves 29 fili flii
(@) The Company (@) AAH
Retained
Share Convertible  earnings/
Share option  Exchange Hedging bonds (Accumulated
premium reserve reserve reserve reserve losses) Total
iR T RERA/
Bt bt HEB I 5 vl BEREEG  (RIHER) W
(Note (c)) (Note (c)) (Note (c)) (Note (c) (Note (c) (Note (b))
(it (o) (3 () (M 7E(c)) (H7E(c)) (H3E() (Hf&E(b)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB' 000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB' 000
ARBTE  ARETE  ARETE  ARETE  AR¥TX  AREFE  ARBTR
AtTlanuary 200 REF-FE-A-R 1321876 St s - 76459 (36381) 636738
Profit for the year BB - - - - - 0430 4430
Other comprehensive loss LMt 2T i 8 - - (56,604) (6,734) = = (63,338)
Total comprehensive EEREWA/ (BH) S5
_ncomeffloss)for theyear T .. U SO L T m sk
Issue of Series B BATBR I 4t B o6t
convertible preference  DUBFI W R ik
shares to redeem (H3t28(a)
convertible bonds
(note 28(a)) 686,235 - - - (264,539) 264,539 686,235
Transfer (note (c)) 1 (ko) (1,266,681) - - - - 1,266,681 -
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, GCeodde) - - - (6AS) 1320 686235
At 31 December 2010 R_F-FEFZA=+—H 741,430 53,841 (123,714) (6,734) - 1,019,161 1,683,957
At anuary 011 REEESASR ma L =L 6734 - 101861 1683957
Loss for the year EEER - - - - - (75.809) (75,809)
Other comprehensive M2 THA/ (B#)
income/(loss) - - (96,730) 6,734 - - (89,996)
Total comprehensive ERRTHA/ (BR) 4%
_ncomefloss for theyear - S 10 O A o A (165,805)
Issue of Series C BACRI el B e
convertible preference  (it28(a))
sharesfnoteds@) s - - o 1)
At 31 December 2011 REB-—FFZ =0 1339132 53,841 (220,471) - - 94335 2,115,854

(b) Distributability of reserves

In accordance with the Company’s articles of association,
distributions shall be payable out of the profits of
the Company. At 31 December 2011, the aggregate
amount of reserves available for distribution to equity
shareholders of the Company was HK$1,032,956,000
(equivalent to RMB943,352,000) (2010: HK$1,124,405,000
(equivalent to RMB1,019,161,000)).

(b) il 2 2 Uk Pk

WABA A B 2 A A R4 > 4
YR AT 2 W) Z B ) YR B o Y
F-—4FE+ZH=1—H » &AL
W) B R Z 4k IR TR 2 ik
#51,032,956,000% 7C (FH it A
[ #943,352,0000C) (&% —F
4E 1 1,124,405,0003 76 (FH 7%
A %1,019,161,0007C)) °
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29 Reserves (Continued)

96

(c)

Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(i)

(iir)

(iv)

Share premium

The application of the share premium account
is governed by the Companies Ordinance of the
Cayman Islands.

Under the Companies Ordinance of the Cayman
Islands, share premium is distributable to the
shareholders of the Company provided that
immediately following the date on which the
dividend is proposed to be distributed, the
Company will be in a position to pay off its debts
as and when they fall due in the ordinary course
of business.

On 29 November 2010, the shareholders of
the Company approved to reduce the share
premium account of the Company by an
amount of HK$1,217,243,000 (equivalent to
RMB1,266,681,000 at the historical exchange
rate) with the credit arising therefrom to be
transferred to retained earnings.

Revaluation reserve

The revaluation reserve represents the difference
between the Group’s share of the fair value of
the associate’s net assets and the Group’s interest
in associate at the date the associate became a
subsidiary of the Group.

Share option reserve

The share option reserve represents the fair
value of the actual or estimated number of
unexercised share options granted to employees
of the Company recognised in accordance with
the accounting policy adopted for share-based
payments in note 1(u)(ii).

Reorganisation reserve

The reorganisation reserve of the Group
represents the excess amount of the net asset
value as at 31 December 1990 of the Group’s
former listed holding company, Creative
Investment Limited (“CIL"), over the nominal value
of the Company’s shares issued for the acquisition
of 100% equity interest in CIL, pursuant to a
Scheme of Arrangement in 1991.

During 2010, the directors of CIL resolved to
liquidate CIL and distribute its reorganisation
reserve to the Company. Accordingly, the
reorganisation reserve balance was transferred to
retained earnings within the Group’s consolidated
equity.

C.P. Lotus Corporation « NEERERLT
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29 Reserves (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)
(v) Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of entities outside the
PRC. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with
the accounting policy set out in note 1(y).

(vi) Hedging reserve

The hedging reserve comprises the effective
portion of the cumulative net change in the
fair value of hedging instruments used in cash
flow hedges pending subsequent recognition of
the hedged cash flow in accordance with the
accounting policy adopted for cash flow hedges in
note 1(i).

As set out in note 5(a), the hedged bank loans
were repaid in 2011, and the cumulative
unrealised loss on the hedging instruments was
reclassified from hedging reserve to profit or loss
accordingly.

(vii)  Convertible bonds reserve

The convertible bonds reserve represents the
equity component of the convertible bonds
recognised in accordance with the accounting
policy set out in note 1(g). On 30 June 2010, all
the outstanding convertible bonds were purchased
and cancelled. Accordingly, the convertible bonds
reserve was fully transferred to retained earnings.

Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safequard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern so that it can provide returns for equity holders
and benefits for other stakeholders and secure access to
finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews its capital
structure to ensure it is in compliance with any loan
covenants. The Group also monitors capital on the basis
of the gearing ratio which is calculated by dividing
interest-bearing bank loans and other borrowings by
shareholders’ equity.

29 il fli (%)

(c)

(d)

ik 5 2 YRR K H g ()
(v) S

5 faft £ 5 i A P 4 5
o [ DL A i [e A S SR B 2
S 2 e T 2 B O 2
o A AL R B Y B
(y)Z & st B i 2 -

(vi) Bl g

AL B R () E BR A9 B
B G at BOR »
ol B8 i DR
e o B AR > AR
Bl it oh 2 $ubh TH A
g%%%%ﬁ%&%iﬁ

I 08 I S () B 5% » 4o
ZRGRKOR %
GO > JORI TR
BB 7t L M
Sl T4 BB 2 -

1] 1 IR 18 2 1k 7

] 5 JBEARE Z5 fol ) AR R
Wk 1(q)Z & &1 BOR P i R
Z W 85 P A 5 i 2 AL B R
B o B A AR A AT Z W i
HEOR-F-FHEAN
H=A BB Rk gy - 8
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(vii)

AR 4 B

ACSE F A B AR 2 H T IR
7 S A A8 20 D, e A S A R A
ZRB ) > B I A A e
Te 7 A AT A 2 B AR 2 N\ 2 2
gﬁs%ﬁ%uém%ﬂ&$ﬂ

AC A P R % R ] o B LA
A DL DROR S AT (] 52k B2k
A< 5 D) f3 5h b R (DLRE B RAT
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98

Equity-settled share-based transactions

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. The basis of eligibility of any of the eligible persons
to the grant of options shall be determined by the Board of
Directors from time to time on the basis of their contribution
or potential contribution to the development and growth of
the Group. The Scheme became effective on 31 May 2002 and,
unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for
10 years from that date.

Under the Scheme, the maximum number of unexercised
share options currently permitted to be granted is an amount
equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time. The maximum number of shares
issuable under the Scheme to each eligible participant within a
12-month period is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company
in issue at any time. Any further grant of share options in excess
of this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general
meeting. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted
and yet to be exercised under the Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company at any time shall not exceed
30% of the shares in issue from time to time.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
21 days from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$10 in total by the grantee. The exercise
period of the share options granted is determinable by the
Board of Directors, which is not later than ten years from the
date of the offer of the share options or the expiry date of the
Scheme, if earlier. No vesting period is set for each grant of
options.

The options for the time being outstanding may be exercised in
whole or in part at any time during the exercise period.

The exercise price of the share options is determined by the
Board of Directors, but may not be less than the higher of (i)
the closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the daily
quotation sheets issued by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Daily Quotation Sheets”) on the date of the offer
of the share options; and (ii) the average closing price of the
Company’s shares as stated in the Daily Quotation Sheets for
the five trading days immediately preceding the date of the
offer; and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s shares.

Both the exercise price and the number of securities comprised
in each option outstanding are subject to adjustments in
the event of capitalisation issue, rights issue, sub-division or
consolidation of shares or reduction of capital. As a result of
the Open Offer on 23 December 2011, the exercise prices and
the numbers of share options outstanding were adjusted in
accordance with the Scheme, as set out below.
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BE-Z——F+ZA=1+—HLFE (BRIEHBIHI UAR¥ETHEN)

30 P).H%;:ﬁih%ﬁ%ﬁ#ﬁiﬁ%

(Continued) 7
(a) The terms and conditions of the grants are as follows, (a) MBS W T - A
whereby all options are settled by physical delivery of BREBREL DLERARE
shares:
2011 2010
gk XN
Exercise Number of Exercise Number of
price share options price  share options
i d ik B HE S H it BB S H
Options granted raid 1y &
- on 6 June 2002 -RIRRZEAAANA HK$0.0687i % 610,800,660 |  HK$0.07i7C 599,661,440
- on 10 November 2003 -REZRZE+-A 1R HK$0.1865# L 610,800,660 |  HK$0.19i7C 599,661,440
- on 24 May 2005 -REBRAELAZTIH HK$0.1080%C 610,800,660 |  HK$0.113 599,661,440
Total number of Tl B HE 9 ) A
share options 1,832,401,980 1,798,984,320

(b)

The above options granted vested immediately from the VL 0 B RE e 92t HRLED H
date of grant and with a contractual life of 10 years. 1558 - TAFEH R - Bk
Each option entitles the holder to subscribe for one Vi I HE 46 T e N R AR A W] —
ordinary share in the Company. JBE A i = RE A o
The number and weighted average exercise prices of (b)  JEMHEZ B H R F 547
share options are as follows: W :
2011 2010
SRk i S 3
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number exercise Number
price of shares price of shares
T4 T4
frbi Bt R T i
Outstanding at 31 December RTZAZT-H2 &R HKS0.121%%  1,832,401,980 |  HKS0.123%%  1,798,984,320
Equivalent to MR RMBA K 0.0987¢ RMB A KH0.10578

Financial risk management and fair

values

31 ikl g A P R A Aol

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks
arises in the normal course of the Group’s business.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to
manage these risks are described below.

(a) Credit risk

AR EIE W BB DY R AfE R/ - WE
B4~ B R R E B

A58 [ 7 4f 2 O 2 e A T R A
S0 785 o i A P B SR AR 91 DA A B 0k 4 L
B sIm T

(a) fRftH BB

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
and other receivables. Management monitors the
exposures to these credit risks on an ongoing basis.
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Financial risk management and fair
values (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

As set out in note 36(b), the Group had receivables due
from its immediate parent, C.P. Holding (BVI) Investment
Company Limited (“CPH"”), and other subsidiaries of
CPG, the ultimate holding company, amounting to
approximately RMB356 million (2010: RMB488 million)
as at 31 December 2011, which represents approximately
61% (2010: 71%) of the Group’s total trade and other
receivables. Given CPG is the Company’s ultimate
holding company, the Directors consider that these
amounts are fully recoverable.

Except for the above, the Group has no other significant
concentration of credit risk on trade and other
receivables. Sales to retail customers are mainly made
in cash or via major credit cards. Cash and deposits are
placed with banks which the Directors consider have
sound credit ratings.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented
by the carrying amount of each financial asset in the
statement of financial position. The Group does not
provide any guarantees which would expose the Group
to credit risk.

Liquidity risk

The liquidity of the Group is primarily dependent on its
ability to maintain adequate cash inflow from operations
and obtain adequate finance from external parties or its
ultimate holding company to meet its debt obligations
and committed future capital expenditures as and when
they fall due.

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had net current
liabilities of approximately RMB1,823 million (2010:
RMB1,820 million). The Group generated net cash from
operating activities of approximately RMB500 million
during the year ended 31 December 2011 (2010:
RMB623 million) and received net proceeds from the
Open Offer of approximately RMB658 million.

Based on the Group’s operating performance and cash
flows in 2011, additional capital injected through the
Open Offer, and the New Loan Facilities, the Directors
consider that adequate liquidity exists to finance the
working capital and capital expenditure requirements of
the Group for the forthcoming year.
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(a)

(b)
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Financial risk management and fair

values (Continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following are the contractual maturities of financial
liabilities, including estimated interest payments and

31 S W BB KA R

(%)
(b) 98 Ve 4 W W (0)

UFTEmARz RAMMK > 4
355 A it A0 U8 Ak sk e L 53 s L B

excluding the impact of netting agreements: Z B
The Group A% H
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
AT BB AR b
More than  More than
Within 1 year but 2 years but
1yearor lessthan less than More than Carrying
on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total amount
LT S 1] LER 3
L] WEN  HEER L] ik I i
RMB' 000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETE  ARETFL  ARETE ARBFLZ ARETE AR®Tx
31 December 2010 ZE-RETZAZTH
Non-derivative financial liabilities % T} 2 & &
Bank loans AT (229,764)  (295,519)  (1,325,879) - (1,851,162) 1,555,717
Other loans HABE (251,132) = - - (51132) 242,087
Notes payable, creditors JEA 88 - AR
and accrued charges MR B (3,179,718) = = - (3179,718) 3,179,718
Amounts due to related companies  HEft i Bl £k (137,780) = = - (137,780) 137,780
Obligations under finance leases MEREE (24,509) (24,858) (75,738) (254,670) (379,775) 198,309
(3,822,903) (320,377)  (1,401,617) (254,670)  (5,799,567) 5,313,811
31 December 2011 ZE P AZt N
Non-derivative financial liabilities A% T 12 2R
Bank loans RITH (118971)  (136,187)  (545,410) (112,005  (912573) 762,394
Other loans FAE (123,033) - - - (123033) 117,003
Notes payable, creditors TEAH 08 ~ AR
and accrued charges RIER A A 2 (3,422,194) - - - (3422194 3,422,194
Amounts due to related companies  RERFAHE & £ (350,211) = = - (350211) 350,211
Obligations under finance leases W& EH(E (24,858) (24,858) (76,500)  (229,050)  (355,266) 193,159
(4,039,267) (161,045) (621,910) (341,055)  (5,163,277) 4,845,051
Derivative financial liabilities ik TR 2MA K
Interest rate swap GBS (3,275) - - - (3,275) 3,275
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31 Financial risk management and fair 31 TMBEAERARM
values (Continued) (%)
(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) By % 4 B (&)
The Company A4
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
R FHI L0 b
More than More than
Within 1 year but 2 years but
1yearor lessthan less than More than Carrying
on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total amount
o L A 1 (LR
cEm WAER  HAER L ik Je i L
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARMTE  ARBFEZ AREFZ ARBFZ ARWFE ARWTx
31 December 2010 ZEFETZASTH
Non-derivative financial liabilities JAi% 132 28§
Bank loans AT B (131,605 (184,148)  (729,410) - (1,045163) 895,098
Other loans Ak (93,672) - - - (93,672) 93,672
Creditors and accrued charges T 3R R A 2 (51,381) - - - (51,381) 51,381
Amounts due to related companies BRI 4 £ (9,646) - - - (9,646) 9,646
Amounts due to subsidiaries HE O A R (186,383) - - - (186383 186,383
(@72687)  (184,148)  (729,410) - (1386245 1,236,180
31 December 2011 ZB——HFZA=t—H
Non-derivative financial liabilities A% LR 2 4@ #
Bank loans AT (67700 (13,785 (81,660) (112,005 (2142200 177,057
Other loans BN E (17,455) - - - (17,455) 17,008
Creditor and accrued charges T 0 TR A A AT ) (3,468) = = = (3,468) 3,468
Amounts due to related companies BB & £50H (12,515) = - - (12,515) 12,515
Amounts due to subsidiaries O W 7 R (369,060) - - - (369,060) 369,060
(409,268) (13,785) (81,660) (112,005) (616,718) 579,108
Derivative financial liabilities ~ ik T2 4 A K
Interest rate swap ES ] (3,275) - - - (3,275) 3,275
(c) Interest rate risk (c) A3
(i) Interest rate profile (i)  FIEHR
The Group’s exposure to changes in interest rates i%@%%iﬂ%?&@)ﬂ
relates primarily to the Group’s cash and cash B iEEﬁ?ﬁ%@z{ﬂ
equivalents, pledged bank deposits, bank loans, ﬁgfﬁ%%ﬁ;ﬂjﬁﬁz
other loans, and obligations under finance leases. ﬂ%ﬁ?fj{j ﬁﬁﬁ%j’; - B
b £ 5K T il L B AT o
The following table details the interest rate profile Tﬁ?ﬁ]ﬁ%.&ﬂié\ﬂ
of the Group’s and the Company’s net borrowings TR R 2 fif 5E
(interest-bearing liabilities less interest-bearing (P B £ £ 310 9k Y U8, B4 25
financial investments excluding cash held for BERE (B3 A 2y 00 2
short-term working capital purposes) at the end of HaHMPA B E))
the reporting period. Z R B HEDL o
102 C.P. Lotus Corporation « NEEFREFRAQT
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31 Financial risk management and fair 31 SRR BEEIAREARM
values (Continued) (%)
(c) Interest rate risk (Continued) (c) FREB (8)
(i) Interest rate profile (Continued) (i) FIZ Y (4
The Group ALH
2011 2010
it T S 25
Effective Effective
interest Carrying interest Carrying
rate value rate value
LGRS I i R GRS T £
RMB' 000 RMB' 000
ARWT NI ST
Variable rate instruments: FHAKTH:
Pledged bank deposits BRI AT 1.81% 143,179 1.75% 96,061
Cash and cash equivalents ReRF4%H 0.50% 222,460 0.22% 270,112
Bank loans RATEH 5.95% (762,394) 5.92% (660,619)
Other loans A& 2.08% (42,093) 1.88% (44,185)
(438,848) (338,631)
Fixed rate instruments: ML :
Bank loans AT - - 5.25% (895,098)
Other loans MR 6.75% (75,000) 6.14% (198,102)
Obligations under finance leases & # & E{E 9.8%-10.03% (193,159) |  9.8%-10.03% (198,309)
(268,159) (1,291,509)
The Company Y N/ |
2011 2010
it S e 24
Effective Effective
interest Carrying interest Carrying
rate value rate value
LGS I i HA % e
RMB' 000 RMB'000
AR N ST
Variable rate instruments: F#HAE TR
Cash and cash equivalents ReRHi4%H 0.02% 17,155 0.01% 72,205
Bank loans RITEH 3.82% (177,057) - -
Other loans HMb 2.63% (14,544) 3.02% (35,180)
(174,446) 37,025
Fixed rate instruments: HEMELL
Bank loans RATE - - 5.25% (895,098)
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31

104

Financial risk management and fair
values (Continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

»

31 ﬁ:ﬁ)&ﬂl‘ﬁ%ﬂ&’&fbﬁ

Interest rate risk (Continued) (c) A=) Be (%)
(ii) Sensitivity analysis (i)  BIEEJE
At 31 December 2011, it is estimated that a WN_F22——4H+_H
change of 100 basis points in interest rates, with E+—H st BRZ
all other variables held constant, would increase/ 100 2 i 5 B ( ﬁfﬂlﬁﬁ’ﬁ
(decrease) the Group's net profit after income tax W] 5 R 2K MR S ) A%
and retained profits by the amounts shown below: (A A4 H 2z B
1% Y A1) A % A 1R s )
BT :
2011 2010
“R—4 D S 243
RMB’' 000 RMB'000
ARW T ARWT 7T
Variable rate instrument: FEHFETH :
100 basis point increase 34 m 1001 3 26 (4,388) (3,386)
100 basis point decrease A 10018 5 B 4,388 3,386
The sensitivity analysis above has been determined VA b 22 S5 B 43 T AR R
assuming that the change in interest rates had AL B KR E H
occurred at the reporting date and had been L A7 AR 2 4 b B A
applied to the exposure to interest rate risk for ARG o PR —F
financial instruments in existence at that date. The MR SEMER I o
analysis is performed on the same basis for 2010.
Currency risk (d)  Ab B B
The Directors consider that as the Group’s retail HRERBAEAZZEEGE R
operations are all based in the PRC, the Group is hb‘"qj@ AR A8 A A S
not exposed to significant currency risk in its retail R 46 B K Ah BEE J B o
operations.
The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk from AR ] 2 A RE J B 2 225 B A T
bank loans held by certain PRC subsidiaries, which w IR A Ja A ) DL 3 T s 5 B LA
are denominated in USD. At 31 December 2011, the ZHATRR R
relevant bank loans amounted to USD50,340,000 (2010: H=E1—H > HBAZBITEHRS
USD54,075,000). A 5% strengthening/weakening 50,340,000k G (= F — &4 :
of RMB against the USD would result in an increase/ 54,075,00035C) o A =& ——
decrease in the Group’s profit after tax and net assets Bt H=+—H>5%A\R¥%
of approximately RMB15.9 million as at 31 December SLFETCZ W H 59 A AR 4
2011 (2010: RMB17.9 million) had such change occurred Z R BLA% HE A K K R AR I
at that date, assuming all other risk variables remained ¥ % N\ K ¥15,900,0005C (—
constant. F—F4: AR%17,900,000
JC) o % UCSE R H OB A ARG
A At J g vy A R R AR R B o
RMB is not a freely convertible currency and the PRC N RN IE B S B W %
government may at its discretion restrict access to foreign B A A 2 B % i, B ] B IR € 51
currencies for current account transactions in the future. R 5 VIO AT o AN 4 e ol
Changes in the foreign exchange control system may F 0 2 v 5 VT B0l A 4 T i A
prevent the Group from satisfying sufficient foreign JE 5] A R il 75 B A £ [ Bl R B8 1)
currency demand and the Group may not be able to pay B SR DA T DR B B L o
dividends in foreign currencies to its shareholders.
Fair values (e) HRfi
All financial instruments are carried at amounts not BN ——FE R E—FRE+
materially different from their fair values as at 31 A=E1T—H A4 TRAZER
December 2011 and 2010. T i e JE oy SufE ¥4 JE TR 26 3 o

C.P. Lotus Corporation « NEERERLT
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Contingent liabilities 32 HAAMRK
As at the reporting date, the Company has issued two REEH > RAF MBI =B
guarantees to an independent third party which expire in 2025 A R AR W Z R > 3E H
and two guarantees to a bank which expire in April 2012 and —FKEBIATBHWIE SN R T — 4
July 2012 respectively in respect of finance lease arrangements MH K % — AR LA B AR
entered into by its subsidiaries (see note 25). As at the end of Pl N N P g = R T i
reporting period, the Directors do not consider it probable that 7E25) o ¥R HIOR o % 300 AR 4 DL
claims will be made against the Company under any of the b AT 3 AR A RT B ) AR 2 W R A o AR
guarantees. The maximum liability of the Company at the end AFPRBHZHERTRERETRZ &
of the reporting period under the guarantees issued is 100% KEE T8 A 7 %% 5T W JE L
of the future minimum lease payments under the two lease ZRREAHENHKZ100% 4 A\ R
agreements entered into by the subsidiaries of RMB100 million. 100,000,0007T °
Operating lease commitments 33 BUHMEZRE
As lessee RIRALA
At 31 December 2011, total future minimum lease payments MNoF——F+_H=1+—H > AHH
under non-cancellable operating leases are payable as follows: TH =2 8 R B 2 AR 2k B A R B B A ik I
BMEWME -
The Group The Company
AAEH AR
2011 2010 2011 2010
“F—k e o 23 “F—k e S 23
RMB' 000 RMB'000 RMB' 000 RMB'000
ARWT ARMF T ARWT 7 ARET T
Within 1 year —HERH 436,333 290,293 - =
After 1 year but within 5 years —EHMAAERN 375,314 388,404 - =
After 5 years LR 30,638 38,252 - -
842,285 716,949 - -

The Group is the lessee in respect of a number of office and
store premises held under operating leases. The leases typically
run for an initial period up to 20 years, with an option to renew
the lease when all terms are renegotiated. Lease payments are
usually increased every 2 to 7 years to reflect market rentals.
None of the leases includes contingent rentals. The store leases
typically provide the Group with the ability to cancel the leases
within the lease period on payment of a penalty and/or after a
minimum period of leasing.

As lessor

Property rental income earned net of negligible outgoings
from subletting of the Group’s leased properties during the
year amounted to approximately RMB285,712,000 (2010:
RMB241,412,000).

ANNUAL REPORT 20115 %
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Operating lease commitments 33 BAMEZRE ()
(Continued)
At 31 December 2011, the total future minimum lease payments A _FE——F+_H=+—H > AH[H
under non-cancellable operating leases are receivable as follows: HZ®E ﬁ%ﬂ%zﬂ%ﬂi%ﬁﬁlﬁrﬂﬁ%%ﬁ
wmE
The Group
A LM
2011 2010
—F—-—4 —FFF
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
ARWTE | NR¥TE
Within 1 year —4EN 121,800 87,458
After 1 year but within 5 years —AERH AR N 45,626 31,342
After 5 years TR 6,350 9,221
173,776 128,021
The leases typically run for an initial period of 3 months to 2 FHE— R WG E=/HE/mE > &
years, with an option to renew the lease when all terms are AT % T A Ak e R R A - 1
renegotiated. In addition to the minimum rental payments a8 > B AR AR A > 24 A
disclosed above, the tenants have commitments to pay S AR > 4% S RO T B 2 KR
additional rent of a proportion of turnover for certain sub-leased W > FH P AR GE R S 2 B T A B
properties if the turnover generated from those sub-leased HANZ 4 o BN R BESEAY AR FH A\ RE £
properties exceeds the predetermined levels. Contingent rentals S DL Bz RE R g sk R4 o
are not included in the above commitments as it is not possible
to estimate the amounts which may be payable.
Capital commitments 34 HARKYE
Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2011 not RoF——F+_H=+—H "M%
provided for in the financial statements were as follows: WMEWARBHZEARRENT :
The Group
7 4R 1
2011 2010
R e in
RMB’ 000 RMB'000
AR T X N T
Contracted for B E o] 32,456 54,737
Authorised but not contracted for TR FT 4 254,639 29,008
287,095 83,745
All of the above capital commitments were made in respect of b B A G A AR 3 ¥ s BT 3 R R
the establishment of new hypermarket stores and renovation T B E &2 S TRk o
work on existing stores.
Employee retirement benefits 35 f& BB

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees to join
a Mandatory Provident Fund (the “MPF scheme”), a defined
contribution scheme managed by an independent trustee.
Under the rules of the MPF scheme, each of the Group and
the employee make monthly contributions to the scheme at
5% of the employees’ gross earnings, subject to a maximum of
HK$1,000 per month per employee. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the MPF scheme is to make the required
contributions under the scheme.
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Employee retirement benefits

Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt % W& MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2011 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(Continued)

Employees of the Group in the PRC participate in several defined
contribution retirement schemes organised separately by PRC
municipal governments in regions where the major operations
of the Group are located. The Group is required to contribute to
these schemes at rates ranging from 10% to 22% (2010: 10%
to 21%) of salary costs including certain allowances. A member
of the retirement schemes is entitled to retirement benefits
equal to a fixed proportion of the salary at the retirement date.
The retirement benefit obligations of all existing and future
retired staff of the Group are assumed by these schemes.

Material related party transactions

(a)

BE-Z-—-F+=8

35

36

The Group entered into the following material
transactions with entities controlled by, or related to, the

ST-ALFEGESEHAN  LARBTRHEMN)

D B 38 o it A (480)

AREE AP 2 R B 2 5 4R T A
AL > b [ R 43 A B
TR R R H o A4 B 7k b At
A AR (BIEZ TN 8 10% %
22% (B —F4E : 10%%21% ) =2 it
K o IBRARET B R B = R R AR H DL 5
4 2 [ 8 FR A B IR ARAE A o AN4E 95
0 IS T R AT I A B AR SRR
AR B =z 1B k48 A B AT -

EAHBALZRY
(@) RS B AT P SR gl dg £ 24

CPGHH] Bz A2 EAR

ultimate holding company, CPG, during the year. SWE o
The Group
AL
2011 2010
e R R
RMB’' 000 RMB' 000
ARWT ANRWEF T
Recurring transactions: BEERY
Store merchandise sold to CPH and ST BT CPHEK
its related entities A 821,781 542,097
Store merchandise purchased from Orient PR M5 B 7% 5 B Orient Success
Success International Limited (“OSIL") and International Limited ([OSIL]) &
its related entities (including CP China LA 4 % (BL45CP China
Investment Limited (“CP China") Investment Limited ([ CP China])
and its subsidiaries) R ILHE A ) 160,327 208,764
Rental income from Chia Tai Commercial HLER WA B IE K 1 3 s ot e i 1
Real Estate Management Co., Ltd. HRAF (TEXRRE]D &
("CTCREM") and its subsidiary JEB 8 A 17,710 17,530
Rental expenses to Shanghai MEL Ay LR RERARAH
Kinghill Limited (“SKL") (I L¥gad]) 18,000 18,000
Consulting fee paid to CTCREM T B W AT IE K B 5,664 6,384
Master trademark fee paid to CPG FHEE XM TCPG 736 679
Reimbursement of staff costs (note (i) 18 B AR 8 (FEE(T)) 80,706 75,153
Non-recurring transactions: TR :
CPG CPG
- Bank facility undertaking fee payable — BT SRATRLE AR E 21,801 17,937
- Guarantee fee payable - R ERER - 2,374
CPH and its related entities CPHE H M4 %
- IT service fee income — & BB R % & W A - 9,843
- Procurement service fee income — R M & A - 1,761
Other related parties HALHI AL
- Store merchandise sold — 885 1 il - 5,644
- Proceeds from loans — B ZHH - 53,102
- Repayment of loans —EREHR 122,713 380,000
- Interest expenses in respect of: = VSVl PA-S AR
- Other loans — HAb 5% 9,891 27,992
- Convertible bonds — W[ AR % - 91,459
- Consideration payable — AR - 785

ANNUAL REPORT 20115 %

107



Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt % W& M
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36 Material related party transactions

36 EAMBALZRY (H)

(Continued)
(a) (Continued)
Note:
(i) The employment contracts of certain individuals who

previously worked for the Group but now work for CPH
and its related entities on a full-time basis remain with
the Group. The employment costs of such individuals
were reimbursed by CPH and its related entities to the
Group. Total staff costs disclosed in note 5(b) are stated

net of such reimbursement.

(b) In addition to the other loans due to related companies
as disclosed in note 24, the Group had the following

(a) (%
Ff 5%

(@)

FTROAASEE TAREB A
CPH & FCAH B A 38 2 3% T 1%
Z Nt Z 18 0% A #0054 B
AL - AL B T 08 B
AR FCPH B A0 B A 28R R
T A [ o R B RS (b) K 8B
Z B B RA S OB %R

o

(b) A AH B i 3 2 SL At B0 B
RE2445 FR A 5 ACSE [ LA B 4 3

balances with related companies: ZHEEBWE
The Group The Company
ARG |

2011 2010 2011 2010
SRk | ZR-RE | DRk | R4
RMB’ 000 RMB'OOE) RMB’ 000 RMB'009
AR¥WTE | ARWTEX | ARBTL | AR®TE

Due from related companies M WoHI B & 3k
- CPH and its related entities — CPHR LA B A 3 353,593 483,758 7,488 7,861
- OSIL and its related entities —OSILE JH B A % 2,350 4,593 = =
- CTCREM and its subsidiary —E RT3 B Ho W A ) 2,976 3,978 - =
- Other related companies — O A I A 2 7 445 4 =
358,926 492,774 7,492 7,861

Due to related companies R R0 B 43
- CPG —CPG 21,664 15,326 12,515 9,646
- CPH and its related entities — CPHR L B 4 3¢ 238,730 14,952 - -
- OSIL and its related entities —OSILK HoAH B 4 3 34,568 59,142 - -
- SKL RGBS 26,297 22,140 - -
- Chia Tai Land Company Limited - IEKE A RA A 25,293 19,337 - -
- Other related companies — A B 4 3,659 6,883 - =
350,211 137,780 12,515 9,646

(o) Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration of key management personnel of the
Group, including amounts paid to the Company’s

() FHHEAARME

AEE EZGIMAR IS > &
115 B 5E7 3¢ 2 2 32 AP AL F

directors as disclosed in note 7, is as follows: BZLEHWT -
The Group
A%

2011 2010
it Sabe 3 S 25
RMB' 000 RMB'000
ARW T ARYT T
Short-term employee benefits H.101 08 B 4 A 23,927 20,648
Post-employment benefits SR FAF 40 1,203
Termination benefits BRI IR - -
Equity compensation benefits T2 R A - -
23,967 21,851

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note

5(b)).
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Immediate and ultimate holding
companies

At 31 December 2011, the Directors consider the immediate
holding company to be C.P. Holding (BVI) Investment Company
Limited, which is incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, and
ultimate holding company to be Charoen Pokphand Group
Company Limited, which is incorporated in the Kingdom of
Thailand. None of these entities produces financial statements
available for public use.

Accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances. The selection of critical accounting
policies, the judgements and other uncertainties affecting
application of those policies and the sensitivity of reported
results to changes in conditions and assumptions are factors
to be considered when reviewing the consolidated financial

statements.

Notes 14 and 31 contain information about

the assumptions and their risk factors relating to goodwill
impairment and financial instruments. Other key sources of
estimation uncertainty are as follows:

(a)

(b)

Depreciation of fixed assets

Fixed assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over
the estimated useful lives, after taking into account the
estimated residual value. The Group reviews annually
the estimated useful lives of the assets and their residual
values, if any. The useful lives are based on the Group’s
historical experience with similar assets. The depreciation
expense for future periods is adjusted if there are
significant changes from previous estimates.

Impairment

If circumstances indicate that the carrying value of
interests in subsidiaries, fixed assets, goodwill and other
non-current assets may not be recoverable, these assets
may be considered “impaired”, and an impairment
loss may be recognised in accordance with HKAS 36,
“Impairment of assets”. The carrying amounts of these
assets are reviewed periodically in order to assess whether
the recoverable amounts have declined below the carrying
amounts. These assets are tested for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that their
recorded carrying amounts may not be recoverable, except
for goodwill which is tested annually for impairment.
When such a decline has occurred, the carrying amount is
reduced to the recoverable amount. Determining whether
goodwill is impaired requires an estimation of the value
In use of the cash-generating units to which goodwill has
been allocated. The recoverable amount is the greater of
the net selling price and the value in use. It is difficult to
precisely estimate selling prices because quoted market
prices for the Group's assets are not readily available.
In determining the value in use, expected cash flows
generated by the asset are discounted to their present
value, which requires significant judgement relating to
revenue and amount of operating costs. The Group uses
all readily available information in determining an amount
that is a reasonable approximation of recoverable amount,
including estimates based on reasonable and supportable
assumptions and projections of revenue and amount of
operating costs.

37

38

ANNUAL REPORT 20115 %

LR B d 4 B 8 il

Snp S
5 FEHL

#k it 3z Z C.P. Holding (BVI)
stment Company Limited > &
e e B O W) R R %R B EE i AR oL

hand Group Company

ed o U8 4 ) E A 20 TR

gat:is)
S

3

g

o
ST
Tff

i1
T
o=
ﬂ_w
=

ERR BENRESE A RS
ER@RERIpEEEIL

I

=0
M o BT ERT RS
EmEEE N o R
EEN BT B R IESE
S N BRI OB R
AR E T B

IR THEREY - 3

IR B 3
NENE - R

S T} R 0 89 35 i 35
NESmEaREesh
HBBEENHFFHER
ek DRI REE 4 8 T (NS
A EHBWER ST
o BN - NI -

gma&gm~mﬁm
=

g
=
B
¥
B
&
B

N
Pt =

SnEmm R
S - (g

EEEoEE
f
REBFEHR
BENTLSE
B E R

WS - -
HRES s

=
Zn

e - P I
g
NEFS

SEEEERTEH
EEBEREL
o ¥ o EREBHIM

=
]

(b)

=

S N
3
=%
=
|

E{ P
]
- FEiEE

m
3|

S R
i ?%\% =
. é»

o I i
%M
5%
oy &
At
G jg‘—ﬁ
ETTHBE - B

2]

by
SRR
HAFR - o

i
B

TR 2|~ B (N

N« ° ﬁN’

SRS
ﬁ%@ﬁ%ﬁ

!

AR T T 5B
I Sz ahf 4

#
3
Jq
=
=
b=
(N

P
1B | ¥ pngy
‘mr A

o

=
(=3
%

BRI -

Sh
il

BN
BF T EE
EEEEs
AR
EED o B
= - B
Bl R -
NENEE

EEeE

-
=

HEEWEWE o & -
R
=
b=
Pz
TRIRO) I B (N o B A I IR B S 33

==
S

SEAT A EEE -
=N - BESHME
EDEHBSHES

oRIEDRE o B¥

=

SiEE

=2

N N P IR 2
HEEA - MRS - FHEET - ERFEBS SR -

OSEERES R
FEARDIm - oF

EREESE RS ERESN S5 RN E N S m R E =R
> B I o R T

EHADEEN o
R AR
e

s

109



Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt % W& M

For the year ended 31 December 2011 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
BE-Z——F+-A=1+—HLFE (BRBEHBI UAR¥ETHEN)

38 Accounting estimates and judgements
(Continued)

(c)

Deferred tax

At 31 December 2011, the Group has recognised a
deferred tax asset in relation to tax losses carried forward
of certain PRC subsidiaries, as set out in note 27. The
realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly depends on
whether it is probable that future taxable profits will
be available against which the asset can be utilised. In
assessing the need to recognise a deferred tax asset,
management considers all available evidence, including
projected future taxable income, tax planning strategies,
historical taxable income, and the expiration period of
the losses carried forward. In cases where the actual
future taxable profits are less than expected, a reversal of
a deferred tax asset may arise, which will be recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which such a reversal
takes place.

39 Non-adjusting events after the reporting
period

110

()

Acquisition of subsidiaries

On 14 October 2011, the Company entered into an
acquisition agreement to acquire from Whole Sino
the entire issued share capital and all the outstanding
shareholder’s loan of Excel Worth Limited (”Excel
Worth”) which, through its subsidiaries in the PRC,
operates four hypermarkets in the PRC. The total
consideration for the acquisition will be entirely satisfied
by the allotment and issuance by the Company to Whole
Sino of 2,211,382,609 Series D convertible preference
shares.

As the major conditions precedent needed to complete
the acquisition of Excel Worth had been substantially
fulfilled on 1 January 2012, the Company and Whole
Sino jointly agreed to transfer control over Excel Worth’s
financial and operating policies to the Company on
1 January 2012. Accordingly, Excel Worth has been
accounted for as a subsidiary of the Company from that
date (the “Acquisition Date”).

C.P. Lotus Corporation « NEERERLT
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39 it ) R 4% I R e 0

(i)

W O Y D 2 )

W ——4#E+H+NH K
/A7) BWhole Sino#] 7 Wt 1 1
# DL B Excel Worth Limited
([Excel Worth]) Z & C %17
WA Je B AR R B R B
Excel Worth# i H i H [ Bk or
2 B e A W) 488 A R U 5O A
T o W B ARME MR A O AR A
W) DLBE B K% % 472,211,382,609
JBED 2 B BT e B S e 2 O R
£} #Whole Sino °

HAR =T ——4F—H—HDOK#
EE 4758 B Excel Worthz
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39 Non-adjusting events after the reporting
period (Continued)

()

(ii)

39 W Bl 4% kR
(%)

Acquisition of subsidiaries (Continued) (i)  WOWHE A ()

The acquisition of Excel Worth and its subsidiaries, WelEExcel Worth & 3 B J&§ A #=]
accounted for using the acquisition method of T A5 P WO A% S > R W B
accounting, will have the following estimated effect on REFHZ EEMABZZEMNG
the Group’s assets and liabilities on the acquisition date: mFE :

Pre-acquisition Recognised
carrying Fair value values on
amounts adjustment acquisition
BB i 2 AR W Bl

M T i W2z YA
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARHT I ARWT e AR¥T
Property, plant and equipment ERY N E 83,306 2,404 85,710
Intangible assets G = 31,250 31,250
Inventories #H 59,369 2,996 62,365
Trade and other receivables B L T A JRE WS R T 89,764 - 89,764
Cash and cash equivalents Be kB4 SH 21,163 = 21,163
Trade and other payables B 1 % A R A K (292,558) - (292,558)
Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) BAEBIHEE/(AFH) 5,895 (9,162) (3,267)
Net assets acquired Wi 22 ¥ 8 (33,061) 27,488 (5,573)
Goodwill on acquisition e = 434,493
Cost of acquisition 0 S A 428,920
Total consideration, satisfied by E MR D EPIIE! Y s
- issue of Series D convertible Btz 5 A3 A
preference shares 428,920
Net cash inflow in respect of R T 8 ) 2
acquisition of subsidiaries BB A B
— Cash and cash equivalents - W2 B8 KB 4%
acquired 21,163
If the above acquisition had occurred on 1 January 2011, DL EUiE N —R——4F—H
the Directors estimate that the consolidated turnover — H B > EE A AR E
of the Group would have been RMB10,731 million and 22 ——HF+_-H=+—H
the consolidated profit for the year would have been IhEEZ A SHE A NR
RMB42 million for the year ended 31 December 2011. %10731300@00%&1:@&
In determining these amounts, the Directors of the AR A N R¥42,000,000
Company have assumed that the fair value adjustments IC o 75 E M A WU > AR A ]
that arose on the date of acquisition would have been ZHE BB
the same if the acquisition had occurred on 1 January E—H—HBE WEHZA
2011, oA A 5 o
The fair value of the convertible preference shares issued BEAT AT o e i 2 A ol
was determined based on a valuation report prepared by — B L 4B = 7 Ak A8 Bl 2 A 5
an independent third party valuer. HMEEE o
Disposal of Madang Lu Store (i) BB EBE
The disposal of Madang Lu Store Business as set out in it 221 BT R = B BB i ik gk 2

note 21 was completed on 1 March 2012. No material
gain or loss arose on this transaction.
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39

40

112

Non-adjusting events after the reporting
period (Continued)
(iii)

Conversion of Series C convertible preference shares

Subsequent to 31 December 2011, 828,000 Series C
convertible preference shares were converted to the
same number of ordinary shares of the Company.

Possible impact of amendments, new
standards and interpretations issued
but not yet effective for the year ended
31 December 2011

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a number of amendments and new standards
which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 December
2011 and which have not been adopted in these financial
statements.

39 H ok 0 A & JE o R 3 R
(#1)

S6ARCF 1wl 0 JBe 48 O Bt

W_F——4FE+_A=+—
1% > 828,000 CE& %7 ﬂﬁzﬂﬁﬁﬁ'ﬁ
H%B%mﬁ?%ﬂv\wﬁ%ﬁk HzZ¥

UM g AR R 2 %
I Y S e L
Ei%z@? B0 e I Rk
B2 %
VAR BE A 2 1 1L >
@ 31 B @ AR % SR T BBl »
W AR MR E % — 4 F =
AR IR R BRI B L o 4R

(ifi)

40

Effective for accounting
period beginning on or after

IS EEEE S

Amendments to HKFRS 7, Financial instruments: WM B R 755 (BRI K) > 2H LA - Tluly 2011 ZB——HELA—H
Disclosure - Transfers of financial assets WE—EAEEZBE

Amendments to HKAS 12, Income taxes - Deferred tax: FEGTEAE 28 (BT KR) » BiSH—ZZAE 1 )anvary 2012 ZF—-"F—H—H
Recovery of underlying assets IR &

Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial statements - BiErst A1 (BTR) > ZAHEHAE— 1luly2012  ZZF—Z4LH—H
Presentation of items of other comprehensive income 2IRM2HRAZEH

HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements T BRI E1088 » FAHBH Y 1January 2013 ZF—=f—H—H

HKFRS 11, Joint arrangements MR R R 15 L ZH 1 January 2013 244¢ A—H

HKFRS 12, Disclosure of interests in other entities TR R 1 2% » ML R T 1 January 2013 =HE—A—H

HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement BB 451358 » AR 2714 1 January 2013 #gg_g A—H

HKAS 27, Separate financial statements B E275 OB 1January 2013  ZF—=F—H—H

HKAS 28, Investment in associates and joint ventures B G THERE 28 BEAAR A B L EHE 1Janvary 2013 ZZ—=F—f—H

Revised HKAS 19, Employee benefits BBGTHERE 9% (BB » EAHA 1January 2013 ZZ—=4—f—H

Amendments to HKFRS 7, financial instruments: Disclosures - BEMBEREENATSE (BT K) s 2HTHA: #FE— 1 Janvary 203 ZF—ZFE—F—H
disclosures - Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities HE-HHEHEERERA 7

Amendments to HKAS 32, Financial instruments: Presentation - izt iEAISE328E (BiTA) » 2B LA : 1January 2014 ZZF—WE—~H—H
Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities 2I—HHeREEREHA R

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments B BRI 2HTA 1January 2015 —F—fifE—H—

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Financial instruments and RSMERAEN AN » 2H AR 1 January 2015 “B-Tkf

HKFRS 7, Financial instruments:
Disclosures - Mandatory effective date and transition disclosures

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what
the impact of these amendments and standards is expected to
be in the period of initial application. So far it has concluded
that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant
impact on the Group’s results of operations and financial
position.
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Summary of Financial Information

BBENBE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)
(MAR¥THEN)

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last

SR A 2 A S B AR R S A B R LR

five financial years is as follows: BEE T .
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
“ERLE “EFRN\E ZRBI e S 213 It S H
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
AT ARHF L NN ST ARHF AREET I
RESULTS £5
Turnover BEH 4,271,068 5,583,633 8,783,361 9,374,500  |10,019,305
Profit/(loss) before taxation BRG] (B ) (297,787 (37,310) (214,571) 340,656 34,686
Taxation Bl 1,380 (3,228) (21,161) 8,666 (10,926)
Profit/(Loss) for the year EERN OBR) (296,407) (40,538) (235,732) 349,322 23,760
Attributable to: PR ALY
Equity shareholders of the Company AAFRR (298,959) (40,422) (235,732) 349,322 23,813
Non-controlling interests Je e B 2,552 (116) = = (53)
Profit/(Loss) for the year EERA S OBR) (296,407) (40,538) (235,732) 349,322 23,760
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES R
Total assets WERE 2,308,762 7,448,417 7,009,128 6,649,927 6,909,213
Total liabilities AR (2,607,831) (7,060,956) (6,874,267) (5,372,729) (4,906,728)
NET ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) B/ (fff) B (299,069) 387,461 134,861 1,277,198 2,002,485
CAPITAL AND RESERVES HEA R G A
Total equity attributable to AR IR B A
equity shareholders of the Company g 40 3 (301,586) 387,461 134,861 1,275,198 2,000,538
Non-controlling interests Jebe s 2,517 = = 2,000 1,947
TOTAL EQUITY LR (299,069) 387,461 134,861 1,277,198 2,002,485
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Financial Calendar and Shareholder Information
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FINANCIAL CALENDAR 2012

Annual results announced

CER AR B R R

27 March 2012

O A 2 4R 2 3 4 R -ZHE=H=++LH
Annual General Meeting June 2012
&Sk N R -ZHANH
2012 Interim Results August 2012
SRR SR —TAENA
Financial year end 31 December
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SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION B 3% Fl
Share Capital JiiA Nominal value
Wi fFL
As at 1 April 2012 HK$ Number of shares HK$'000
W — AN —H #oL JBe T#T
Ordinary Shares %3 i
Authorised ¥ 0.02 34,000,000,000 680,000
Issued and Fully Paid-up BV#47T X442 0.02 9,185,242,410 183,705
Series A Convertible Preference Shares A% % $ JBt 5 %6 Bt
Authorised ¥ 0.02 2,000,000,000 40,000
Issued and Fully Paid-up* T 3§47 M 482 * 0.02 1,518,807,075 30,376
Series B Convertible Preference Shares B % $t JB 5 % it
Authorised ¥ 0.02 4,000,000,000 80,000
Issued and Fully Paid-up* T.E$4T M 42 * 0.02 3,897,110,334 77,942
Series C Convertible Preference Shares C% % W $ JBt 5 %6 ¢
Authorised ¥ 0.02 4,500,000,000 90,000
Issued and Fully Paid-up** BLEEAT B AL ** 0.02 3,672,937,764 73,459
Series D Convertible Preference Shares D % 51 W $t JB {8 56 Jht
Authorised % 0.02 2,500,000,000 50,000
Issued and Fully Paid-up*** ELE47 S e *** 0.02 2,211,382,609 44,228
* Held by C.P. Holding (BVI) Investment Company Limited * HHC.P. Holding (BVI) Investment Company
Limited$5f
**  Held by C.P. Holding (BVI) Investment Company Limited & Public **  HC.P. Holding (BVI) Investment Company
Limited R A B FH

*** Held by Whole Sino Limited

Shareholding 5B #
As at 1 April 2012

**% HWhole Sino Limited 36

% of issued

No. of shares share capital

R —-Z4NH—H T R AR
IR ¥ ZHIK

C.P. Holding (BVI) Investment Company C.P. Holding (BVI) Investment
Limited (“CPH")* Company Limited ( [CPH] ) # 6,888,319,021 75%
Public AR 2,296,923,389 25%
TOTAL ok g 9,185,242,410 100%

# CPH is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Charoen Pokphand Group
Company Limited

STOCK CODE JBfr{CHE

# CPHJ3Charoen Pokphand Group Company
LimitedZz — 5 [l 4% 22 & W1 8§ A =)

Hong Kong Stock Exchange & W 22 e
Reuters Reuters
Bloomberg Bloomberg

Request for Feedback
Please email to contact@cplotuscorp.hk for any comments on our
public announcement and disclosures.
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C.P. Lotus Corporation
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(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
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Stock Code B3 155 : 00121
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